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ABOUT THE COVER
The 21st Century has arrived.
Where the challenge of
change is more intense
than ever.
With the promise of a
better life for all.
Like the way we communicate.
Faster, cheaper and
instantaneous.

The primary engine in
information communication
technologies.

From fixed lines to mobiles
to the Internet. Connecting you
everywhere and anywhere.

We are metamorphosing
to meet the challenges
of the global frontiers.

Telekom Malaysia is right
there at the forefront of
this revolution.

We are well on our way,
taking the next step...
Migration Towards
The Next Generation
Communications Company.

The Future Begins Today
They say that tomorrow waits for no man.
We agree. We are prepared.
Like

smart schools and universities

Every day. Every second.

for a knowledge society.

And we continue to build. And deliver. And provide.
Like
Like

internet access

satellite links
for unlimited access.

to the worldwideweb.

Like

wireless communications
for remote villages.

Like the

broadband networks that enable businesses to do business.
Around the globe. Around the clock.

Like the

And every Malaysian, at home and abroad,

continues to benefit.

Like the

telephone networks that

mobile networks

that free communications.

link a mother to her children.

From home to home. From here to the world.

The list goes on and on and on. This is
This is

Like the

our commitment.

our vision. For your tomorrows.

fibre-optic networks
that will bring true multimedia to everyone.

The future is very bright indeed.
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notice of Annual General Meeting

May 2000

Further notice is hereby given that a Depositor shall qualify for
dividend entitlement only in respect of:a.

Shares deposited into the Depositor’s Securities Account before
12.30 p.m. on 17 May 2001 (in respect of shares which are
exempted from Mandatory Deposit);
Shares transferred into the Depositor’s Securities Account before
12.30 p.m. on 21 May 2001 in respect of Ordinary Transfer;

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the audited Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2000 together with the Reports of the
Directors and Auditors thereon.
(Ordinary Resolution 1)

2.

To approve the declaration of a first and final dividend per share of 10 sen (less 28% Malaysian Income Tax) in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2000.
(Ordinary Resolution 2)

b.

To re-elect the following Directors retiring pursuant to Article 98:(i) YB. Dato’ Ir. Haji Mohd Zin bin Mohamed
(ii) Dato’ Dr. Mohd Munir bin Abdul Majid
(iii) Ir. Prabahar s/o N. K. Singam
(iv) Lim Kheng Guan
(v) Rosli bin Man
(vi) Tan Poh Keat
(vii) Dato’ Dr. Halim bin Shafie
(viii) Dato’ Abdul Majid bin Haji Hussein

c.
(Ordinary Resolution 3)
(Ordinary Resolution 4)
(Ordinary Resolution 5)
(Ordinary Resolution 6)
(Ordinary Resolution 7)
(Ordinary Resolution 8)
(Ordinary Resolution 9)
(Ordinary Resolution 10)

4.

To re-elect Dato’ Ir. Muhammad Radzi bin Haji Mansor retiring pursuant to Article 103.

(Ordinary Resolution 11)

5.

To approve the Directors’ fees and remuneration.

(Ordinary Resolution 12)

6.

To appoint the Auditors and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

(Ordinary Resolution 13)

7.

As Special Business
To consider and if thought fit to pass the following Ordinary Resolution:Ordinary Resolution 14
“THAT subject to the Companies Act 1965, the Articles of Association of the Company, approval from the Kuala Lumpur
Stock Exchange (KLSE) and other Government or regulatory bodies, where such approval is necessary, full authority be
and is hereby given to the Board of Directors pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act 1965, to issue shares in the
capital of the Company at any time upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes as the Directors may in their
discretion deem fit provided always that the aggregate number of shares to be issued, shall not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company.”

Further notice is hereby given that a Depositor shall be eligible to attend this meeting only in respect of:a.

Shares deposited into the Depositor’s Securities Account before 12.30 p.m. on 30 April 2001 (in respect of shares which
are exempted from Mandatory Deposit);

b.

Shares transferred into the Depositor’s Securities Account before 12.30 p.m. on 30 April 2001 in respect of Ordinary Transfer;

c.

Shares bought on the KLSE on cum entitlement basis according to the Rules of the KLSE.

Shareholders are reminded that pursuant to the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) (Amendment No. 2) Act, 1998 which
came into force on 1 November 1998, all shares not deposited with Malaysian Central Depository Sdn. Bhd. by 12.30 p.m. on
1 December 1998 and not exempted from Mandatory Deposit, have been transferred to the Minister of Finance (MOF).
Accordingly, the eligibility to attend this Meeting for such undeposited shares will be determined by the MOF.
NOTICE OF BOOK CLOSURE FOR PAYMENT OF DIVIDENDS
Notice is also hereby given that, the Register of Members will be closed from 22 May 2001 to 24 May 2001 (both dates
inclusive) to determine the Shareholders entitlement to the dividend payment. The dividend, if approved by the Shareholders at
the Company’s Sixteenth Annual General Meeting, will be paid on 15 June 2001 to Shareholders whose names appear in the
Register of Depositors on 21 May 2001.

Shares bought on the Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange on a cum
entitlement basis according to the Rules of the Kuala Lumpur
Stock Exchange.

Shareholders are reminded that pursuant to the Securities Industry
(Central Depositories) (Amendment No. 2) Act, 1998 which came into
force on 1 November 1998, all shares not deposited with Malaysian
Central Depository Sdn. Bhd. by 12.30 p.m. on 1 December 1998 and
not exempted from Mandatory Deposit, have been transferred to the
Minister of Finance (MOF). Accordingly, the dividend for such
undeposited shares will be paid to MOF.
By Order of the Board

Wang Cheng Yong
Zaiton bt. Ahmad
Secretaries
Kuala Lumpur
Date: 19 April 2001

Notes:
(i) A member entitled to attend and vote at the above Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy
to attend and vote in his stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.
(ii) The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer
or his attorney duly appointed under a power of attorney or if such appointee is a
corporation, either under its common seal or under the hand of an attorney duly
appointed under a power of attorney.
(iii) The instrument appointing the proxy must be deposited at the office of the Share
Registrar, Tenaga Koperat Sdn. Bhd., 20th Floor, Plaza Permata (formerly known as
IGB Plaza), Jalan Kampar off Jalan Tun Razak, 50400 Kuala Lumpur not less than 48
hours before the time appointed for holding the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.
(iv) Explanatory Note for Ordinary Resolution No. 14
In line with the Company’s plan for expansion/diversification, the Company is actively
looking into prospective areas so as to broaden its operating base and earnings potential.
As the expansion/diversification may involve the issuance of new shares, the Directors,
under present circumstances would be required to convene a general meeting to approve
the issuance of new shares even though the number involved is less than 10% of the
issued share capital. In order to avoid any delay and cost involved in convening a
general meeting to approve such issue of shares, it is considered appropriate that the
Directors be now empowered to issue shares in the Company up to an amount not
exceeding in total, 10% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time being,
for such purposes as they consider would be in the interest of the Company. This
authority unless revoked or varied at a general meeting will expire at the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

annual general meeting
4

Financial CALENDAR

15th Annual General Meeting.

Notice is hereby given that the Sixteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at 10.00 a.m., on Tuesday,
15 May 2001 at the Grand Nirwana Ballroom, Mutiara Kuala Lumpur Hotel (formerly known as Hilton Kuala Lumpur Hotel),
Jalan Sultan Ismail, 50250 Kuala Lumpur, for the following purposes:-

3.

9
19

May 2000

Announcement of unaudited consolidated
1st quarter results for the three months
ended 31 March 2000.

19

June 2000

Date of payment of the first and final
dividend of 10.0 sen per share (Malaysian
Income Tax Exempted) for the financial
year ended 31 December 1999.

29

August 2000

Announcement of unaudited consolidated
2nd quarter results for the six months
ended 30 June 2000.

7

November 2000

Announcement of unaudited consolidated
3rd quarter results for nine months ended
30 September 2000.

27

February 2001

Announcement of audited consolidated
results and the proposed dividend for
4th quarter for the financial year ended
31 December 2000.

19

April 2001

Issue of Notice of the 16th Annual
General Meeting, Notice of Dividend
Payment and Book Closure, and Annual
Report for the financial year ended
31 December 2000.

15
22-24

May 2001

16th Annual General Meeting.

May 2001

Book Closure for determining the
entitlement for the dividend.

15

June 2001

Date of payment of the first and final
dividend of 10.0 sen per share less tax
of 28% for the financial year ended
31 December 2000.
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3.

Profit after taxation#

1,910.1

172.0

1,472.1

953.0

697.8

4.

Profit after taxation and minority interest#

1,897.8

156.5

1,445.8

951.9

705.2

5.

Total shareholders funds#

12,068.5

11,246.9

11,847.4

12,443.3

13,422.5

6.

Total assets#

19,993.2

24,105.9

25,640.8

25,630.1

27,266.9

7.

Total borrowings

3,624.5

7,821.7

7,899.0

8,059.5

8,436.0

15,000

12,000

9,000

12,000

4,000

12.5%

3,000

6,000

2,000

Profit before taxation#

24.3%

–70.8%

202.4%

–52.1%

23.0%

Total shareholders funds#

10.5%

–6.8%

5.3%

5.0%

7.9%

4.

Total assets#

10.9%

20.6%

6.4%

0.0%

6.4%

5.

Total borrowings

3.2%

115.8%

1.0%

2.0%

4.7%

RATIO
12.2%

7.6%

5.3%

9.6%

0.7%

5.7%

3.7%

2.6%

0.3

0.7

0.7

0.6

0.6

17.5%

12.0%

10.0%

10.0%

10.0%

3.6

0.4

4.8

3.2

2.3

97'

98'

99'

00'

Total Shareholders Funds
(RM Million)

97'

98'

99'

0
96'

97'

98'

99'

00'

Total Assets
(RM Million)

96'

00'

Total Borrowings
(RM Million)

20

10

16

8

0.8

6

0.6

1.0

1.

Return on shareholders funds#

2.

Return on total assets#

3.

Debt equity ratio

4.

Dividend rate

5.

Dividend cover*#

6.

Earnings per share*#
– Basic

63.3 sen

5.2 sen

48.2 sen

31.6 sen

22.9 sen

7.

Net tangible assets per share*#

402.5 sen

375.1 sen

395.0 sen

410.9 sen

434.8 sen
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8.

Share price information
High**
Low

RM24.30
RM19.70

RM15.20
RM6.95

RM13.10
RM4.34

RM14.70
RM7.55

RM17.70
RM9.65

0

12

12.2

1.4%

0
96'

15.7

15.7%

0

4

8

7.6
96'

97'

2

0
98'

97'

98'

99'

99'

00'

0.4

3.7

3.

5.3

2.

2.6

–1.8%

5.7

11.4%

0.7

11.7%

9.6

22.2%

697.8

6,000

6,000

1.4

Operating income

172.0

8,000

GROWTH RATES OVER PREVIOUS YEARS
1.

953.0

1,250.8

10,000

24,000

18,000

1,472.1

2,123.6

30,000

8,436.0

1,250.8

00'

0.6

1,017.0

99'

8,059.5

2,123.6

98'

0.6

702.3

97'

7,899.0

2,404.5

96'

Profit After Taxation
(RM Million)

0.7

Profit before taxation#

Profit Before Taxation
(RM Million)

7,821.7

2.

00'

0.7

8,815.7

99'

3,624.5

7,833.0

98'

00'

Return On Shareholders Funds
(%)

96'

97'

0.2

0.3

7,980.1

97'

27,266.9

7,165.7

Operating Income
(RM Million)

0
96'

25,630.1

6,416.3

00'

25,640.8

Operating income

99'

24,105.9

1.

98'

13,422.5

In millions

97'

800

400

0
96'

12,443.3

2000

1,200

1,017.0

600

702.3

2,000

11,847.4

1999

1,600

1,200

11,246.9

1998

2,400

4,000

12,068.5

1997

2,000

1,800

0

1996

3,000

2,404.5

8,815.7

7,833.0

7,980.1

6,000

7,165.7

highlights

8,000

6,416.3

financial

10,000

19,993.2

five-year group

1,910.1

T E L E K O M M A L AY S I A B E R H A D

0
98'

Return On Total Assets
(%)

99'

00'

96'

Debt Equity Ratio

*
#

Comparative figures for 1996 are adjusted for bonus issue in 1997.
Comparative figures for 1996 – 1999 are restated to conform with the changed accounting policy on the treatment of foreign
exchange differences as well as the prior year adjustment on Group’s share of post acquisition profit less losses of associated
companies as stated in Note 33 to the Financial Statements.
** The high price for 1997 was recorded in January and was adjusted for bonus issue in 1997.
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OP E R AT I NG I NC OM E
Bus i nes s Tel ephone
39.1%

group segmental

analysis

Res i dent i al Tel ephone
31.6%
M obi l e Tel ephone
11.2%

O P E R AT I N G I N C O ME F O R T H E Y E A R E N D E D 31 D E C E M BE R 2 0 00

D at a S er vi ces
9.3%
O t her s
8.8%

group financial

performance

2000

B y A c ti v it i e s

B y Ge og r aphic al Loc a tion

Te le co mmu nicatio n
94 . 2%

Mal a ysia
96 .5%

N on - te le co mmu nicatio n
5. 8 %

Ove rsea s
3. 5%

P RO F IT BE F O R E TA X AT IO N F O R T H E Y E A R E N D E D 31 D E C E M BER 20 00

B y A c t i vi t ie s

B y Ge og r aphic al Loc a tion

Te le co mmu nicatio n
92 . 6%

Mal a ysia
97 .3%

N on - te le co mmu nicatio n
7. 4 %

Ove rsea s
2. 7%

DI S T R I B UT I ON OF I NC OM E
O per at i ng Cos t
54.1%

A S S E T S E M P L O Y E D A S AT 3 1 D E CE M B E R 2 0 0 0
D epr eci at i on
27.3%
P r of i t A f t er Taxat i on
7.7%
N et F i nance Cos t
4.8%
Taxat i on
6.1%

8

B y A c t i vi t ie s

B y Ge og r aphic al Loc a tion

Te le co mmu nicatio n
97 . 6%

Mal a ysia
93 .1%

N on - te le co mmu nicatio n
2. 4 %

Ove rsea s
6. 9%
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business & Other Statistics

group Financial Review
OPERATING INCOME
1997

1998

1999

2000

CUSTOMER BASE
1. Residential telephone

2,738,201

3,052,203

3,226,879

3,258,044

3,405,744

2.

Business telephone

1,033,113

1,170,839

1,157,269

1,172,755

1,228,601

3.

Public telephone

137,707

172,465

188,839

162,276

156,600

4.

Telex

5.

Leased circuits

6.

4,548

4,095

3,406

3,196

2,956

40,898

46,269

50,636

61,280

63,527

Maypac

2,847

2,815

3,742

2,835

2,636

7.

Toll Free

1,009

1,780

1,102

1,295

1,573

8.

ISDN

1,949

4,576

8,866

18,089

34,512

9.

Total access lines

3,771,314

4,223,042

4,384,148

4,430,799

4,634,345

18.4

20.1

20.4

20.1

20.9

10. Total access lines per 100 population
NETWORK CAPACITY (’000)
1.

Kilometers cable pair

2.

Fibre kilometers

3.

Exchange lines

4.

International gateway exchange

28,333

29,551

29,878

30,069

30,404

61

91

120

172

245

5,916

6,414

7,190

7,337

7,970

22.1

22.1

32.9

33.0

34.5

27,516

27,484

27,089

25,442

24,789

137

154

162

174

187

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.4

PRODUCTIVITY
1.

Number of employees

2.

Number of access lines per employee

QUALITY OF SERVICE
1.

Total faults report per line

2.

Total complaints per 1000 lines

3.

Leased circuits fault restoration (within 24 hours)

6.8

7.1

13.2

10.2

8.3

95.8

92.4

98.0

97.3

100

For the financial year ended 31 December 2000, Telekom Malaysia has registered 8.9% growth
in operating income mainly due to higher telephony income as a result of increase in subscribers for
fixed line and ISDN. Income from data services (which include leased services and COINS) as well
as internet & multimedia service has grown by 10.4% and 30.7% respectively.
At the Group level, the current year operating income of RM8,815.7 million was 12.5%
(RM982.7 million) higher than RM7,833.0 million recorded in 1999. All product lines have recorded
positive growth except for other telecommunication related services which have recorded a reduction
of 10.2% (RM26.7 million). Telephony, data services and non-telecommunication related services were
the main contributors to the higher income.
Telephony income has grown by 11.2% (RM726.2 million) which was mainly contributed by
the Company, Telekom Cellular Sdn Bhd, MTN Networks (Private) Limited and TM International
(Bangladesh) Limited as a result of subscriber growth and business expansion.
Income from non-telecommunications services has increased significantly by 54.2% (RM156.8
million) mainly due to contribution from Telekom Smart School Sdn Bhd which started operations at
the end of 1999. Universiti Telekom Sdn Bhd has also recorded a substantial increase in income of
RM31.0 million.
There is no major change in the income mix for the Group. Telephony services being the core
business of the Group has contributed 81.9% (1999: 82.9%) of the Group operating income with basic
telephony and ISDN services contributing 70.7% (1999: 73.7%) and the remaining 11.2% (1999: 9.2%)
from the mobile division. The contribution from data services, internet & multimedia services and
other telecommunication services was 9.3% (1999: 9.2%), 1.1% (1999: 0.9%) and 2.6% (1999: 3.3%)
respectively.
Income from non-telecommunication related services which consists of revenue from subsidiary
companies that are not involved in the telecommunications industry contributed 5.1% (1999: 3.7%) to
the Group operating income.

operating
4,000

3,200

income
2,585.0
2,786.0

1996

3,186.5
3,448.2

Year ended 31 December

800

623.3
779.0

718.6
982.1

1,600

719.6
820.4

2,400

0
99' 00'

99' 00'

99' 00'

99' 00'

99' 00'

Business
Telephone

Residential
Telephone

Mobile
Telephone

Data
Services

Other
Services

Operating Income (RM Million)
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net finance
OPERATING COST

mainly due to higher manpower and retirement benefit costs, domestic and international out-payments,
write-off of investments and trade receivables owing by subsidiary companies and a one-off provision
for permanent diminution in value of long term investment.

The current year net finance cost of
RM432.1 million was 12.8% lower than
1999. Higher interest income recorded by the
Company and few subsidiaries was the main
contributing factor.

600

cost

535.8

Telekom Malaysia has recorded a 32.1% (RM1,705.9 million) increase in operating costs

564.4

NET FINANCE COST

480

360

The Group’s operating costs have increased by 12.0% (RM792.7 million) from RM6,596.7
million to RM7,389.4 million mainly due to higher costs incurred by the Company as mentioned

240

69.0

registered 17.3% growth in operating costs as a result of business expansion which has also contributed

103.7

above, Telekom Cellular Sdn Bhd and Telekom Smart School Sdn Bhd. Telekom Cellular Sdn Bhd
120

a significant increase in operating income. Higher costs for Telekom Smart School Sdn Bhd was due
to full operation in year 2000. An exceptional provision for impairment losses of property, plant and
0

equipment of RM304.0 million has also contributed to the higher Group operating costs.

99'

00'

Net Finance Cost (RM Million)

Finance Cost

Interest Income

In term of the composition of operating cost, depreciation remained the biggest cost component
of the Group followed by manpower cost, domestic and international out-payments, bad and doubtful
debt, supplies and inventories, etc.
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
The Group’s profit before taxation increased by
23.0% (RM233.8 million) over the corresponding year from
RM1,017.0 million to RM1,250.8 million despite negative
contribution from foreign associated companies amounting to
RM20.2 million.

profit
before taxation

As in the previous years, Telkom SA Limited and
Ghana Telecommunications Company Limited were the main

Group profit before taxation. However, this positive contribution
was insufficient to cover the losses recorded by Digital Phone
Company Limited.

million, a reduction of 25.9% (RM246.7
million) as there was no Malaysian taxation

1,500

600.1

1,000

1,250.8

2,000

1,017.0
1,469.2

decreased from RM951.9 million to RM705.2

waiver year.

539.0
486.4

700

taxation and minority interest however

expense provided for in 1999, as it was a tax
343.9
385.5

1,400

679.0
782.2

952.1
1,021.3

2,100

2,500

2,123.6
2,084.7

1,613.5
2,233.1

2,800

2,469.2
2,480.9

Despite the 23% increase in profit
before taxation for the year 2000, profit after

702.3
714.0

3,500

Cost

contributed RM174.9 million (1999: RM269.6 million) to the

2,404.5
2,363.2

operating

contributors from the overseas ventures. These two companies

500
0
99' 00'

99' 00'

99' 00'

99' 00'

99' 00'

99' 00'

Depreciation

Manpower

Domestic and
International
Out-payments

Supplies and
Inventories

Bad and
Doubtful Debts

Other
Operating Costs

0

Operating Cost (RM Million)

12

96'

97'

98'

Profit Before Taxation (RM Million)

99'

Group

00'

Company
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ASSETS

SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS

Total assets for the Group increased from RM25,630.1 million in 1999 to RM27,266.9 million

The Group shareholders funds has increased by RM979.2 million to RM13,422.5 million. The

in 2000 mainly due to increases in trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents. Trade and

increase is mainly attributed to issuance of new shares under the Employees Share Options Scheme

other receivables increased by 35.9% (RM1,051.2 million) consequent to the 12.5% increase in

(ESOS) as well as from retained profits.

operating income. Higher cash and cash equivalents of RM2,215.7 million (1999: RM1,036.6 million)
was mainly due to proceeds from the USD300.0 million 8% Guarantee Notes due in 2010 received at

Higher shareholders funds and lower profit attributable to shareholders has resulted in a

the end of the year. Long-term investments have declined by 35.2% (RM78.6 million) mainly due to

significant reduction in return on shareholders funds from 7.6% in 1999 to 5.3% in 2000. Earning per

a one-off provision for permanent diminution in value.

share (EPS) has declined by 8.7 sen to 22.9 sen as a result of lower profit and higher paid up capital.

As a resulting of lower profit after taxation, return on total assets has decreased significantly
from 3.7% in 1999 to 2.6% in 2000.

The proposed dividend for financial year ended 31 December 2000 is 10.0 sen less tax of 28%
(RM223.2 million) as compared to 10.0 sen Malaysian Income Tax Exempted (RM305.0 million) in
1999. With a lower earning per share, dividend cover has decreased from 3.2 in 1999 to 2.3 in 2000.

assets

2000
To ta l As s e ts 2 0 0 0

O t her A s s et s
1.7%

64

48

5.2
1.4

12.2

15.7

16

22.9

32

0
96'

Shareholders Funds

14

97'

98'

99'

5.3

L ong- t er m Recei vabl es
2.4%

80

31.6

A s s oci at ed Com pani es
4.6%

shareholders
funds
7.6

Cas h and Cas h E qui val ent s
8.1%

48.2

Tr ade and O t her Recei vables
14.6%

63.3

P r oper t y, pl ant and equi pment
68.6%

00'

EPS (sen)

ROSHF (%)

15

Listen...
...and you will

see

Change

is constant and the world of communications is no exception.
None more so than in

We

mobile communications.

From

GPRS

to

3G

Telekom Malaysia will be there to accompany

are seeing more mobile users
than fixed telephone subscribers.

mobile technologies,

you into this

brave new era.

Making sure you enjoy the
And for the

first time,

cellular users will communicate

not just with their voices, but also with pictures.
Over the

worldwideweb.

Delivering true multimedia in every sense of the word.

experience

with minimal disruptions.

Every step of the way.
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corporate Information

from left to right:-

Lim Kheng Guan • Suriah Abd Rahman • Dato’ Dr. Halim Shafie • YB. Joseph Salang Gandum
Dato’ Ir. Muhammad Radzi Haji Mansor • Dato’ Dr. Abdul Rahim Haji Daud • Ir. Prabahar N. K. Singam

Wang Cheng Yong
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Tan Poh Keat • Dato’ Dr. Mohd Munir Abdul Majid • Dato’ Dr. Md Khir Abdul Rahman • Mohammad Zanudin Ahmad Rasidi
Rosli Man • Dato’ Abdul Majid Haji Hussein • YB. Dato’ Ir. Haji Mohd Zin Mohamed
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profile of the Board of Directors

Dato’ Dr. Md Khir bin Abdul Rahman
Chief Executive
Aged 53, Dato’ Dr. Md Khir was appointed Chief Executive of
Telekom Malaysia and a Board member on 1 May 2001. Prior to this, he
was the Deputy Chief Executive/General Manager of Malaysia Electronics
Payment System (MEPS).
He started his career at the Malaysian Agricultural Research and
Dato’ Ir. Muhammad Radzi bin Haji Mansor

Development Institute (MARDI) in 1972 before joining Bank Negara

Chairman

Malaysia in 1983. He served the Central Bank in various senior positions
before joining the telecommunications sector in 1996 as the Managing

Aged 60, Dato’ Ir. Muhammad Radzi was appointed Chairman and

Director of Mejati Technologies Group.

Director of Telekom Malaysia on 12 July 1999. He graduated with a
Diploma in Electrical Engineering in 1962 from Faraday House Engineering

Dato’ Dr. Md Khir holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in

College, London and a Masters in Science (Technological Economics) from

Mathematics from University Malaya, Masters in Agricultural Development

the University of Stirling, Scotland in 1975. A Chartered Professional

and Doctorate of Science in Computing Statistics, both from the State

Engineer registered with the Board of Engineers, Malaysia and The Council

University of Ghent, Belgium.

of Engineering Institutions, United Kingdom, he is also a member of the Institution of Engineers,
Malaysia, the Institution of Electrical Engineers, United Kingdom and the Institute of Management,

He has depth of experience in information and communication

United Kingdom. He served in various engineering and management capacities in the former

technology, banking and payment systems as well as in the development of

Telecommunications Department over a twenty-one year period, including a three-year secondment as

e-commerce applications.

Technical Advisor to the Ministry of Energy, Telecommunications and Posts.
Dato’ Ir. Muhammad Radzi retired as Director General of Telecommunications upon corporatisation
of the Telecommunications Department on 1 January 1987 and was subsequently appointed as Director
(Operations) of Telekom Malaysia. He served as Director (Marketing and Customer Services) and
retired as Director (Regulatory Management and External Affairs) in July 1996. Upon his retirement,
he was retained as a Consultant/Advisor on various flagship application projects for the Multimedia
Development Corporation, an agency established by the Malaysian Government to oversee the
development and implementation of multimedia projects within the Multimedia Super Corridor (MSC).
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YB. Joseph Salang Gandum
Director

Dato’ Dr. Abdul Rahim bin Haji Daud
Executive Director
Aged 53, Dato’ Dr. Abdul Rahim has held the position
as Executive Director since July 1998. He obtained a Bachelor

Aged 51, was first appointed to the Board in January 1987. He obtained a
Bachelor of Arts (Econs) in 1974 from Western Maryland College, Maryland, USA.
He also holds a Masters degree in Business Administration obtained from Iran Center
for Management Studies in 1975. He formerly served as Regional Manager (East
Malaysia) with Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad (East Malaysia), Trade Manager
of MISC Coastal Services Sdn Bhd, Corporate Manager and Manager of Location
(Kuching) of Standard Chartered Bank Malaysia Bhd.
He is now a businessman and a member of various Board Committees of Telekom
Malaysia and is actively involved as a Board member of several subsidiaries and
associate companies of the Group. He is currently a member of Parliament.

of Engineering in Electronics, M.Sc in Telecommunications
Engineering, a PhD in Engineering from the United Kingdom
and a Masters in Business Administration from the United

Rosli bin Man
Director

States. He is a Fellow of the Institute of Engineers, Malaysia.
He attended Harvard Business School’s Advanced Management

Aged 48, was appointed to the Board on 15 July 2000 and has more than
23 years of experience in the telecommunications industry. He holds a Bachelor in
Science (Electrical and Electronic Engineering), specialising in Electrical Design and
Instrumentation from University of Glasgow, United Kingdom and a Diploma in
Electrical and Electronic Engineering (specialising in communications) from Technical
College, Kuala Lumpur.

Program (AMP), and also the Senior Executive Development
Program at the Wharton School of Business. He joined
Jabatan Telekom Malaysia (JTM) as a Telecommunications
Engineer in 1973. In 1988 he was appointed General Manager,
Information Systems and became the Senior General Manager,

He joined Jabatan Telekom Malaysia (JTM) in 1976 as Assistant Controller where
he gained wide exposure in telecommunication services including the task to implement
the country's first mobile telecommunications service i.e. Atur 450. In 1985, he made
a career move to the private sector by joining the Fleet group as its Group Manager,
Technical Services where he was part of the team responsible in overseeing the roll-out
and operations of the nation’s first privately operated terrestrial television station
namely TV3. From 1988 to 1996, he was instrumental in setting up the first privately
owned telecommunications company in Malaysia i.e. Celcom, catering for the cellular
mobile telecommunication business. He left Celcom as its President in 1996 to join
Prismanet Sdn Bhd as Managing Director and held the position until November 1998.
He was also appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Natrindo Global Komunikasi,
based in Jakarta, Indonesia, with effect from 14 July 2000.

National Network Operations in 1993. In July 1995 he was
made Senior Vice President, Network Services before his
appointment to head TM TelCo as its Chief Operating Officer
in 1996. Upon his appointment as Executive Director in July
1998, he remained as the Chief Operating Officer TelCo
until 1 February 2001 when he assumed the position of
Executive Director, Corporate Strategy and Development.
He is also a Board member of a number of subsidiaries
and associate companies of Telekom Malaysia. He is currently
the Chairman of the Commonwealth Telecommunications
Organisation (CTO).

Dato’ Abdul Majid bin Haji Hussein
Director
Aged 53, was appointed to the Board on 5 December 2000. He obtained his
Masters in Business Management from Asian Institute of Management, Manila and has
attended Harvard Advanced Management Program at the Harvard Business School in
2000. Upon graduating with a Bachelor of Economics majoring in Accountancy, he
served the Accountant General’s Office for two years and later the National Institute of
Public Administration (INTAN) for six years as a lecturer and Program Coordinator.
In 1983, he was seconded to the Federal Agricultural Marketing Authority (FAMA) as
the Director of Planning and later served as the Deputy Director General in charge of
administration. From 1990 to 1993, he served as the Senior Assistant Director in the
Budget Division of the Ministry of Finance. He continued his public service as the
State Financial Officer of Negeri Sembilan, Director of Service in the Public Services
Department and the State Secretary of Perak prior to being appointed to his present
position as Deputy Secretary General Treasury (Operations) of the Ministry of Finance.
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Dato’ Dr. Mohd Munir bin Abdul Majid
Director
Aged 53, was appointed to the Board on 22 May 2000. He was the First
Executive Chairman of the Securities Commission (SC), a position he held for two
terms from March 1993 until February 1999. He obtained his first degree and doctorate
in Economics and Political Science from the London School of Economics and Political
Science (LSE). He has also served as Director and Chairman of several other
companies and council member of government agencies during his career. Some of the
prominent ones include the Association of Merchant Banks, Kloffe Sdn Bhd, The Kuala
Lumpur Stock Exchange, the Council of Malaysian Industrial Development Authority
(MIDA) and the Foreign Investment Committee of the Prime Minister’s Department.
Currently, he is a Member of the National Information Technology Council (NITC),
chaired by the Prime Minister.

DIRECTORS
Lim Kheng Guan
Director
Aged 59, was appointed to the Board on 23 June 2000. He is a Registered
Accountant by profession and an Associate Member of the Malaysian Association of
Certified Public Accountants, Fellow of Australian Society of Certified Practising
Accountants, Associate of the Australian Institute of Bankers and a member of the
Malaysian Institute of Management. He also attended advanced management programs
at Manchester Business School, INSEAD and London Business School. He has more
than 30 years of experience in accounting, management consulting and senior
managerial positions in local and multinational Public Listed companies. Currently,
he is the Executive Director of Malaysian Management Consultants Sdn Bhd.

Dato’ Dr. Halim bin Shafie
Director
Aged 52, was first appointed to the Board on 24 November 2000. Prior to this,
he was Alternate to the former Director, Tan Sri Datuk Nuraizah bt Abdul Hamid from
March 1999 to October 2000. He obtained a Diploma in System Analysis and design
from the National Institute of Public Administration (INTAN), a Certificate in
Management Education from the Indian Institute of Management, Ahmedabad India,
Bachelor of Economics (Hons) from the University of Malaya (1972), Masters in Public
and International Affairs from the University of Pittsburgh, USA (1980) and a Doctorate
in Information Transfer from Syracuse University, USA (1988).

Ir. Prabahar N. K. Singam
Director
Aged 40, was appointed to the Board on 23 June 2000. He is an engineer by
profession and has a Bachelor of Science (Civil Engineering) degree from Portsmouth
Polytechnic, United Kingdom. He is also a member of the Board of Engineers Malaysia,
Institute of Engineers Malaysia and ENSEARCH, with more than 15 years of experience
in the civil engineering sector, especially in the areas of consultancy, contracting,
project management and project financing.

YB. Dato’ Ir. Haji Mohd Zin bin Mohamed
Director
Aged 47, was appointed to the Board on 22 May 2000. He is a civil engineer by
profession, having obtained his bachelors and masters both from Bradley University,
United States. He has served various government bodies and is currently on the
University Teknologi Mara (UiTM) Board of Directors. He is also a member of the
Malaysian Institute of Engineers (MIEM) and the Board of Engineers of Malaysia. He
is actively involved in politics as a Member of Parliament for Shah Alam and the
deputy head of the UMNO Shah Alam Division.
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He has held several positions in the Government sector, including Assistant
Secretary at the Ministry of Education. He served as Program Co-ordinator for the
National Computer Training Center at INTAN, and as Director of the Information
Technology Division of the Malaysian Administrative Modernisation and Management
Planning Unit (MAMPU) in the Prime Minister’s Department. He served as the Director
of INTAN before becoming Deputy Secretary General, Communications and Multimedia,
Ministry of Energy, Communications and Multimedia.

Tan Poh Keat
Director
Aged 65, was appointed to the Board on 29 August 2000. He has an engineering
background with a Bachelor of Engineering (Electrical) degree and Master of
Engineering degree both from Auckland University under the Colombo Plan
Scholarship. He joined Jabatan Telekom Malaysia (JTM) in 1962 as an engineer and
has served in various appointments, the last being Deputy Director General.
Subsequently he joined Telekom Malaysia as Director, Network Services and retired at
the end of 1991. Currently, he is an independent consultant to a number of local and
international companies.
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Mohammad Zanudin bin Ahmad Rasidi
Alternate Director
Aged 47, has served the Ministry of Finance for seventeen years, an opportunity
that has given him wide corporate and government experiences. He began his career
with the Treasury in 1984 as Assistant Secretary in the Economic and International
Division. After four years, he was assigned to the Tax Analysis Division where he was
directly involved in formulating policies and strategies for budget proposals and then
was promoted as Principal Assistant Secretary in 1998. He was transferred to the Public
Enterprise, Privatisation and Minister of Finance Incorporated Coordination Division as
Principal Assistant Secretary in November 2000, a position he holds until today.
He was appointed as the Alternate Director to Dato’ Abdul Majid Haji Hussein
on 12 December 2000. Prior to this, he was Alternate to the former Director, Datuk Dr.
Syed Muhamad bin Syed Abdul Kadir from December 1999 to December 2000. He has
a Bachelor of Economics from University Kebangsaan Malaysia and a Master of Public
Management from Carnegie-Mellon University, United States. He also has successfully
completed the Harvard International Tax Program at the Harvard University in 1992.

Suriah bt. Abd Rahman
Alternate Director
Aged 52, was appointed to the Board on 24 November 2000 as Alternate Director
to Dato’ Dr. Halim Shafie. She holds a Bachelor of Arts (Hons) from University of Malaya
and a Master of Arts from the University of Leeds, United Kingdom. She began her
career in the public service as an Assistant Secretary in Treasury and rose to the position
of Principal Assistant Secretary in the Government Procurement Management Division.
She then served various Ministries and Government Agencies including the
Social Economic Research Unit, Prime Minister’s Department, Ministry of Housing and
Local Government, Malaysian Institute of Maritime Affairs, Public Service Department
and Implementation Coordination Unit of the Prime Minister’s Department before
assuming her current position as Deputy Secretary General 1, Ministry of Energy,
Communications and Multimedia as of 1 November 2000.
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The Board of Directors is committed to ensuring the highest standards of corporate
governance are observed throughout the Group so that the affairs of the Group are conducted
with integrity and professionalism with the objective of safeguarding shareholders’ investment
and ultimately enhancing shareholder value.
Currently, steps are being taken to prepare the Group to implement the Malaysian Code on
Corporate Governance (“the Code”) best practices and to fulfill the provisions of the new listing
requirements of the Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange (“the KLSE Listing Requirements”)
pertaining to the Code which become mandatory by 1 June 2001.

“managing with integrity,
transparency and accountability
– intrinsic components in the
preservation of shareholder value”
THE BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BALANCE

An experienced Board consisting of members with a
wide range of business, financial, technical and public service
background, leads and controls the Group. This brings depth
and diversity in expertise and perspective to the leadership of
a highly regulated and challenging telecommunication business.

The composition of the Board is balanced between
Executive and Non-Executive Directors. Currently, the Board
consists of twelve (12) members, comprising a Non-Executive
Chairman, two (2) Executive Directors and nine (9) NonExecutive Directors, out of which six (6) are Independent.
Two (2) of the Non-Executive Directors have each appointed
an Alternate Director. A brief biography of each Director is
presented on pages 20 to 26.

Board meetings are held at regular intervals with
additional meetings taking place as necessary. In total the
Board met fifteen (15) times during the year. The Board has
delegated certain responsibilities to Board Committees, which
operate within clearly defined terms of reference. The Board
Committees include the Board Nominating and Remuneration
Committee, Board Audit Committee, Board Tender Committee,
Board Finance and Planning Committee and Board ESOS
Committee. The Chairmen of the various Committees report
the outcome of Committee meetings to the Board and
such reports are incorporated as part of the minutes of the
Board meetings.

Following the appointment of new Directors to the
Board, an induction programme is arranged to facilitate their
understanding of the operations of the Group as well as the
products and services offered by the Group.
The Executive Directors are generally responsible for
making and implementing operational decisions whilst the
Non-Executive Directors support the skills and experience of
the Executive Directors, contributing to the formulation of
policy and decision-making through their knowledge and
experience of other businesses and sectors.
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The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive are
separate with clear responsibilities divided between them to
ensure balance of power and authority.
The Independent Non-Executive Directors, are of the
calibre necessary to carry sufficient weight in Board decisions.
Together they play an important role in ensuring that the
strategies proposed by the management are fully deliberated
and examined, taking into account the long term interest of
the shareholders, employees, customers, and the many
communities in which the Group conducts its business.
In accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, all Directors who are appointed by the Board
are subject to election by the shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting subsequent to their appointment.

INTEGRITY

The Articles of Association of the Company provides
that at least one third of the remaining Directors are subject
to re-election by rotation at each Annual General Meeting.
An amendment is being incorporated to the Articles of
Association to provide that Executive Directors also rank
for re-election by rotation as provided in the KLSE Listing
Requirements.

SUPPLY OF INFORMATION TO THE BOARD
Prior to each Board meeting, Directors are sent an
agenda and a full set of Board papers for each agenda item to
be discussed. An electronic document management system
has been established to enable efficient, secure and speedy
dissemination of information papers to the Directors before
Board meetings to facilitate informed decision making process.
All Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretaries who are responsible for ensuring
that Board procedures are followed.
The Board Finance and Planning Committee,
consisting of five (5) members from the Board, review a
monthly performance report and the said review is reported
to the Board at Board meetings. The performance reports
which are furnished to the Committee well in advance of
each Committee meeting, include a comprehensive review
and analysis of major business and financial issues, customer
satisfaction indices, market share, key business indicators,
product and service quality.
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THE BOARD NOMINATING &
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Board has established a Nominating and
Remuneration Committee in November 2000, consisting of
four (4) Non-Executive Directors, out of which three (3) are
Independent. The Chairman of the Committee is Dato’ Ir.
Muhammad Radzi Haji Mansor.
The Committee is responsible for recommending to
the Board, candidates for directorship on the Board of the
Company and its Group as well as membership of all other
Board Committees. In making its recommendations, the
Committee considers candidates from the Management for
directorship in its Group of companies as proposed by the
Chief Executive.
In addition, the Committee is responsible for establishing
a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on
remuneration of Executive and Non-Executive Directors.
The Nominating & Remuneration Committee has the
authority to examine a particular issue and report back to the
Board with recommendations. Hence the determination of
remuneration packages of Directors is a matter for the Board as
a whole and individuals are required to abstain from discussion
on their own remuneration. The Committee met once during the
year following its inception in November 2000.

THE BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Board Audit Committee comprises five (5) NonExecutive Directors out of which four (4) are Independent.
Dato’ Dr. Mohd Munir Abdul Majid, an Independent NonExecutive Director is the Chairman of this Committee. The
composition and terms of reference of the Committee are
stated on pages 30 to 31.
The Board Audit Committee met eight (8) times during
the year. The External Auditors, the Financial Controller and
Head of Internal Audit Division were in attendance at all the
meetings. The Audit Committee reviews quarterly financial
results, issues of accounting policy and presentation for
external financial reporting, monitors the work of the internal
audit function and ensures an objective and professional
relationship is maintained with the external auditors.
Discussions are carried out between the Board Audit
Committee with management on actions taken on problem
areas identified by Board members or the internal and external
audit reports.

The Committee has full access to the auditors both
internally and externally who in turn have access at all times
to the Chairman of the Committee.

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Group values dialogues with investors. The
Chairman and the Chief Executive have held discussions with
analysts and shareholders immediately after announcement of
the half-year and full year financial results to the Kuala
Lumpur Stock Exchange. Presentations have been made
to explain the Group’s strategy, performance and major
developments. However, any information that may be regarded
as undisclosed material information about the Group will not
be given to any single shareholder.
The Investor Relations Unit has an active programme
of contact with institutions and brokers which involves not
only presentations at the time of the announcement of the
Group’s interim results but also regular dialogue with major
institutional investors. The Group publishes documentation
used at the time of these briefings through the Internet.
A website (www.telekom.com.my) has been established
for access of information by shareholders. The Investor
Relations Unit also consistently and proactively, up-dates
investors and fund managers on the operations and activities
of the Group by e-mail. The Group participates actively in
investors’ conferences overseas, involving presentations on
developments within the Group from the investors’ perspective.
The Annual General Meeting is the principal forum
for dialogue with private shareholders. At each Annual General
Meeting, the Board presents the progress and performance of
the business and encourages shareholders to participate in the
question and answer session. The Executive Directors and
the Chairmen of all the Board Committees are in attendance
to respond to shareholders’ questions during the meeting.

The Directors have a general responsibility for ensuring
that the Company and the Group keep accounting records
and financial statements, which disclose with reasonable
accuracy the financial position of the Company and the Group.
Efforts are made to ensure that such financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 1965, approved accounting
standards in Malaysia and other regulatory provisions.
The statement of Directors pursuant to section 169 of
the Companies Act 1965 is set out on page 167 of this
annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL
The Directors recognise their responsibility for the
maintenance of a system of internal control and reviewing its
effectiveness. As with any such system, controls can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The Group is continuously looking into
the adequacy and integrity of its system of internal controls.
In addition to its review of the scope and results
of the audit and the activities of the external and internal
auditors, the Board Audit Committee terms of reference
include responsibility for overseeing internal controls,
including operational and financial control, business ethics,
risk management and compliance.
The Board has continued with its ongoing review of
the key commercial and financial risks facing the Group
together with other general risks such as those relating to
compliance with laws and regulations.
The Board has established clear lines of accountability
and documented delegations of authority that set out the
proposed actions which need to be referred to the Board for
its prior approval. Internal procedures are set out in a series
of standard operating practice manuals to ensure clear
accountabilities and control procedures are in place for the
business units.

FINANCIAL REPORTING
The Directors are required by the Companies Act
1965 to ensure that financial statements prepared for each
financial year give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and the Group. The Directors consider that
in presenting the financial statements, the Group has used
appropriate accounting policies, consistently applied and
supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s budget and cash
flow forecast for the year and outlined projections for the
two (2) subsequent years. The budgeting process includes
the preparation of budgets by operating units, which are
approved at a management committee level and ultimately
by the full Board. Budget results are monitored against the
budget on a regular basis and in the event of major variances,
management will take appropriate action.

accountability
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COMPOSITION
The Committee and the Chairman shall be appointed by the Board of Directors and shall consist of at
least three (3) Non-Executive Directors, a majority of whom are Independent. The Chairman of the Committee
shall be an Independent Non-Executive Director. The Secretary of the Committee shall be the Head of Internal
Audit Division.

audit Committee

MEETINGS
The Committee shall meet not less than four (4) times a year and report to the Board of Directors.
The Committee meetings shall be planned to coincide with the audit cycle and the timing of publication of
financial statements. The quorum of the Committee meetings shall consist of at least of three (3) members,
majority of whom are Independent.

AUTHORITY
The Committee shall have the authority to request any information it seeks as relevant to its activities
from any employee of the Company and the Group. All employees are directed to cooperate with any request
made by the Committee.
Dato’ Abdul Majid Haji Hussein
Non-Executive Director
YB. Joseph Salang Gandum
Independent Non-Executive Director

TERMS OF REFERENCE

Dato’ Dr. Mohd Munir Abdul Majid
Independent Non-Executive Director –
Chairman

Haji Khairuddin Jamaluddin
Secretary/Group Chief Auditor
(effective 1 January 2001)

The Committee shall have direct access to the Company’s Auditors and provide a link between the
Auditors and the Board. It is also authorised to take such independent professional advice it considers
necessary to investigate any activity within its terms of reference.

Responsible to the Board of Directors for the following in its role to ensure proper management of
the business operations in compliance with statutory obligations, policies, procedures, regulations and prudent
business practices:-

Lim Kheng Guan
Independent Non-Executive Director
Ir. Prabahar N. K. Singam
Independent Non-Executive Director

1.

To consider the appointment of the external Auditor, the audit fee and any question of resignation or
dismissal.

2.

To review with external Auditor before the audit commences the nature and scope of the audit and their
audit plan.

3.

To
–
–
–
–

4.

To discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim and final audits and any matter the auditor
may wish to discuss (in the absence of the management wherever necessary).

5.

To review the external Auditor's management letter and management's response.

6.

To do the following:
– review the adequacy of the scope, functions and resources of the internal audit function and that it
has the necessary authority to carry out its work;
– review the internal audit programme and results of the internal audit process and where necessary to
ensure that the appropriate action is taken on the recommendations of the internal audit function;
– review any appraisal or assessment of the performance of members of the internal audit function;
– inform itself of resignations of internal audit staff members and provide the resigning staff member
an opportunity to submit his reasons for resigning.

7.

To review the adequacy and the integrity of the Company’s internal control systems and management
information systems, including systems for compliance with applicable laws, rules, directives and
guidelines.

8.

To propose best practices on disclosure in financial results and annual reports of the Company in line
with the principles set out in the Malaysian Code of Corporate Governance, other applicable laws, rules,
directives and guidelines.

9.

To propose that the management has in place an adequate system of risk management to safeguard the
Company's assets.

review the quarterly and year-end financial statements of the Company, focusing on:
Any changes in accounting policies and practices;
Significant adjustments arising from the audit;
The going concern assumption;
Compliance with accounting standards and other legal requirements.

10. To consider any related party transactions that may arise within the Company or Group;
11. To consider the major findings of internal investigations and management's response;
12. To consider and examine any other matters as defined by the Board.
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management Committee
Dato’ Dr. Md Khir
bin Abdul Rahman
Chief Executive

Dato’ Dr. Abdul Rahim
bin Haji Daud
Executive Director/
Chief Operating Officer, TelCo

Nor Hizam bin Hashim
Chief Operating Officer, ServiceCo
As Chief Operating Officer of ServiceCo Nor Hizam bin Hashim was
primarily responsible for the management of non-core businesses in the Company.
An Accountant by profession, he holds a Bachelors Degree in Commerce from the
University of Western Australia. He joined Telekom Malaysia in April 1988 as
Chief Accountant and was subsequently promoted to the position of Senior General
Manager of Corporate Finance prior to his appointment as the Chief Operating
Officer, ServiceCo.
In 1997, he was assigned to Telkom SA Ltd. in South Africa (TSA) where
he assumed the duties of the Executive Director (Chief Financial Officer). At TSA
he was involved in transforming the Company into a world class international
Telco. He is also a director of several subsidiary companies of Telekom Malaysia.
Prior to joining Telekom Malaysia, he acquired senior management experience in
finance, marketing and general management in three multinational companies
namely ESSO, Unilever and Raleigh where he was actively involved in turning
around an ailing public listed company.
Nor Hizam was appointed as the Chief Operating Officer, TM International
Ventures, effective 1 February 2001.

Dato’ Syed Mustaffa bin Syed Ali
Senior Vice President,
Network Services, TelCo
Dato’ Syed Mustaffa bin Syed Ali
holds a Bachelors degree in Electronic
Engineering and joined Jabatan Telekom
Malaysia (JTM) in 1969 as Assistant
Controller of Telecoms. He was appointed
as General Manager, Northern Region in
1988 and held the post as Senior General
Manager, Support Services in 1993 before
assuming the post of Senior Vice
President, Network Services, TelCo in
July 1996.
Dato’ Syed Mustaffa was appointed
as the Senior Vice President, Corporate
Human Resource & Development,
effective 1 February 2001.

Dato’ Dr. Ir. Haji Mohd Khir
bin Harun
Senior Vice President,
Major Business and Government, TelCo
Dato’ Dr. Ir. Haji Mohd Khir bin
Harun holds a B.Sc (Hons) degree in
Electrical Engineering and Electronics,
M.Sc. in Communications Engineering
and a Doctorate in Electronic Engineering.
He started his career with Jabatan
Telekom Malaysia (JTM) in 1973 as a
Telecommunications Engineer. He was
seconded to the Ministry of Energy,
Telecommunications and Posts in 1983 for
a period of two years as Technical
Adviser. In 1989 he was appointed as the
General Manager Mobile Services
Division and in 1993 took up the post of
Senior General Manager Mobile Services.
He was appointed as Senior General
Manager, TelCo Strategy in 1995 and
later, in June 1996, he was made Senior
Vice President, Major Business and
Government.

Dato’ Abdul Halim bin Hussain
Senior Vice President,
Consumer and Business, TelCo
Dato’ Abdul Halim bin Hussain
holds a B.Sc. (Hons) degree in Electrical
Engineering from Brighton College of
Technology, United Kingdom. He joined
the Radio Operations and Local Network
Division of JTM in 1969 and in 1972
moved to the Transmission Division at
Telecom Training College where he
managed a number of training programmes.
In 1976 he took up the post of Controller
of Telecoms Sabah Region and in 1992
he was appointed as the General Manager
Southern Region. He was later appointed
as the General Manager for Marketing in
the Consumer and Business Division,
TelCo in 1995 before being promoted to
the post of Senior Vice President,
Cunsumer and Business in October 1996.
Dato’ Abdul Halim was appointed
as Head of the Change Management
Office, effective 1 February 2001.

Dato’ Dr. Ir. Haji Mohd Khir was
appointed the Chief Executive Officer,
Telekom Cellular Sdn. Bhd., effective
1 February 2001,
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Ibrahim bin Md. Nassir
Senior Vice President,
Corporate Human Resource

Haji Romli bin Hussin
Vice President,
Quality Management and Control

Ibrahim bin Md. Nassir joined
Telekom Malaysia in January 1995 as
Senior General Manager, Human Resource
and Administration and was promoted to
Senior Vice President, Corporate Human
Resource in July 1995. He served in the
capacity of Human Resource Director and
Training Manager in the private sector for
more than 20 years prior to joining
Telekom Malaysia.

Haji Romli bin Hussin, a qualified
Accountant with 22 years experience as
Auditor assumed his current position in
July 1995. He holds a Bachelor of
Economics (Hons) Degree and Diploma in
Accountancy from University of Malaya,
as well as a Masters Degree in Science
(Accounting) from University of New
Hampshire, United States. He joined
Telekom Malaysia in 1987 as the General
Manager, Internal Audit and later held the
post of Senior General Manager, Internal
Audit/Quality Management and Control
in 1993.

Ibrahim was appointed as the Chief
Operating Officer, TM ServiceCo, effective
1 February 2001.

Dr. Idris bin Ibrahim
Vice President, Network Development

Haji Hamis bin Hasan
Vice President, Financial Controller

Baharum bin Salleh
General Manager, Corporate Strategy

Dr. Idris bin Ibrahim holds a B.E.
(Hons) degree in Electrical and Electronic
Engineering, an M.E. in Microwave
Communication Engineering and a
Doctorate in Microwave Engineering
from the University of Sheffield, United
Kingdom. He started his career with
Jabatan Telekom Malaysia (JTM) in 1974
and has held various positions in the areas
of engineering, marketing and human
resource management. In 1993 he was
appointed General Manager Northern
Region and later held the post as General
Manager, Major Business (Sales) in 1995
and as the Vice President, Integrated
Network Planning in 1996 before he was
made Vice President, Network Development
in August 1997.

Haji Hamis bin Hasan is the Vice
President, Financial Controller for Finance.
He has a Bachelors degree in Economics
Accounting and a Diploma in Accountancy
obtained from the University of Malaya
in 1976. An Accountant by profession, he
joined Jabatan Telekom Malaysia in 1980.
Over the years, he has held a number of
positions in the Accounts, Finance, Credit
Management and Audit Divisions. He has
also served as the Chief Executive Officer
of two Telekom Malaysia subsidiaries
prior to assuming his current position in
July 1999.

Baharum bin Salleh holds a degree in
Electronics Engineering from the University
of Bath, England and Masters in Business
Administration (MBA) from the University
of Leicester, England. As General Manager
of Corporate Strategy, he was mainly
responsible for the corporate business
direction and development of Telekom
Malaysia. He has been involved in the
telecommunication industry for almost
22 years.

Dr. Idris was appointed as the
Chief Operating Officer, TM TelCo,
effective 1 February 2001.

He started his career in operations
management in Malacca. In the middle
of 1980s he was mainly in project
management and later in marketing when
Telekom Malaysia was corporatised.
In the early 1990’s he was the Telekom
Malaysia Area Manager in Negeri Sembilan.
Baharum was appointed as the
Chief Operating Officer, TM Multimedia,
effective 1 February 2001.

Abdul Majid bin Abdullah
Acting Chief Operating Officer,
Telekom Multimedia
Abdul Majid bin Abdullah, holds a
degree in Electronics from University of
Southamptom, UK and B.Sc. degree in
Electrical Engineering from University
Technology Malaysia.
He was appointed as Acting Chief
Operating Officer (COO), Telekom
Multimedia (TMM) since July 1999 to
oversee the overall operation and
management of TMM since the departure
of the former COO. The job involved
managing TM’s ISP business, developing
new Online Interactive Multimedia and
various new E-Services (Commerce and
Applications Services) for Telekom
Malaysia.
Prior to that, he was seconded to
Multimedia Development Corporation
(MDC) MSC Project from November
1996 to October 1997 where he participated
with MSC Flagship Application development
team to coordinate international Web
Shapers to formulate and develop Electronic
Government Project of the MSC Flagship
Applications.
In his 23 years of service, he has
covered most of the key divisions within
the company from Regulatory Management,
Corporate Planning, TelCo Strategy,
Research and Development and Training
Divisions.
Abdul Majid was appointed as the
Vice President, Corporate Strategy and
Planning, effective 1 February 2001.
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Abdul Wahid bin Omar
Chief Financial Officer

Mat Rani bin Mohamad
Senior Vice President, Group Marketing

Abdul Wahid bin Omar joined
Telekom Malaysia on 1 March 2001 as
the Chief Financial Officer. He is
responsible for Telekom Malaysia Group’s
financial policy, direction and management.
Prior to joining Telekom Malaysia, he
served as the Director of Group Corporate
Services cum Divisional Director, Capital
Market & Securities of Amanah Capital
Partners Berhad, an investment banking
group in Malaysia. Abdul Wahid is a
member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (ACCA), United
Kingdom and Malaysian Institute of
Accountants (MIA).

Mat Rani bin Mohamad is the
Senior Vice President, Group Marketing.
He joined Telekom Malaysia in February
2001, bringing with him an extensive
marketing and sales experience after
spending over 27 years with 3 top
multinational companies – Beecham
Products (Far East), American Express
and Johnson & Johnson. Prior to joining
Telekom Malaysia he held the position of
Marketing Director for Asean region with
Johnson & Johnson.

During his previous employment,
he served as Chairman of Amanah Short
Deposits Berhad and the Association of
Discount Houses in Malaysia as well as
Director of Amanah Merchant Bank
Berhad and several other companies in
the financial services sector.
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Adnan bin Rofiee
Senior Vice President,
Major Business & Government

Tan Chian Khai
Senior Vice President,
Consumer and Business, TelCo

Adnan bin Rofiee graduated with a
Bachelors Degree in Electronic Engineering
from Brighton Polytechnic, United
Kingdom. His 24-year career in the
telecommunications industry started in
Jabatan Telekom Malaysia (JTM) in
1977, as a Planning Engineer, Customer
Access Network for Central Region.

Tan Chian Khai is the Senior Vice
President for Consumer and Business, TelCo,
effective from 1 February 2001.

After holding several positions in
JTM and later Telekom Malaysia, he was
appointed as the General Manager of the
Sarawak Operation Area in 1994. A year
later, Adnan was appointed as Head
of Major Business Unit, before being
transferred overseas in 1997 as
the Managing Director of Ghana
Telecommunication Co., one of Telekom
Malaysia’s associate companies.
In April 2000, he was selected to
head Telekom Cellular Sdn. Bhd. as its
Chief Executive Officer, before assuming
his current position in February 2001.

He is responsible for the development,
marketing and sales of Telekom Malaysia’s
products and services to the residential
and small enterprise customer segments.
He is also responsible for the customer
assistance service centre.
An engineer by profession, he
graduated with a B.Eng. (Hons.) degree
from the University of Liverpool, United
Kingdom in 1973. In his 27 years of
experience in the telecommunications
industry, he has held various positions
including telecommunications network
planning and development, network
implementation, network management
and operations, management of Telekom
Malaysia’s area office as well as marketing
and sales.
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Chairman’s

chairman’s Statement

Statement

As we enter the new millennium, the year 2000 was also my second year as
Chairman of Telekom Malaysia and I have the privilege to span the Company’s
progress from the 20th to the 21st century. It is from this perspective that I wish to
address you and put forth the future directions of your Company, since we have the
opportunity to capitalise on our strengths of the past and embrace the best of
tomorrow – a formula for our regeneration.
Change is constant and change is a challenge. But never before have we faced such tremendous
uncertainties as the world embarks on a momentous period of rapid and profound change, further compounded
with the twin forces of globalisation and technological development. In all my thirty-five years of being in the
telecommunications industry, never have I witnessed so much change at such speed. We now stand at the threshold
of a whole new millennium, one where Information Communication Technologies (ICT) offer immense possibilities

Dato’ Ir.
Muhammad Radzi
bin Haji Mansor

“the next generation
communications challenge”

Chairman

of countries competing on an open and hopefully, level playing field. Having identified ICT as the new engine
of growth, one that is critical for the future of our country, we at Telekom Malaysia now find ourselves as the
primary proponents of undertaking this mammoth task to ensure the success of this evolutionary change.
Hopefully we have already shed the worst of the economic crisis that plagued our country and economic
recovery is now well on track. The downturn made for a much less hospitable business climate from which we
in Telekom Malaysia also suffered. The year 2000 saw the last throes of the most severe recession this country
has known but from which thankfully we are emerging, and in your Company’s case, relatively unscathed
compared with many other large corporates and in better shape for the future.
The Company and the Group is currently undergoing a major corporate restructuring exercise, transforming
our old organization into a more contemporary set up, to gear ourselves more strategically for the much tougher
and more testing times ahead. The new organisation constitutes our first step towards becoming a next generation
communications company.
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Leading the way in meeting tomorrow’s
needs today, playing a critical role in
the development of a knowledge society

The desire to change must come from within and
from across the entire spectrum of the Company. Change
inevitably brings forth a certain degree of internal disruption,

Staying ahead with investments in leading technologies

more so where the process of rethinking and strategizing
how we should organize ourselves is not only time consuming
but also mind boggling. We want to do it correctly from all
perspectives. In this regard, I am indeed grateful for the
patience and perseverance of management and staff. I must
add that this change process will effectively take more than
a year as we intend to effect it in a transitionary manner to
ensure minimal disruption. The cooperation and support of
our employees in accepting these changes will further
augment our way forward.

We should see all this as a necessary process of
transformation from which we have already begun to emerge
leaner, fitter and better placed. We remain in the lead, not just
in Malaysia but in the region as an Internet Service Provider,
the proactive side of the business. We can still congratulate
ourselves on our technical and service excellence, which will
be relevant to survival in the telecommunications environment

There has also been changes at the Board level and
I take this opportunity to thank YBhg. Datuk Wira Mohamed
Said Mohamed Ali for the years he devoted as Director and
Chief Executive of Telekom Malaysia. In his place we welcome
YBhg. Dato’ Dr. Md Khir Abdul Rahman as our new Chief
Executive, to take the helm at this critical time of transition.
Together, we shall work towards setting new directions for
the Group and to propel Telekom Malaysia towards its new
destiny. I would like to extend my appreciation to the Directors
who are no longer with the Board, namely YBhg. Tan Sri
Datuk Nuraizah Abdul Hamid, YBhg. Datuk Dr. Syed
Muhamad Hj. Abdul Kadir, Mr. K.P. Ramanathan Menon,

of the future. In an industry like ours we are conditioned to
the relentless march of technology as a fact of life. This will
stand us in good stead when the scientific advances of the
New Age come at us, as Bill Gates said, “at the speed of
thought”. We have over the years gone some way to promote
the convergence in multimedia services made possible by the
undreamed of potential in digital technologies. But also as
never before we face the unexpected. The new Science of
Genomics for instance where we stand to be swept up in an
entirely new order of change. We are also in this vanguard of
Malaysian companies who have already ventured overseas
successfully, and are therefore better prepared for globalisation.

Tuan Haji Nasruddin Haji Alang Saidin, Tuan Haji Ahmad
Kamal Abdullah Al-Yafii, Mr. G. Kunaseelan and YBhg. Datuk
Ng Chiang Chin. Last year we also welcomed YBhg. Dato’
Dr. Mohd Munir Abdul Majid, YBhg. Dato’ Ir. Haji Mohd.
Zin Mohamed, YBhg. Dato’ Abdul Majid Haji Hussein,
Mr. Rosli Man, Mr. Ir. Prabahar Singam, Mr. Tan Poh Keat,
Mr. Lim Kheng Guan, Ms. Suriah Abd Rahman and
Mr. Mohammad Zanudin Ahmad Rasidi. We value your
support and professional contribution. There are new faces
too heading up the newly created business units. All of
which augurs well for bringing a fresh look and a revitalised
endeavour to the serious tasks before us.

The two areas that will mutually complement each
other in tomorrow’s world will be the Internet and education.
We look towards the day the nascent broadband high speed
Internet access will make its way into more homes and offices.
The “always on” aspect of broadband attracts consumers
because it brings a faster, more efficient online experience.

Globalisation is the next challenge. So far our best

In today’s world and more so in our business, survival

successes have been in South Africa, Sri Lanka and Bangladesh

is the name of the game. We not only have to contend with

where Malaysia is now perceived as an economic role model.

competition from within but also from globalisation. And as

Even our limited experience so far has initiated us rather

we move from the Old Economy to the New, the rejuvenated

abruptly into the new borderless world where time zones are

Telekom Malaysia after all its internal changes will possess

forgotten, emergency meetings called via teleconferencing at

agility, flexibility and responsiveness to changing market

the most inconvenient hours. It is an added pressure but all

conditions. Corporate culture is something that cannot be

part of the high powered and frenetic pace of life in the

recorded in the financials of the Company but it is an intrinsic

21st Century’s fast lane. We have to undergo a process of

and critical component that literally translates to greater

acculturalisation to operate in these new geographies. The

shareholder value when internalised. With this, may I assure

true determinant in any global ambition is acceptance by the

shareholders that we are moving – moving with confidence,

host country. Telekom Malaysia’s record demonstrates a high

not only for your benefit but for the entire nation.

degree of such acceptability. Our positive experience so far
puts us in prospecting mode, seeking other growth opportunities
in the wider global arena, where the preferred vehicle will be
strategic alliance. Here a reminder seems timely, The Telekom
Vision to become a world class player is targetted for the
year 2005. This dictates a degree of urgency in our mission.
DATO’ IR. MUHAMMAD RADZI BIN HAJI MANSOR

We are looking also to expand our intellectual capital. The
Multimedia University is progressing well and during the
year a second batch of 520 students graduated. Two of the
top graduates in BBA won the President’s Award. We seek
to attract the crème de la crème of Malaysian scholars as we
will require the correct human capital to be competitive in
the New Economy.

The path of success can never be achieved alone. Our

Chairman

achievements todate have been made possible only with the
support of all that we work with. Our plans for the future are
mere road maps where destinations can only be reached with
cooperation and teamwork. Our humble appreciation goes to
all, our shareholders, customers, the Government of Malaysia,
the relevant Ministries, business associates, both local and
foreign for their invaluable guidance and support and we look
forward to their continued assistance.
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Chief
Executive’s

chief executive’s Statement
OPENING REMARKS

Statement

My first year as Chief Executive of Telekom Malaysia Bhd has proven to be
both challenging and exciting. Telekom Malaysia is a great organisation and has seen
many successes over the years, with vast potential to be unleashed in the New
Economy. I would like to take this opportunity to thank my predecessor, Datuk Wira
Mohamed Said Mohamed Ali for his invaluable contribution to Telekom Malaysia and
assure all shareholders and employees of our mutual aspirations for the Group. In the
past 18 months, we reaffirmed our winning strategy towards Vision 2005 in face of
stiff competition; a strategy that demands that Telekom Malaysia will have to
fundamentally change the way we organise ourselves and run the businesses that we
are in. Our aim is to create a model environment for our employees, to deliver the
best in quality and services to our valued customers and to continue increasing
shareholder value in the new millennium.

Dato’ Dr.
Md Khir bin
Abdul Rahman

“we are ready for change;
we are ready to change”

Chief Executive

Our foundations are strong – we command 95% market share in fixed line services with over 4.5 million
customers, over 70% market share as an internet service provider with close to 900,000 subscribers, which makes
us the leader not only in Malaysia but in South East Asia. In the mobile sector, we managed to reach 20% market
share. The network providing these services spans and is arguably the most comprehensive nation-wide. With a
market capitalisation of RM34.9 billion at the end of 2000, Telekom Malaysia Bhd makes up around 10% of the
Composite Index and is tracked closely. We are proud to have been the first ever recipient of the year 2000 Kuala
Lumpur Stock Exchange's Award of Excellence for the Trading/Services Sector.
Yet, in the current throes of the telecommunications industry, whilst we maintain market leadership in
traditional services, we must also defend it effectively. Whilst we have internet dominance, we must make good
the value-added services to ride on it and whilst we have a piece of the mobile market pie, clearly we must strive
to be number one.
We have indeed a very serious task ahead as we undertake the implementation of this crucial migration plan
towards being a truly integrated provider of information and communications services. I am heartened by the enthusiasm
and dedication of the citizens of Telekom Malaysia in giving full support to our achievement of this goal.
It is with this in mind that we present the highlights and the results of our performance in 2000.
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2000 GROUP PERFORMANCE
It's a brave new world.....
The telecommunications industry world-wide continues
to lead the globalisation of the idealised connected society,
with monumental implications on all aspects of life – business,
education, medicine, knowledge, lifestyles across national
borders and cultures. Liberalisation and convergence of the
industry has ensured a continued seamless provision of
access and communication related applications across a
number of mediums; desktop, laptop or palmtop, wired or
wireless, narrow or broadband, affordable or premium, to the
increasingly sophisticated consumer.
Despite this “always on” mentality, the almost virtual
world obsession with dotcoms and mobile “WAP” (Wireless
Application Protocol) mania suffered a jolt back to reality in
2000 when bottom line performance did not meet hyped up
expectations. It became quite apparent that good traditional

T E L E K O M M A L AY S I A B E R H A D

In Malaysia, where liberalisation can still be considered
as in its infancy, there are pertinent issues to address given
global experience thus far. The regulatory environment needs
to clearly define the guidelines and framework within which
all players are on a level playing field. The issues of Tariff
Rebalancing, Access, Interconnection, Licensing and Spectrum
need to be thoughtfully addressed in order to best plan and
allocate the nation’s resources in this new regime. Malaysia,
though still considered a developing country, is blessed with

Putrajaya, in the MSC and seat of the Federal Government where Telekom Malaysia offers the best in technology towards an e-government

world class infrastructure and Telekom Malaysia is proud to
have been instrumental in the communications infrastructure

all our previous records. Mobile customers grew 953,000 or

On our network, in 2000 we have mainly concentrated

build-up, especially in the Multimedia Super Corridor. It is

118 per cent and our TMNet subscribers to 856,000, an

on building for broadband, which includes our data COINS

our duty as a leading national service provider to help the

increase of 114 per cent. Fixed line customers also continued

Global and internet protocol (IP) platforms, high speed

government realise the dream of making Malaysia a major

to grow, albeit at a slower rate. Still, we saw DEL growth to

internet and in expanding (Point of Presence) POPs reach,

telecommunications hub. However, we look to the authorities

4.6 million, showing an increase of 4.6 per cent. In increasing

notwithstanding our normal expenditure for growth and

to ensure that the necessary financial, commercial and legal

our customer base substantially, certainly there was a price

quality improvement. We have also beefed up our cellular

environment is prime for attracting further economic activity

to pay.

indoor coverage and upgraded the network in urban areas,

into the country. For Malaysia, it not then the question of
bandwidth, nor of kilometres of fibre but rather in attracting

whilst continuing to increase reach. The network has one
Mobile acquisition and churn management costs were

main aim and that is to become a low cost provider and we

thus necessarily high in 2000 but our mobile operations were

will not hesitate to use any means by which to deliver this,

nation, as we venture tentatively but assuredly into these

doubly hit by our executive decision to write down our

fixed or wireless.

identified growth areas of internet and mobile multimedia

losses from Mobikom Sdn. Bhd. This was essential for the

business sense still ruled the New Economy. These are
valuable lessons for Telekom Malaysia, and indeed the

demand in traffic to match our supply.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW – GOING FOR GROWTH

cellular strategic alignment where we are to fully concentrate

Growth in an industry like ours is not just a matter

Telekom Malaysia is very well aware of the mounting

on one brand platform and network development, that is on

of markets and expansion but it is inspired by the efforts of

Moreover, the World Economy seemed to have peaked

pressures in these current prevailing circumstances. Our

TM Touch, our GSM 1800 service. Soon we will migrate all

Research and Development (R&D) to develop and deploy

in 2000 and USA in particular is bracing itself for a softer

performance in 2000 clearly follows the trend we have

the current Mobikom customers to TM Touch in order to

new technology. Telekom Malaysia’s R&D Division endeavours

landing this year. Undoubtedly, this will have some impact

predicted over the last few years. Profits from the core fixed

consolidate all our mobile subscribers to better service them

to be a premier research centre for optical fibre and high

on our economy, which has just got back on track, though

line business continue to ensure a stable income stream.

in the future.

performance monolithic circuit (MMIC) devices contributing

thankfully not to the extent that we have suffered in recent

However, in the past two years especially, we have strengthened

years. We should also note that the telecommunications

the Group focus on mobile and multimedia to create and

Telekom Malaysia’s Group bottom line was also hit

Telekom Malaysia has allocated 1 per cent of its gross annual

equipment industry, especially mobile, has also shown signs

pro-actively manage the expected rapid consumer migration

by poorer performing overseas ventures in 2000, but for

revenue as a grant towards this. In February 2000, APT Net

of weakening in the past year, indicating perhaps that the

from fixed to mobile and Internet Protocol (IP). Group

events quite out of our control. At home, we have made

Version 1.0 became a registered trademark. In November

phenomenal global mobile growth of recent years may also

revenue and profit after tax were recorded at RM8.8 billion

steady recovery from the recession but unfortunately the

2000, the R&D Division was awarded the Anugerah Ketua

be reaching a plateau. The issue of 3G (Third Generation)

and RM705 million respectively.

same cannot be said for the other countries in which we

Setiausaha Negara on the collaboration between the Public

value-added services.

to the fast evolving IT and telecommunications industries.

have investments. The profit contribution from our overseas

and the Private Sectors for the joint project with the University

price paid just for the licences to operate. All these should

We took a hard view. We knew we were playing

ventures was lower from the previous year due to slower

of Malaya to develop an Optical Amplifier. I would like to

not affect us to any great extent, due to the fact that at home,

laggard in the mobile market and that at the beginning of the

economic growth and currency depreciation in Africa.

congratulate the Division on such a promising start to its

our tele-penetration rates across the board – fixed, mobile

year, our ISP market share was almost equivalent to that of

Nevertheless, we see this only a short-term setback and reiterate

endeavours and look forward to other tangible and gratifying

and internet, remain low. There is still time for proper research

our nearest competitor. The course of action was set. As a

our long-term commitment to our international strategy.

developments in the future.

and planning, and room for increased market share and

Group, we had to go for growth, with encouraging results.

strong profit growth.

The total customer growth we have seen this year surpasses

cellular services is also being revisited in light of the high
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The other forward looking policy involves initiatives

What does it take to succeed in the New Economy?

The restructuring begins with the establishment of

The change programme to create a new performance

in support of the Multimedia Super Corridor (MSC). Telekom

For a next generation telco, clearly three things remain key;

5 independent business units. In addition to Telekom Cellular

culture, and put in place the systems and processes necessary

Malaysia’s expertise, resources, products and services are

Customer Relationship Management (CRM), Knowledge

Sdn. Bhd., an existing subsidiary, Telekom Malaysia will

for success, is already underway. We are looking at an

invaluable in promoting MSC as a regional information hub.

Management and Financial Excellence. Moving forward in

establish independent subsidiaries for TM Multimedia, TM

18-month time horizon for most of the changes to be

Already a number of exciting projects have resulted. Various

this New Economy, Telekom Malaysia needs to be quick,

International Ventures and TM ServiceCo. TelCo will remain

implemented, under the purview of an established Change

service packages have been put together for MSC Status

responsive and customer focussed. Thus, building momentum

as a strategic business unit operating independently within

Management Office; driven personally by myself and fully

companies with competitive tariffs. In July the MSC Projects

for fast growth in a culture of innovation. We need to expand

Telekom Malaysia. The Chief Executive Officer of TM

endorsed by the Board of Directors. We have made an

Division launched the TM Blockbuster promotional offer

our reach to our customers via e-commerce enabling; for

Cellular Sdn. Bhd. and the Chief Operating Officers of the

extremely promising start, and although we know that the

to woo MSC status companies to move into Cyberjaya. Its

instance moving transactions increasingly online for customer

other four to be incorporated subsidiaries took up their

road ahead won't be easy, we are determined to achieve the

State Net project secured contracts worth RM3.7 million

convenience and operational efficiency. Moreover, we need to

appointments effective 1 February 2001. We are also proud

transformation necessary for Telekom Malaysia to survive

during the year with the State Governments of Melaka,

deliver results to our bottom line. Our strength in the past has

to announce the appointments of two senior positions at the

and thrive in an increasingly competitive environment.

Pahang and Penang. Customised networking solutions such

been network and technology centric, it is now time to

Corporate Centre in Marketing and Finance, marking a new

as MAMPU Net and Putrajaya Command Centre links, worth

translate that into market savvy, leveraging on and building

infusion of talent from the market into the Group.

RM3.8 million per annum will become operational during

upon the wealth of expertise within Telekom Malaysia while

the second quarter of 2001. The Internet Data Centre (IDC)

at the same time tapping top talent from the industry.

set up in September 2000 can house 3,500 servers.

Let me end by thanking the Board of Directors,
management and our people who make Telekom Malaysia

We believe the restructuring will enable us to operate

the formidable Group it is today, for their contribution and

our businesses in the best possible manner, creating better

hard work but mostly for their unwavering faith and dedication.

We believe we have a winning strategy. Telekom

returns and continuing shareholder value. Telco, cellular and

The measure of these new services is a test of quality.

Malaysia is embarking on a well timed restructuring

multimedia, for example, should not be identically run: they

It is a brave new world for Telekom Malaysia, with

Sirim’s ISO 9001 award to the MSC Project Division is an

programme, which will enable us to continue to be the leading

are different businesses, and they need different incentives,

uncharted territories to conquer and many stakes to reclaim.

assured performance guarantee to its MSC Status clients, in

telecommunications provider in the country. This will involve

performance cultures and management processes. We want to

We are ready for change; we are ready to change.

line with Telekom Malaysia’s tradition of professionalism

disaggregating the current structure, to allow the divisions

unleash them, provide them with optimal operating conditions

and best practise.

within Telekom Malaysia to function freely, flexibly and

and push them as far as they can go. We have plans to list these

competitively in an increasingly challenging marketplace.

separate companies in the future, and this will undoubtedly
unlock a tremendous amount of value for our shareholders.

THE MIGRATION TOWARDS A NEXT
GENERATION TELCO

Mobile communications-changing the way we live today

In Telco, we will focus aggressively on the fast-growing

Telekom Malaysia today enjoys a leading position in

data business by creating a dedicated data unit and in leveraging

many businesses but significant changes are well underway

on the strength of our vast network and reach of customers.

in the telecommunications industry that are creating new
opportunities but simultaneously also require us to reinvent

In mobile, we will be one integrated company with

ourselves. Being the leading fixed line provider remains an

“one brand”, TM Touch and one single core platform, GSM

important achievement, but we must also aim for the same

1800 – delivering the best in network quality and coverage.

leadership positions in our mobile and multimedia businesses,
both in Malaysia and in the region. In particular the speed

In multimedia, we will maintain our ISP leadership

with which cellular and Internet services have transformed

position by focussing on enhanced consumer multimedia

our lifestyle clearly indicates the need for us to assert a stronger

services and the delivery of value added e-commence products.

presence in these areas in order to maintain our unique status
as a full information and communications provider.

In international ventures, we will maintain our global
presence; with new focus on regional expansion.
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Touch...

...and you will be

global
Our world

is now a smaller place.
Where

And

distance

borders

are mere demarcation lines.

is no longer measured on turbo-charged cars or even jet airplanes.
But from the

speed

in which we can keep in touch.
From satellite links to our

We no longer need to go

everywhere

to take care of business.

We can be everywhere without going

Ever.

anywhere.

broadband COINS

business networks,

Telekom Malaysia has the solution to ensure that
your business has the advantage of

world-class global connectivity.

Right here, at home.
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operations Review

TelCo

The new millennium saw Telekom Malaysia facing continued and increasing competition.
However, diligent and dedicated teamwork produced numerous initiatives including the provision
of new products and a high standard of service at an attractive price to contribute towards a
successful and meaningful year of operations.

“our customers are the final
arbiters of our business success, and
we must migrate to a level where we
continuously exceed their expectations”
Dato’ Dr. Abdul Rahim
bin Haji Daud
Executive Director

A turn around in the country’s economic activity

Malaysia’s economic recovery has indeed helped to

helped TelCo increased its sales performance to an encouraging

increase sales performance. For the year 2000, TelCo recorded

level, higher than originally estimated.

an increase in its gross sales by 8.6% to RM7,981 million
compared to RM7,375 million in 1999.

Business strategies and action plans designed to
combat aggressive competition and the Asian economic crisis

Telephone services which remained the core business

proved effective and I am pleased to say that the results

of the company, generated 67.2% or RM5,363 million of the

achieved also stemmed from the strong support received

total gross sales for the year 2000. Apart from the increase

from each and every employee. In this regard, I would like

in the number of telephone customers, the increase in usage

to record my deepest appreciation for their tireless and

time was also a major factor that contributed to better sales

committed contribution to the Company.

revenue. Average revenue per line for the year 2000 was
RM1,183.00, an increase of 4.1% compared to 1999.

It is undeniable that telecommunications will be the
driving platform for the growth and development of the

Gross sales from data services for the year 2000 was

nation’s socio-economy, particularly towards attaining a

RM1,319 million, up by 10.7% compared to 1999. This

knowledge-based economy. Hence, as a responsible corporate

contributed 16.5% of the total TelCo gross sales. Leased

citizen, Telekom Malaysia and TelCo in particular, have

services saw a 7.5% growth while COINS (Corporate

undertaken a number of projects and programme which are

Information Superhighway) services, which is the major data

not only of national interest but also have great future

service, reached an encouraging growth of 81.1%.

commercial potentials. All these are in line with the country’s
policies, especially in addressing the social gap in terms of
telecommunications service facilities between the urban and
the rural communities.
Dato’ Dr. Abdul Rahim was made Executive Director,
Corporate Strategy and Development
effective 1 February 2001
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The numerous promotions conducted by the company

The nation’s positive economic growth and development

I am pleased to note that the number of waiters

In line with the development of information technology,

during the year, as well as the expansion of business

had a direct impact on TelCo’s business performance. Profit

for telephone services declined by 1.0% from 99,000 as at

TelCo spent about RM314 million or 16.4% for the development

activities among companies in the country, resulted in an

Before Interest and Tax (PBIT) for the year 2000 was

31 December 1999 to 98,000 as at 31 December 2000.

and expansion of its IT and computerised systems.

increase of 8.7% or RM539 million in gross sales from

RM2,702 million showing a growth rate of 14.5% over

TelCo is committed to reduce this number further, especially

international inpayments compared to 1999.

1999. TelCo expects that this growth trend will continue in

those in the rural areas, through the use of new wireless

the coming years.

technology that is more economical and faster to install.

Until 31 December 2000, the total capacity of local
exchanges nation-wide was 7.97 million lines. The number

It is Telekom Malaysia’s policy not to take the needs

of available local access lines for customers was 8.9 million

service contributed RM386 million or 4.8% to total gross

Malaysia. The increase of 203,546 customers or 4.6% in the

network development, acquisition of new computer systems

latest technology development requirement of a faster, high-

sales. From this amount, TM’s public telephone service

year 2000 raised the cumulative total of telephone customers

and other materials. This was an increase of 5.1% compared

speed telecommunications network. For the transmission

to 4.6 million as at 31 December 2000. This consisted of

to RM1,817 million in 1999. From this amount, 78.4% was

system, the total capacity provided was 9.5 million channels
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installation of fibre-optic lines was undertaken to meet the

162,276

of which 18.7% was fibre optic. The comprehensive

services, TelCo spent RM1,909 million on projects for

188,839

Due to the extensive demand for telecommunications

of customers requiring major services offered by Telekom

172,465

An impressive growth was also recorded in the number

telephones throughout the country affirms this stand. This

137,707

of the public for granted. The installation of many public

0
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Maypac Customers

99'
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Total Access Lines per 100
Population

contributed RM251 million. Other services such as trunk

3.4 million residential customers and 1.2 million business

spent on the expansion of the major network system’s

of which 6.5 million were junction channels and 3.0 million

radio, interconnect fees and broadcasting contributed RM467

customers. This was an improvement over the 1.06% or

infrastructure including the international network. Attention

for trunk connections. As at 31 December 2000, the entire

million or 5.9% to the total gross sales for 2000.

46,657 customers growth rate recorded in 1999. With the

was given to customers access readiness, waiters clearance,

switch network system and transmission was 100% digitalised.

country’s estimated population of 22.2 million, the penetration

upgrading and expansion of existing network systems and

To ensure the efficiency of business operations

rate was at 20.9 phones for every 100 people. The business

the introduction of new technologies which involved a cost

In terms of productivity, the number of telephone

especially in its service areas, the quality of its network

sector recorded an encouraging growth of 4.8% compared to

of RM719 million. New projects involving the latest and less

lines per employee increased by 5.0% from 202 in 1999 to

hardware and marketing tools were constantly upgraded. The

4.5% in the residential sector. New employment opportunities

costly technology that fulfilled the business needs were

212 in year 2000. Similarly gross sales per employee

total of RM1,376 million spent on operating expenditure, is

in the industrial and property sectors also contributed

introduced. These included WiLL (Wireless Local Loop),

increased to RM365,000 in 2000 from RM336,000 in 1999.

an increase of 8.5% compared to 1999. The increased

significantly to this upward trend.

ADSL (Asymmetric Digital Subscriber Line), Multimedia

spending was unavoidable, as TelCo wanted to ensure high
quality of service to meet the sophisticated needs and

Interactive and High Speed Internet Access.

With regards to service quality, the number of faults
per 1,000 lines declined from 10.2% in 1999 to 8.3% in 2000.

requirements of customers.
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Operator Assisted Services comprise the
International & Domestic Assistance and Directory Information
Services. Within the International & Domestic Assistance
Services the connection of calls is packaged to suit the needs
of the customers. Other than the normal call connection
assistance, these two divisions also offer services such as
“Malaysia Direct” for those abroad, conference calls for
corporations, “Telesiswa” for students and, of course, the
999 emergency services.
Directory Information Services focuses on providing
telephone numbers on inquiry and also for publication. The
directory database not only stores the numbers of Telekom
Malaysia’s customers but also those of certain other local
network operators.

Customer Relationship Management will always be our number one priority

CONSUMER & BUSINESS (C&B)

CAS Business Details:

Spearheading Growth

TM1050 represents Telekom Malaysia’s main
channel for customer service through the phone providing a
one-stop-solution centre for applications, inquiries, complaints
and equal access processing. It is appreciated that TM1050
will play a pivotal role in the future business of CAS and in
the overall improvement of service quality.

The customers’ perception of Telekom Malaysia has
always, and will always, be formed primarily on the basis of
the quality of service and the manner it is provided by our
front liners – the Telephonist Customer Service. The
improvement of the standard of service and the development
of our most visible representatives remain as our most
important priorities.
Customer Assistance Service (CAS) operates the
Customer Services Call Centre and the conventional Operatorassisted services comprising TM1050, the Telemarketing
Centres, Telegraph Services, International & Domestic
Operator Services and the Directory Information Services.
CAS has migrated from being just a service provider
to a revenue-generating unit since its inception as a Strategic
Business Unit in 1998. This evolution has allowed CAS to
operate more dynamically, striking a balance between
providing quality service without compromising its bottom
line. During the year, CAS was awarded the MS ISO 9002
Certification from SIRIM. The award presentation ceremony
was held on 18 August 2000.
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The Telemarketing Centre set-up to promote phonebased marketing to support internal and external customers,
has become a critical element in our customer retention
strategy. Its personalised services will significantly increase
customer satisfaction and help in building close relationships
and loyalty.
Telegraph services, though conventional in nature,
are still regarded by many as a reliable and economical
marketing and correspondence tool for customers. It remains
an essential service to specific industries such as government,
banking and sales & services. Over the years, Telegraph
services have evolved from emergency text services to
become a provider of “festive greetings”. As part of our plan
to further improve this service, CAS successfully launched a
new “Dial 1040” Telegreeting Card and a new Greeting
Telegram Card Service on 18 September 2000.

In terms of performance, CAS registered a
commendable increase in gross sales with a growth of 27.7%
against the 1999 figure of RM11 million. Its PBIT was
encouraging, surpassing its target by 142.0%. Operating
expenditure, on the other hand, was reduced marginally
by 1.2% from last year due to stringent operational costcutting measures.

C&B kicked the year off with a contribution of gifts
worth RM500,000 to Haj Pilgrims via Tabung Haji. The
contribution comprised water bottles, sling bags, flags and
shoe pouches. It was our sixth annual contribution since
1995. The excellent rapport with Tabung Haji has been
strengthened over the years.
We have aggressively promoted bundling packages
related to the Internet. Among the attractive offers are
free Internet time and discounted additional telephone line
packages. Our promotional activities cover a wide range of
media especially radio and localised programmes in the regions.

A service that brings cheer and keeps you connected to your loved ones

By December 2000, CAS has achieved a 116.5% rate
in answered calls of all incoming calls, surpassing the Service
Quality target of 95% set at the beginning of the year.
It is encouraging to note that the demand for these
services are on the uptrend and are the largest contributors
of revenue to CAS making it possible for it to be one of the
best SBUs in Telekom Malaysia. CAS is confident that the
demand for its products and services will progress consistently
and it is taking appropriate measures to meet this demand.
In this respect, the whole unit is being geared towards full
or partial automation, to cater for the expected increase in
volume of business without compromising on service quality.
This physical growth is in line with the current national
economic recovery and is reflected in the large increase in
residential customers.
The net growth for C&B customers was 175,634
which is 2.6 times more compared to 1999. Business
customers grew by 97.2%, and residential customers increased
3.6 times. The total number of ISDN users, increased by
1.2 times while Telex customers dropped by 3%. The
cumulative rate of growth for leased circuit users also recorded
a positive growth of 4.8%.
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Phone Card Services add to the diversity
of products from Telekom Malaysia

Financial
Sales Performance
The year 2000 was rather challenging for C&B with
intense competition which included a price war with cellular
telephone operators. Despite this, C&B registered gross sales
of RM3,437 million compared to the 1999 performance of
RM3,276 million. This represented a growth rate of 4.9%.
Telephone services continued to be our core business with
gross sales amounting to RM3,426 million constituting
99.7% of total sales.

of bills, order processing, attending to complaints/inquiries
etc. RM7.0 million was spent to support sales and marketing
programmes via the print and electronic media as well as the
sponsorship to Lembaga Tabung Haji.

Profit Before Interest and Tax (PBIT)
C&B PBIT for the year was RM1,534 million which
represents a growth of 8.3% from 1999. This was made
possible by slight increases in revenue coupled with cost
saving initiatives to curb operating costs and internal recharges.

The following table shows the breakdown of revenue
for telephone services:
MAJOR BUSINESS & GOVERNMENT (MBG)
Rental

RM923 million up by 1.1%

Local calls

RM492 million down by 2.1%

National calls

RM1,549 million up by 11.5%

International calls

RM240 million down by 3.0%

Operator assisted

RM64 million down by 6.0%

ISDN

RM12 million up by 89.8%

Others

RM146 million up by 3.6%

Revenue from other services compared to 1999 were:
Leased Services increased by 32.8%, Data Services by 175%
and CAS by 27.7%.
The intense competition under the Equal Access
environment and from cellular telephone operators inevitably
demanded that we set the pricing of our services and
products at competitive levels. Several initiatives such as
“Cyber Mesra” and “Hello dan Menang” were introduced to
attract new customers and increase usage.

Operational Expenditure
Operating costs incurred during the year totalled
RM120 million of which 45% comprised labour costs, 1%
materials and 54% on “incidentals”. The high cost of labour
was due to the large number of personnel manning the
Customer Assistance Service centres such as 101, 103, 104,
108, TM1050 and Telemarketing, critical areas in building
up our immediate and visible presence to our customers.
These centres service all customers irrespective of segments
be it C&B or major business groups.
High “incidentals” were largely due to commissions
payable to Pos Malaysia and Telekom Sales and Services
Sdn. Bhd. (TSSSB) for handling transactions such as receipting
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Six sales segments and two product houses have
been placed under the MBG banner. The sales segments are
Corporate, Global & Government (formerly known as
Corporate Government Sales), Major Business Sales,
Specialised Network Services, Broadcast Services, Domestic
Carrier Services and Mobile Reachability Services (MORE).
The product houses are Data and Broadband Products (DBP)
and Product Marketing.
MBG’s customers comprise Corporate, Major Business,
Government, Domestic Operators, Resellers and ISPs. Customer
retention is key in our fight against competitors creamskimming our top clientele. During the year, MBG pursued
four main objectives namely: to retain Corporate, Government
and Major Business customers, capture new markets, increase
revenue and continue introducing new products/services in
line with changing technology and customer needs.

Financial Performance
In the year 2000, MBG, an important division in
TelCo, contributed RM3,648 million or 45.7% of TelCo’s
gross sales of RM7,981 million. MBG’s gross sales had
increased by 10.1% over the 1999 figure of RM3,312 million.
This increase corresponded with a GDP growth of 8.0% for
the country. It was the result of aggressive and effective
marketing strategies undertaken by MBG throughout the year
despite growing competition arising from the liberalisation
and globalisation of the telecommunications industry,
especially with the introduction of Equal Access in 1999.
Telephony is still the main revenue generator for
MBG contributing RM1,319 million or 48.7%, an increase of
6.9% compared to 1999. Factors contributing to this positive
growth include a 3.3% increase in Direct Exchange Lines
(DELS) customers and increases in revenue from ISDN,
Ring Ring Card and Value Added Services (VADs).

Corporate customers, resellers and domestic operations receive the
best in technology and service from our leased services

Leased services is the second highest revenue generator
for MBG contributing RM1,107 million. This was due to the
high demand from corporate customers, resellers and domestic
operators. Leased circuit revenue increased by 7.2% over the
RM1,033 million earned in 1999.
High customer growth in the mobile phone sector has
resulted in increased revenue for the Inter-Operator segment,
from RM179 million in 1999 to RM279 million in 2000.
However, the “out payment” costs also increased from
RM283 million in 1999 to RM418 million in 2000.
COINS revenue increased by 87.9% from RM36
million in 1999 to RM67 million in 2000. This was due to
the increasing demand for ‘data networking’ especially
among corporate customers. A total of 116 new customers
signed up in conjunction with the introduction of three
COINS promotional packages, namely Virtual Private
Network (VPN), COINS Premium and COINS Connect.
Major Business Sales is MBG’s largest revenueearner, contributing RM1,218 million or 33.4% of MBG’s
overall Gross Sales, followed by Domestic Carrier Services
(DCS) with RM1,092 million or 29.9% and Corporate,
Global & Government Sales (CGG), RM972 million or
26.6%, Broadcast, RM100 million or 2.7%, Specialised
Network Services (SNS), RM71 million or 1.9%, Mobile
Reachability (MORE), RM9 million or 0.3% and MBG
Head, RM185 million or 5.1%.
Last year, MBG incurred RM102 million in operating
expenditure compared to RM84 million in 1999. This increase
was due to the rising cost of labor, maintenance, marketing
support activities and advertising & promotions (A&P).

Marketing Performance: Telephony Services
As at December 2000, MBG had a total of 657,983
telephone DELs, comprising 625,294 business lines and
32,689 residential lines. MBG contributed 14.3% of the total
4.6 million DELs. The year recorded a higher annual net
growth of 21,033 DELs or 100.7% compared with 10,479
DELs in 1999. The excellent performance was due to
favourable economic conditions (GDP of 8.0%) and the
increase in the total number of 83,472 DELs being installed
during the year (79,879 the previous year). A total of 45.4%
of the total installations was new while 43.8% came from
second line installations due to the promotions carried out
throughout the year. In addition, PR Package Promotions
(counter proposal for PR request) reduced MBG’s direct
disconnection rate by 17.7% from 75,927 DELs in 1999 to
62,467 DELs in 2000. Various steps were taken to reduce the
disconnection rate for corporate customers. This included
discussions and negotiations to resolve their problems.

Leased Circuits
As at end 2000, MBG had 51,804 leased circuits
with a net growth of 1,656 or 3.2%. MBG contributed 81.5%
of TM’s total leased circuits of 63,527. The increase was due
to migration from analogue to high speed digital leased
circuits. At the same time, various packages were introduced
to compete with attractive offers by competitors, such as:
•

Volume Discounts (i.e annual rental or number of circuits)

•

Loyalty Discounts (based on number of years)

•

Wholesale Discounts (bulk purchase)

•

Early Bird (advance yearly payment)

•

Service Level Guarantees (SLG)

MBG’s PBIT stood at RM1,958 million compared to
RM2,026 million for 1999. In actual fact, however overall
earnings exceeded the 2000 budget by 1.8% or RM1,923
million. But the lower profits were due to increased marketing
costs, especially the high discounts given for leased circuits
to retain corporate customers.
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Marketing: Major Activities

NETWORK SERVICES

MBG conducted nation wide Business Solution
Seminars throughout the year to enlighten customers on
TM’s existing and new products. Apart from providing
excellent service quality, extensive customer relationship
management programme was conducted to ensure good
rapport with customers and to win and retain their loyalty
with Telekom Malaysia.

Telekom Malaysia continued to be the main provider
of basic telecommunication services in Malaysia. In 2000,
RM1.5 billion was spent on development projects by Network
Services group comprising 46% on development, 37% on
quality, 2% on Value added services and the rest on New
Technology and New Services Trials and rerouting projects.

Throughout the year, joint partnerships with vendors
were also carried out through the implementation of ISDN
Franchisee, COINS Reseller, Video conferencing Reseller
and TM Centrex Vendor.

High speed connectivity-meeting the changing needs of the discerning customers

ISDN

COINS

A series of ISDN promotions and campaigns carried
out during the year led to high ISDN customer growth
amounting to 8,364, an increase of 57.4% when compared to
1999. The promotions included the following:

MBG had a total of 116 COINS customers as at end
December 2000, compared with 91 customers in 1999.
In addition to basic Frame Relay Service, three VPN packages
– COINS Premium, COINS Enhanced and COINS Connect
were introduced during the year to further promote COINS
services to corporate customers.

•

BRI Promotional Package

•

TMISDN 2000 Promo launched on 1 May 2000. The
package reduced monthly rentals for ISDN TMHomelink
from RM43 to RM33 and ISDN TMBusinesslink from
RM73 to RM63. Deposits have also been reduced for
TMBusinesslink customers from RM400 to RM200.
In addition, various incentives given to customers included:
•
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Waiver of installation fees for both ISDN TMHomelink
and ISDN Businesslink

A new product, Voice Over Internal Protocol (VoIP)
Prepaid was successfully launched on 17 May where three
product packages were introduced: “Smart Home Package”
for Property Developers, “Biz-secure Package” for corporate
& small industries and “Hospitality Package” for hotels in
the Northern Region.

Video Conferencing
The Video Conferencing Service recorded an
encouraging performance during the year with several video
conferencing sessions being held as follows:

Service Quality and Customer Satisfaction

Global Knowledge II
Royal Visit by DYMM Seri Paduka Baginda Yang
DiPertuan Agung to Telekom Malaysia

•

RM100 worth of vouchers for redemption of ISDN
products

•

•

TMNet analogue customers opting for TMNet ISDN

•

UMNO General Assembly 2000

•

New customers have free registration and access fees
for the first year. Maximum 200 hours free access
fee for the first three months

•

University Multimedia Orientation Event 2000

•

Interactive Distance Learning (IDL) classes for Diploma
Programmes

•

TMISDN Video Conferencing Package/Wiratel Triple
Bonus Package launched on 1 September 2000
together with vendor, Wiratel S/B

•

Hospitality Seminar – Paper titled ‘Video Conferencing
Solutions for the Hospitality Industry’ presented with the
emphasis on TM Live on demand service

•

New Primelink (PRI) Package bundled together with
PABX/keyphone. This package allowed customers to
change their analogue PRI to digital PRI and offered
other incentives such as free deposits, free installation
and four months free monthly rental from September
to December 2000

•

Oxford Banking Forum Round Table at the Palace of
Golden Horses Hotel

•

Penang Hotel Solution Seminar and Langkawi Hotel
Solution Seminar

Quality
In facing the challenges of the new millennium,
Telekom Malaysia has taken measures to ensure that all
network components will function as normal and that there
is no decline in service performance, systems operations and
network reliability which may adversely affect customers.

Productivity Performance
As of 31 December 2000, MBG had a total staff
strength of 1,704 comprising 670 executives and 1,034 nonexecutives. In terms of productivity performance, MBG’s
telephone per employee ratio was 386. MBG’s gross sales/
employee ratio was also satisfactory with an achievement of
RM2.2 million against the 1999 performance of RM1.9 million.

•

A feature is the extensive fibre network that has been
put in place with physical VFC (*407,172) 1.67 million,
ECP (*60,481) 7.15 million, RFC (*1,530) 0.067 million.
The widespread availability of fibre optics provides
flexibility in the provision of future broadband services.

COINS – reputed as one of the world’s best

A survey conducted by MBS, showed that Customer
Satisfaction Index (CSI) for Telekom Malaysia’s services
was 83% compared to 1999’s CSI of 72%. Despite an
increase in the number of customers the number of customer
complaints dropped by 30% from 2,980 recorded in 1999 to
2,098 in 2000.

Video conferencing (phase 2) facilities via a “portable
digital” system was provided for special events in hotels and
remote areas.
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A common signalling channel (CCS#7) was implemented
in March at a cost of RM53 million. This centralised
monitoring system will provide an early warning signalling
link overload that may lead to network outage and process
Call Data Record (CDR) for fraud detection and control.
The completion of the Switching Management
System for AXE exchanges in May 2000, at a cost of RM52
million, resulted in the commissioning of the Operation
Support System (OSS). As at December 2000, about 97% of
exchanges were being managed through the Switching OSSs.
The rest of the exchanges will be connected by May 2001.
The Element Management System (EMS) for Fujitsu
SDH equipment in the Central region was completed in
February 2000 with a budget of RM1.6 million.
During the year, the Malaysian domestic submarine
cable was upgraded at a cost RM20 million, from a 5 Gbit/s
to 10Gbit/s system having a total capacity of 64 STM1 with
a self-healing mechanism. This will allow broadband services
to be transported to East Malaysia in an aggregate of STM1
or STM4.
Telekom Malaysia has spent more than RM110
million in rehabilitation work involving the relocation of
overhead cables to underground cables and upgrading
obsolete infrastructure.
It is also embarking on new submarine cable projects
scheduled to be completed in 2001. Besides catering for
future growth in international traffic demand, these new selfhealing cable systems, will also provide diversity routes, and
therefore further improve the reliability of Telekom Malaysia’s
international network.
As part of its cost reduction measures, Network
Services is implementing its Network Management System
(NMS) in order to centralize its operations and maintenance
processes. In connection with this, the National Operations
Centre (NOC) for NEAX exchanges was launched towards
the end of the year.
We are pleased to announce that the Trunk Network
Development Division has been accredited the prestigious
ISO9001 from SIRIM/UKAS. In the Network Maintenance
and Operations (NMO) Division, 97 stations and 3 HQ
Divisions (Network Engineering & Quality, Switching
Management and Network Management) have achieved ISO
9002 Certification. This recognition has certainly moved
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Worldwide reach, 24 hours a day

Uninterrupted connectivity with constant maintenance

Voice Over Internet Protocol (VOIP)

NETWORK STRATEGY PERFORMANCE

During the year, trials were carried out on a VOIP
platform provided by Telekom Malaysia’s associate company
based in the USA. The first service based on the VOIP
platform was the iTalk prepaid card launched in May
covering 30 destinations world-wide. The service will come
on stream next year.

Telekom Malaysia moved into the new millennium
fully conscious of the challenges posed by new entrants in
the industry. It also realises the need for the upgrading of its
legacy network towards the next generation networks and
further development of its broadband network as well as the
related network management systems. This shall ensure that
there will be continuous growth for both the PSTN and the
multimedia services as well as new value added services.
Telekom Malaysia is also concerned with improving its quality
of services provided to the customers to ensure continuous
loyalty and prevent churn.

HyperNet
Telekom Malaysia a major step forward in providing world
class Telecommunications and Multimedia Trunk Network
and Network Management Systems.

Technology and Future Network
Telekom Malaysia is poised to meet the demand for
international circuits in the current environment of the
Multimedia Super Corridor, and the expansion of the
broadband circuits. At the same time, it will be able to offer
these services at competitive rates. In addition, submarine
cable systems are being planned to provide sufficient
capacity and diverse submersible routes. Complementing the
submarine cable system, Telekom Malaysia’s satellite
network will provide direct to customer connectivity for high
bit rate circuits and offer immediate requirements for backbone
routes. The new broadband satellite projects are Skybridge,
Teledesic, Spaceway, Astro-link and INTELSAT Ka-band.
Telekom Malaysia has commissioned a new photonic
network platform for its Core Trunk network using DWDM/
DXC (Dense Wavelength Division Multiplex/Digital Cross
Connect) with 10 nodes stretching from Penang to Johor
Bahru, transmitting a 40Gbit/s signal at a cost of RM60 million.
The new network will ensure optimum performance for data
and multimedia services. It will support the international
back-haul requirement connecting the 3 international gateways
to other international nodes and making Malaysia a regional
hub in South East Asia.
To increase the number of customers and to clear the
backlog of applications, Telekom Malaysia will provide
telephone services using radio technology for rural and suburban areas or where there is only scattered demand which
is expensive to meet by normal wirelines.
Several value added service trials and pilot runs were
carried out throughout the year to enable Telekom Malaysia
to better understand and plan future strategies.

It is appreciated that in order to support future IP
(Internet Protocol) services, Telekom Malaysia requires an ultra
fast backbone for its IP network. HyperNet provides a scalable
Gigabit backbone network specifically to support a wide array
of TCP/IP (Transport Control Protocol/Internet Protocol)
applications. This project was carried out in November.

In line with the above objectives, its Network Services
group introduced a number of strategies and procedures
during the year under review.

Next Generation Network (NGN)

Customer Access Network

The future network technology direction to pursue is
Next Generation Services. NGN is an evolution towards a
service-oriented philosophy, involving speed in the deployment
of services and moving away from offering simple connections/
pipes and single network infrastructure. Telekom Malaysia is
in the process of embarking on an NGN evolution strategy.

The major drive of the customer access network is to
ensure that the network is optimized to meet the requirements
of both the narrowband as well as the broadband services.
The areas of concern were the copper xDSL, particularly
ADSL which shall cater for demand for higher speeds and
the fiber where there is a need for Digital Loop Carrier
(DLC) enhancement with V5.2 interface protocol. New
Multiservices Access Nodes (MSAN) technical specifications
will also be produced.

Broadband/Multimedia (BB/MM)
In year 2000, the three Broadband Testbed centres
located at the Kinrara, Bangsar and Serdang exchanges
operating on the STM (Synchronous Transfer Mode) 16 ring,
systems were upgraded with SDH (Synchronous Digital
Hierarchy) interfaces and ATM (Asynchronous Transfer
Mode) switches. The ring capacity was increased with six
new STM-l, making a total of eighteen STM-l and six
STM-4. The switches were upgraded with signalling features.
ADSL (Asymmetric Digital Subscriber Line) Technical
trials were carried out and completed in December 2000 and
Phase l roll-out of the new ADSL platform, which is to be
equipped to handle a demand forecast of 30,000 lines, mainly
in the Klang Valley, Penang and Johor Baharu is scheduled
for 2001.
Telekom Malaysia is moving forward into the
Information Age era and providing Total Customer Satisfaction
through the cheapest but most reliable technology involving
services, centralised management and high quality network.

Keeping businesses in business
with state-of-the-art information
communication technologies

Employing the best human skills
in harnessing technology

Transmission Network

Network Management Systems

For its transmission network, Telekom Malaysia
emphasizes on optical networking. During the year, a
number of the Dense Wavelength Division Multiplex
(DWDM) links were installed throughout the country. This is
part of the Core Photonic Network which shall be used to
transport all the voice as well as data traffic.

The Integrated Network Management System
(INMS) plan will provide an integrated end-to-end network
management of the whole network and at the same time
shall improve service provisioning. The Network Operations
has initiated centralised Network Operation Centres (NOC)
for the switching and transmission networks. At the same
time, the Network Development is developing an Integrated
Element Management System (I-EMS) for access network.
The INMS shall be developed to improve network quality by
reducing fault restoration time, operational cost as well as
maximising human resources.

Broadband/Internet Protocol (IP) Network
The broadband network plans placed importance on
the COINS network enhancement and expansion to cater for
the introduction of new broadband services, in particular, the
ADSL, interactive video as well as the internet services.
A new IP backbone, the Hypernet, and an Internet Exchange
was also commissioned to provide higher speed access to the
internet world. The internet access nodes were also increased
to cater for the increase in internet customers. Telekom
Malaysia has also introduced the voice over IP (VOIP)
service in phases to provide customers with an alternative for
an international access. Telekom Malaysia shall develop its
IP network further to support both national as well as
international services.

PSTN Network
A Next Generation Switch plan is being developed to
improve the switching capability and to cater for the ever
increasing requirement for the convergence of multi services
on a single platform. For the enhancement of the existing
PSTN network, the implementation of the open standard
V5.2 interface protocol will improve the quality of service.
The technical and interconnection agreements between
Telekom Malaysia and all Other Licensed Network Operators
is in line with the Malaysian Government’s policy to promote
healthy competition and interconnection between operators
and at the same time allowing freedom of choice for the
customers.

During the year RM1.5 billion was spent on
development projects. Of this amount 46% was on growth,
37% on improving quality and 2% on value added services.
Telekom Malaysia has also made substantial investments in
the region of RM200 million on infrastructure for emerging
technologies to support full multimedia services.

CORPORATE INFORMATION SUPERHIGHWAY (COINS)

New Product

COINS is Malaysia’s first multimedia networking
solution based on ATM (Asynchronous Transfer Mode)
technology. It is a fast, open, nationwide and globally
connected, broadband multimedia communications network
with a huge capacity of up to 10 Gigabits per second.

I-COMMS
I-COMMS is a new service by COINS to provide
communication applications for users and also offers a
platform for other content providers. BETA User Trial was
launched to 250 customers from August 2000 to December
2000. The product will be commercially launched on
18 January 2001.

Signalling Network
Telekom Malaysia has a comprehensive signalling
network with its own network management system. The
Common Channel Signalling No. 7 (CCS#7) system helps
improve the network quality.

Spectrum Management
Telekom Malaysia had made a focussed effort
towards ensuring that its use of the radio frequency spectrum
was in line with the requirements of the Communication and
Multimedia Act (CMA) and its subsidiary legislations.
Where there were identified new requirements, Telekom
Malaysia had also indicated its interest and submitted
applications to the Communication and Multimedia
Commission (CMC) for additional assignment of spectrum,
to accommodate these requirements.

Numbering Management
With the introduction of new services and the
increase in customers especially ISDN customers there is a
need for more telephone numbers. Submissions of number
applications to the CMC for approval is an ongoing process
to cater for such requirements. The 8-digit migration which
started in 1999 in the Klang Valley is still in progress and is
planned for completion in year 2002.
Its Network Services group has also planned to
achieve the ISO 9001 recognition before end 2001.

solutions allow Telekom Malaysia’s customers to access
multiple applications through a single, high-speed
connection resulting in faster throughput and improved
productivity worldwide. This solution enables customers
to stay connected with its employees, customers and
trading partners throughout the world.

Product/Services
a. VPN (Virtual Private Network)
COINS VPN is a managed, Wide Area Networking
(WAN) solution that offers secure and reliable internal
communications that require a widespread informationsharing infrastructure.

COINS Top 10 Customers during the year were:
Maybank, Bumiputra-Commerce Bank, EON Bhd, Smart
School, Bank Rakyat, PDRM, Bank Negara, Pos Malaysia,
MINDEF and Bank Pertanian.

b. DVPN (Dial-up Virtual Private Network)
COINS DVPN is the only fully managed, high speed,
dial solution providing secure local access to corporate
resources, with the combination of service, reliability and
end-user support for critical business applications.

MSC PROJECT DIVISION

c. COINS GLOBAL
This is Malaysia’s first global broadband multimedia
information infrastructure superhighway solution that
provides world-wide connectivity reach. It is designed to
deliver fast, reliable connections through a security-rich
computing environment. COINS GLOBAL, Global
Managed Services Broadband Virtual Private Network

Equal Access
In a year marked by an increasing demand for
broader bandwidth and new technologies, the MSC Project
Division further asserted its position as the major player in
broadband and multimedia services. The entry of
multinational and world-class companies into our Cybercities
increased demands for the deployment of new technology,
service guarantees, and competitive rates. Telekom Malaysia
responded with many new technology-based products,
services and packages to cater to these needs. With the
backbone network, high speed transmission systems and
ATM broadband switching already in place, MSC users were
able to experience broadband communications. The 2.5Gbits
SDH rings were extended to include Technology Park
Malaysia, Cyberjaya and Putrajaya by November 2000. The
reliability of our services was strengthened through the MSC
Performance Guarantee, while the customers’ quest for better
value for money was answered by a relentless benchmarking
of the MSC Tariffs.

Constant training and supervision allows
for continued delivery of products and
services of quality
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MSC – providing the backbone
for the country’s leap into the
Information Age

The new millennium witnessed
the first deployment of the ADSL
(Asymmetric Digital Subscriber
Line) in Malaysia and Cyberjaya
was the first to experience this new
technology which was offered to MSC
Status companies there from January. The
first customer signed up on 13 March.

The plus point is that all members of the company
had an appreciation of the high level of awareness of the
competition in general and of Equal Access in particular
through the various activities that were organised. These
were based on Customer Intimacy, Product Supremacy
and Service Excellence. All moves by the competition were
closely monitored and prompt, corrective actions
implemented to meet changing situations.

In April 2000, residential customers in
the MSC area had their share of this broadband
experience via the IMSP (Interactive Multimedia
Services Platform) project, which attracted 50
trial users in Putrajaya.

Matters pertaining to the operational network and
commercial arrangements with other operators and
interconnected issues were constantly addressed and resolved
for the benefit of the customers.

The effort to better serve business customers
was enhanced further through the TMBlockbuster
Package which comprised these services: TMnet ADSL,
TMnet Direct, Netmyne and ISDN in attractively priced
packages. The TMBlockbuster package launched on 1 July
2000 exclusively for MSC Status companies in Cyberjaya,
has attracted many companies to move their office to that
wired city – in line with the government’s aspirations to
quickly populate that area.
Telekom Malaysia continued its efforts to ensure
world-class service guarantees for MSC Status companies
and during the year, MSC Performance Guarantees were
executed to cover all five Cybercities including Technology
Park Malaysia on 30 December.
To meet demands for globally competitive rates, the
MSC tariffs were benchmarked and reviewed twice – in
January and in June 2000. In addition, three services were
offered with exclusive rates for MSC status companies in
Cybercities. The International Frame Relay service was
introduced in January, while the Domestic ATM Service
made its debut in August and VSAT (Very Small Aperture
Terminal) tariffs were released in November.
23 August 2000 marked a new beginning for the
MSC Project Division as it moved into its new office at the
TM Cyberjaya Complex bringing it closer to its customers
and exposing itself to new business opportunities.
At a time when the internet business was on the rise
the MSC Project Division was given the mandate to
spearhead the Internet Data Centre’s initiatives. This fast
track endeavour took about eight months to be implemented
and became fully operational by December 2000.
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Telekom Malaysia is proud that it has always
endeavoured to operate within ethical limits and in the spirit
of fair competition so as to meet regulatory requirements and
expectations. It also expected the competition to adopt
similar principles in their operations although there have
been instances where Telekom Malaysia suffered as a result
of the conduct of some of its competitors.

With all of its targets for the year being achieved, the
MSC Project Division is not resting on its laurels. It will
continue with its commitment to introduce new products,
services and packages as well as strive for excellence in
supporting the nation’s aspiration for the success of the
Multimedia Super Corridor.
The implementation of Equal Access on 1 January
1999, opened up a competitive environment in the Malaysian
communications industry. However, as the planned
implementation of Pre-selection as the method of Equal
Access was not carried out, the existing Call by Call
method was continued. Without the change, the company
was able to continue, with its plans already put in place,
to handle the competition.
Entering the second year of its operations, the migration
of customers to Equal Access picked up momentum with
added efforts from a couple of leading competitors. However,
as a result of concerted efforts by all concerned, the company
was able to ward off the negative impacts of the scheme
such as losses in market share, revenue, traffic and customers.
Plans and programmes were implemented not only to
overcome the competition and retain customers, but also win
customers from the competitors. In fact this resulted in a big
increase in customers during the later half of the year.

For the year 2001 the expected roll out of the 2nd
phase of Equal Access using the Pre-selection method is
still uncertain. But Telekom Malaysia is ready with the basic
and preliminary arrangements to implement changes when
called upon by the regulator. Whatever the future scenario,
Telekom Malaysia is prepared with plans and strategies to
meet any change, expected or otherwise, in the competitive
environment of Equal Access.

ITD is gearing itself to be a major entity for quality
management initiatives and excellence in the years to come.
Services offered:
BIZSECURE: a total business continuing solution
offering complete IT and communications recovery services.
With its focus on 4 main areas of recovery, namely
network, systems, applications and data, BIZsecure provides
three types of services with different architectural integration.
1.

BIZsecure Direct
This is an online recovery service with online remote
backup solutions, operating on a secured and scalable
data bandwidth, giving real time business recovery.

2.

BIZsecure Connect
Another online recovery service without online remote
backup solutions. It operates on a secured and scalable
data bandwidth, giving real time business recovery. It is
ideal for organisations that require high availability
services but not remote or offsite backup facilities.

3.

BIZsecure Classic
This is a disaster recovery service operating on a
conventional method where data is transferred and stored
manually. Ideal for organisations which require minimal
disaster recovery using remote offsite backup facilities.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DIVISION (ITD)
Contributing to Revenue
The year under review saw ITD making great strides
towards becoming a quality-driven division. As a result, many
organisations – both internal and external – have approached
it for consultancy services and expert advice on management
systems and programmes. During the year ITD also began
developing a number of applications to further improve
productivity, throughout the organisation and indeed for
external clients.

Care and detail ensure customer satisfaction
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The first customer to subscribe to BIZsecure was
MESDAQ on 12 October 2000. Being a critical organisation,
MESDAQ has been offered a customised total business
continuity solution according to its requirements with an
acceptable level of business availability in the event of a
disaster. With the first customer already in, it is hoped that
this will then prove to the others the credibility of BIZsecure.

Smart School Help Desk Centre
In collaboration with Telekom Multimedia, ITD
successfully launched the Smart School Help Desk System
in July 2000. This system comprises a full set of help desk
and network management systems required for managing the
Smart School MSC flagship application and its nationwide
network of 90 pilot schools. ITD was the main designer,
implementor and anchor in the project management and
business development of the Smart School Help Desk
project. The system utilises ITD’s flagship and an in-house
developed work-flow system called FOCus which is fully
computerised and managed on line. With its implementation,
ITD successfully contributed about RM7.0 million to
Telekom Malaysia’s revenue.

CUSTOMER INFORMATION AND BILLING DIVISION
Creating Customer Confidence
The Customer Information and Billing Division
(CIBD) was formed on 1 May 2000 with the overall
responsibility of providing customer value applications in
order to create customer confidence and to meet the business
requirements of Telekom Malaysia.

T E L E K O M M A L AY S I A B E R H A D

CIBD is responsible for providing and managing
efficient and effective billing processes and billing management
systems for Telekom Malaysia and its subsidiaries. The aim
is to achieve total customer satisfaction and excellent business
performance for all products and services and meeting
Telekom’s strategic goals and competitive business encounters.
The billing process starts from the time a customer
requests a service and right up to delivery. It also provides
management information for decision making.
The Division’s Cost Based and Access Billing System
(CABS) was the finalist for the prestigious Anugerah
Perdana Technologi Maklumat 2000, organised by PIKOM
(Association of the Computer and Multimedia and Multimedia
Industry Malaysia) and MAMPU (Malaysian Administration
Modernization and Management Planning Unit).
Project CABS was implemented as a solution to cater
for the vast business changes in the telecommunications
industry, affected by the introduction of Equal Access and
Cost Based pricing with full effect from 1 January 1999.
Through the CABS team’s concerted effort, combined with
the support of business partners, Hewlett-Packard Sdn. Bhd.
and Inception to Implementation (M) Sdn. Bhd., the project
was successfully implemented in four months. Developed with
state-of-the-art technology, the application solution realised the
business goals and performance targets of Telekom Malaysia
as well as its subsidiaries, Mobikom and TM Cellular.
The application featuring powerful yet simple tools provided
the means for fast strategic decision-making by all levels
of users. The CABS application now in full operation is
expected to fully cater for Pre-selection implementation in
the telecommunications industry in the foreseeable future.

Whatever your needs may be
we strive to provide only the best
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The success of the implementation of the CABS
application has made the achievement of business performance
goals and targets realisable not only by Telekom Malaysia but
also by its subsidiaries, namely, Mobikom and TM Cellular.
CIBD has determined new initiatives that are aligned
to Telekom Malaysia’s goals and objectives in providing
robust and flexible billing systems to support Corporate and
Telco objectives. CIBD’s ultimate goals are:
•

Achieving zero error billing

•

Improving customer satisfaction level to 90% for internal
customers and 95% for external ones

•

Ensuring that 95% of its billing processing is completed
within 3 days

PAYPHONE
Leading Operator
Telekom Malaysia Payphones SBU maintained its
dominance as the leading payphone operator with the widest
coverage and most number of sets in Malaysia. With the

inclusion of Citifón Sdn. Bhd., its service concentration was
to provide users with better availability of service. Payphones
are significantly available in rural areas indicating the
continuing commitment of Telekom Malaysia to develop the
nation along the Government’s aspirations.
The enhancement of Telekom Malaysia’s network
was achieved by automated remote monitoring and supervision
through planned phases of implementation. Higher efficiency
in network management provided the opportunity for optimising
capital and operational costs whilst increasing revenue.
The recovery in payphone services was induced by
the momentum for increased revenue late in 1999 and the
target of 5 percent increase in gross revenue set in 2000.
With an expected favourable business climate in 2001, gross
revenue is projected to increase by 16 percent.
Due to the gradual shift in market demand for data,
future developments in payphones will cater for this new
market, with particular focus towards internal capability.
Payphones will provide an enlarged range of services with
better facilities.

BOX
ARTICLE

I

THE WAY AHEAD

In light of today’s deregulated telecommunications market, a tremendous opportunity lies
in front of telcos in building competitive advantage into their network architectures. Market
trends and technological advances are two main factors that are joining forces enabling service
providers to offer unsurpassed service and feature new capabilities with dramatic reduction in the
cost and complexity of building and operating their networks.
As the race to acquire market share becomes increasingly fierce, the service providers
which will have the competitive edge, are those who can most rapidly introduce new services
and respond to customers’ changing needs. This agility hinges on network platforms and
infrastructures with a rich set of features and functionality, the support of multiple interfaces, and
distributed and software-defined intelligence.
Undoubtedly, the future telecommunications industry will be driven by ICT (Information
and Communications Technology). The impact of the ICT industry will be pervasive throughout
other industries, given the extent to which electronic technologies can fuse and cross-over with
other technologies. In this respect alone, future/next generation telcos will benefit from wider
market acceptability.

THE NEXT GENERATION
COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY
Convergence is the integration of the previously
discrete entertainment, consumer electronics/computers and
communications industries. Hence, the traditional need for
Telcos to evolve. The most important ingredient in the
Convergence regime is the consolidation of PSTN, the
Internet, wireless networks (including satellite), cable television
and the broadcasting sector into the information transport
business, which results in a traditional telco becoming a
multiservices company.
The evolution of the data communication business
and the explosive growth in Internet usage as a preferred
communication platform will bring changes to the traditional
voice traffic network. Current communication in data traffic
in its many forms, video, images, MP3-formatted songs,
interactive multimedia contents etc, swarms over voice
traffic and eventually the voice network itself will have to be
replaced by broadband data network where the voice will
ride uncharged.
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FUTURE SERVICES
It is anticipated that in the next ten to fifteen years,
convergent technologies will lead to worlwide end-to-end
voice, data, fax, video and image services. The global network
of networks will be both a transparent communication service
and a platform for content-filled or content enhanced services.
Content is the major driver dictating the future of the
telecommunications or ICT industry. Networks will evolve to
deliver increasingly rich content and eventually full broadband
interactive multimedia. Similarly, appliances must advance to
display content in colour, full video and high-fi stereo quality.
The expense of these advancements will be rationalised by
the content they will carry and display, which is very much
related to the bandwidth requirement.

connected to high capacity fibre through a DSLAM
(DSL access multiplexer) and the end user to be
equipped with a DSL modem.

can serve multiple needs and will have a common backbone
with shared resources, such as telephony and video-entertainment
applications, wireless and wireline applications.
Broadband technology normally refers to anything
that can deliver data at a rate of more than 2Mbps. A more
general or universal definition of broadband is simply “anything
that is at least twice as fast as what we can offer at any point
of time”.
Narrowband technology, currently considered ubiquitous
(e.g. PSTN, 2nd generation cellular, ISDN) is constrained by
the capacity of the pipes that carry information formed in the
communications link, occasionally resulting in access bottleneck.
Broadband technology with greater convenience and
cheaper rates will eliminate access bottleneck. Once broadband
access is available, consumers will be able to receive and
send digital information such as video streaming, e-mail,
Internet browsing, video conferencing, MP3 and MP4 up to
a hundred times faster than they can today.

ii.

Fibre/LAN and other varieties such as fibre to the
building, home and desktop will bring broadband
access to buildings and users' homes. Optical fibre is
extended from the backbone to the last mile or local
access. Wiring is run to each house or office and a PCcard or TV set-top-box is installed for each user. The
internal wiring may consist of LAN cables, existing
coaxial cables or copper telephone lines.

iii.

LMDS (local multipoint distribution system) – a
fixed broadband wireless technology using microwave
radio links, operating in high frequency range of
28GHz and above. This system typically provides a
data rate of 38Mbps downstream.

iv.

3G mobile technology – not yet available but intensive
research and trials are being conducted worldwide. This
will provide high speed IP-based mobile data services
(besides the normal voice service) to users with speeds
of up to 2Mbps. In the meantime 2.5G cellular technology
such as GPRS, EDGE and CDMA 2000 1x will serve
as a transition with a data rate of up to 384Kbps.

v.

Broadband satellite technology – delivers point to
multipoint applications (e.g. TV broadcasting) at low
cost because of its unequalled reach and shared
bandwidth. It can be used to deliver broadband signal
to end users via microwave radio links. To adapt for
interactive services, current operators create return paths
via PSTN networks. End user terminals with two-way
capabilities have been developed and are expected to be
available in 2001.

FUTURE INDUSTRY OUTLOOKS AND
TECHNOLOGY TRENDS
By 2004, it is anticipated that 90% of all European
and US households and small businesses will be connected
by some type of broadband access.
To facilitate this, the entire communications infrastructure
– from backbone to end user (last mile) must be able to
deliver digital data at high speed. This is being accomplished
by the increasing use of advanced optical technology such as
WDM and D-WDM.
It is important to note that, everywhere in the world,
the single force that spurs the mass deployment of broadband
access is the Internet. Instead of a recurring dial-up situation,
in the broadband environment the user is always connected
– “always on”.

The options described above are maturing technologies
which will enable operators to deploy broadband access
widely by upgrading existing infrastructure. Digital compression
technology will allow video content or complex data to be
transported over such networks.

THE TECHNOLOGY THAT WILL BE
It is very important to note that, whatever the choice
of technology platform/infrastructure to be used, it must be
able to support and carry the intended services for customers.
Ideally, an IP-based broadband platform will be most suitable
in carrying the various Multimedia services that would
require high data rates. In the future, we will see an integrated
and not just interoperable network. This means that one network

In order to address the access bottleneck the following
options will become available. Currently both wireline and
wireless technologies are utilised to deliver interactive
broadband service to the customers:
i.

xDSL (digital subscriber line) technology enables
broadband services (2 – 6Mbps) to be delivered over
the existing last mile copper lines of the public telephony
network. Upgrades require local exchanges to be

In a nutshell, these new opportunities offered by
broadband applications will allow greater choice and matchup possibilities with the most suitable technology for the
applications to ride on, ensuring maximum customer satisfaction.
These options are available to an incumbent telco given its
extensive and well planned investment strategy in recent years,
a strategy which has seen the creation of an infrastructure
capable of technical expansion and growth.

73

T E L E K O M M A L AY S I A B E R H A D

T E L E K O M M A L AY S I A B E R H A D

operations Review

telekom

Multimedia

Scope of Business
Telekom Multimedia (TMM) continued to perform into year 2000 as the key provider of
online services using the Internet as its vehicle. As the country’s largest Internet Service Provider
(ISP), TMM has consistently introduced new services and products during the course of the year,
and built its reputation as one of Telekom Malaysia’s key revenue earners. TMM aims to be an
unrivalled commerce and application service provider of comprehensive services.

“we now live in a digital
information age where
speed is the hallmark of success“
Abdul Majid bin Abdullah
Acting Chief Operating Officer,
Telekom Multimedia

TMM charted phenomenal progress in areas that
have attracted a wider customer base. Since its inception in
1995 – when it only provided simple Internet access – till
today where more advanced services are being managed, the
subscriber base which stands at 855,495, has more than
doubled over the previous year.
The newer services are developed to assist individuals
and businesses into greater use of the Internet not only for
communications, but also for business and pleasure. Netmyne
is one such service that has on its own attracted an expanding
customer base of 1,610. The service has proven to become a
platform for communications.
Combining the services of TMnet and Netmyne,
TMM persevered to consolidate its role as a developer of the
Internet platform for both existing and potential customers
who are IT savvy and demand high speed and access-ready
communications. In tandem with this TMM is able to forge
its position as a market leader.

The year 2000 saw Netmyne being developed beyond
its initial position of providing only webhosting services.
It evolved into an e-commerce services provider. Inspired by
highly sophisticated customer demands, it proceeded to lay
the infrastructure for providing application-hosting services.
Customers are now able to access applications over the web
for their wide ranging needs, be it commerce, business or
recreation. Designed as cost effective services, Netmyne paves
the way for the future and the introduction of interactive
lifestyles with the Internet.
Implicit in its goal to become a provider of quality
and high value services, TMM is conscious of its role to
exemplify the creation of a knowledge economy. In providing
a fleet of IT-related services and products, TMM is also
helping to create a knowledge-based society that will
gradually transit its way into being global participants in an
increasingly digital world.

Abdul Majid was appointed as the Vice President,
Corporate Strategy & Planning,
effective 1 February 2001.
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By providing the traditional and family-styled
businesses with cost effective services, TMM is assisting
them to transcend the barriers to global opportunities. The
positive response from the small and medium-sized
enterprises thus far has helped TMM to further streamline its
service-offerings to include application hosting. In September
2000, TMM launched Netmyne 2, an enhanced Application
Hosting Service.
House of Internet – bringing the virtual world to life

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
In addressing its core businesses, TMM has realigned
its strategies to provide services in very specific and focused
sectors.
Internet Service Provider (ISP)
TMnet is the brand name for Internet service provided
by TMM. This service continues to be the main revenue
earner for the year 2000. The TMnet service is segmented to
cater for specific markets. The TMnet 1515, a PSTN dial-up
connection is mass-dedicated while TMnet 1525 – an ISDN
dial-up – offers a higher service quality in terms of the
connectivity capacity. TMnet Direct continues to cater for the
high demands of business customers. TMnet is designed with
the versatility to serve the simple needs of ordinary Internet
users to the more sophisticated demands of business and
corporate customers.
In addition to the current services, TMnet is also
catering for the needs of high-density population residing in
condominiums and those in the hospitality industry through
its TMnet High Speed Internet Access. It is expected to be
developed into a full-fledged broadband service next year.
For the corporate customer, TMnet offers TMnet
EastGate, a premium service launched in April 2000, for
Internet connectivity. This shared connectivity service allows
corporate users to enjoy optimal bandwidth savings.
Launched in April 2000, the service has since acquired a
growing clientele of corporate users. When combined with
Netmyne, the service offers high-end Internet Data services
specially useful for corporate customers who intend to
become more active in the Internet arena.
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Although segmented services have effectively served
specific categories of customers, there is yet a market segment
that has posted a call for other Internet access options. Among
the many options currently being tried out, the mobile Internet
access has emerged as the winning option. This is currently
being made available to Telekom Malaysia’s customers
through TMTouch. Another key trial is on the Broadband
Internet access. Based on the encouraging results of the
trials, the emanating services will be made available initially
in early 2001 in selected areas in the Klang Valley, Penang
and Johor.
TMnet not only offers a variety of Internet access
options but also value added services for customers to access
its services from anywhere in the world through the TMnet
Global Roaming. This service ensures that TMnet customers
have easy access to the Internet irrespective of where they are.
Commerce and Application Service Provider (CASP)
Netmyne offers a range of services ranging from web
hosting to community hosting, commerce hosting and server
hosting. All these services were made available in late 1999.
During the year, Netmyne continued to explore Internet
possibilities for traditional businesses, particularly the small
and medium enterprises, to take advantage of the Internet
and make fuller gains from it in their businesses.

Application hosting has significantly increased the
affordability for Netmyne subscribers to invest in dedicated
applications suited for their intended use. With the cost
effective investments, the subscribers would free themselves
from the responsibility of purchasing software or applications
and high operating costs. Instead they will be able to focus
on increasing profits and carving out greater market share.
The low entry into online interactivity will uncover and identify
opportunities in areas where geographical distance and multiple
time zones were once considered major hindrances.
As the customer base of Netmyne increases, the revenue
matrix for TMM will see a diversification in the sources of
earnings. Its current main earner, TMnet, will be one of the
many to make profits for TMM. Not only will Netmyne
provide customers with opportunities to tap the potential of
Internet but will also help Telekom Malaysia increase its

product offerings to a wider market. The latter is reflective
in the current transitional portal service that focuses more on
content for lifestyle, as well as the initiation of Telekom
Malaysia’s RealReward Card programme.
Inter-related services of CASP such as TM Visa
Card, a co-branded credit card with Standard Chartered Bank
continues to serve Telekom Malaysia customers. The loyalty
card programme of RealReward further complements the
card link to the online service offering of Netmyne.
Portal
While the full portal service is yet to be launched,
it is currently accessible via the TMnet URL. This portal serves
content that relates to lifestyle and its wideranging variations.
The portal provides a gateway to the opportunities of the
Internet not only for consumers but for businesses as well.
The portal offers e-commerce services and business
leverage for those who employ Netmyne services. This is
yet another diversified form of earning revenue for Telekom
Malaysia.

Whether for personal or for business use,
we possess the choices to meet your
needs of a changing world
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High speed data communication

Fully digital communication access

Interactive Multimedia Services (IMS)

Financial Statement Operating Revenue

This category of product continues to offer new
content in line with current market demands. Currently
available only to customers of TMnet High Speed Internet
Access and limited to the Multimedia Super Corridor (MSC)
area, the service will be extended to other areas when
broadband access service is put in place through TMnet.
This service will allow the customer to have instantaneous
access to video sources at their own leisure. Other services
which are anticipated to come online through this service
are telebanking, home shopping, distance learning and
broadband portal.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2000,
TMM recorded an increase of 44.7% in revenue amounting
RM210.463 million. The increase is mainly due to higher
subscribers’ growth recorded by the ISP services, especially
TMnet 1515 and TMnet Direct which contributed more than
97% of the total revenue.
However, the revenue mix has marginally changed as
other services such as Web Hosting and On Line Services
have started to generate revenue for TMM.
Operating Costs

Serving Market Segments
As the Internet proliferates the market segments
become clearer with specific needs. In responding to this
change TMM continues to offer timely services in accordance
with market needs.
The narrowband dial-up service serves the general
consumers, while the broadband service is for corporate sector
customers and small and medium scale enterprises.
In anticipation of higher broadband demand, TMM will soon
embark on an ‘always on’ Internet access service. TMnet
aims to serve all customer segments, a reflection of how the
Internet has impacted the market place.

TMM’s operating costs increased by 55.8% from
RM76.295 million to RM118.914 million in tandem with its
revenue. This is largely due to the increase in International
Leased Line/Satellite rental and Advertising & Promotions
expenditure. These two cost components comprise 84.2% of
total operating costs.

In addressing the PC ownership which is crucial for
Internet growth, TMM developed a ‘TMnet click-a-deal’
package, in collaboration with PC manufacturers. The product
aimed to pave the way for easy ownership of Internetready PCs.
With Internet usage on the increase, a system upgrade
was undertaken to ensure better Internet access. In addition,
TMnet customers would also enjoy improved connectivity
experience with the commissioning of the TMnet Hypernet
Backbone, the country’s biggest backbone link for Internet
services. This gives customers an unrivalled 10Gbps domestic
backbone capacity.
TMM also developed a gift reward programme in
appreciation of TMnet valued subscribers. In this regard, the
Maybank Gift Points programme, jointly developed with
Maybank and the RealReward programme, were launched.
Through these programmes, subscribers can collect points for
redemption of a wide range of gifts.

Capital Expenditure
For the year 2000, total capital expenditure stood at
RM158.92 million, an increase of 276% from the previous
year. The increase is mainly attributed to the general
improvement of TMnet services.

In the area of Commerce and Application Service
Provider (CASP), TMM had participated in a nationwide
TM-SMI e-commerce roadshow that not only showcased the
services of TMM but also aimed to create awareness of
TMM’s Netmyne services. The roadshow marked TMM’s
first collaborative effort with the National SMI Association
and the Dewan Perniagaan Melayu to enhance Internet
education for the growing SMI sector.
TMM also took the opportunity to participate in key
events such as the Commonwealth Telecommunication
Organisation Conference, InfoSoc Malaysia 2000 and Tour
de Langkawi, to name a few.
The business of TMM was realigned as a measure
to strengthen its position in the Internet related industry.
In support of this, TMM has also initiated an investment in
new ideas to bring added value to Internet based business.
This included participating in Venture 2001, the first Malaysian
Business Plan competition. The participation gave TMM
an opportunity to tap on new ideas of the New Economy
and potentially incubate them for a brighter and more
discernible future.

Landmark Events
With its distinct service to the business community,
Netmyne also provides the ideal platform for business-tobusiness interaction as well as the anticipated consumer-tobusiness interaction. In this regard, Netmyne’s application hosting
services would well serve the knowledge-based customers.
As the Interactive Multimedia Services continue to
serve a niche market, broadband access service is expected
to be rolled out and made available to the masses in
accordance to the planned availability of the broadband
Internet access service.

TMM forged smart relationships with Microsoft and
Hewlett Packard to enhance its Netmyne service offerings,
particularly in the area of application hosting. Microsoft
Chairman Bill Gates personally endorsed the effort and
reported it as a prime market first introduced by TMM.
The international link for TMnet was further increased
to accommodate an additional Mbps link to the US. This
brings the total capacity of TMnet’s international link to
nearly 400Mbps, making it a significant leader in the region.
Working with the best, a Telekom Malaysia
– Microsoft initiative
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The TM-SMI Roadshow
– inculcating the way of future business
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ADDRESSING THE
MULTIMEDIA OPPORTUNITIES

Industry Convergence:

II
a
•
•
•

The telecommunications industry is currently facing
new market environment driven by the following factors:
New technologies
Regulatory drive in response to enhanced social, commercial
and competitive activity
Potential growth in revenue from advanced and new services

This is not just a local scenario but a global
phenomenon in which the impact will be felt in developed
and developing nations, although in varying degree.
We prefer to see the convergence of telecommunications,
computing and broadcasting as the next great opportunity for
our industry that will allow us to capitalise on our existing
expertise and experience to develop new services and products
beyond the traditional voice media. Telecommunication
companies will now have the option to provide a broadcasting
facility, encompassing both content and application.

Welcoming the Information and Convergence Age
Malaysia, always proactive and receptive to the
advances in technology, welcomes therefore the advent of
the Information and Convergence age with its promise of a
New World order where information, ideas, people, products
and services move across borders in the most cost-effective,
democratic and liberal way.
We have of course to be mindful of and prepare for
a degree of downside in all of this. We can anticipate that when
boundaries disappear and dominance is no longer possible,
new players will emerge, previously discounted, but now able
to compete against the Telcos. The worst case scenario sees
revenues threatened, margins slowly shrinking and profits
inevitably falling. To counter this, existing telecommunication
companies must set new directions for themselves, inculcate
a different mindset and put in place a strategic plan to
maximise the new business opportunities inherent in the
convergence scenario.

The Converging Information Society
• PSTN
• Cable Networks
• Mobile Networks
• Satellite Networks
• Broadcasting Networks

Telecommunications
Industry

Multimedia
Network
Equipment

Entertainment &
Information Industry

Online
Multimedia
Interactive
Multimedia

• Computers
• Software
• Interfaces

IT Industry
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Off-line
Multimedia

• Databases
• Av Products
• Information Services
• Films
• Music
• Photos

First and foremost, this new era brings closer the
possibility of the Telecommunications, Broadcasting and
Computing industries to merge as one in an environment
that greatly enlarges the scope to develop new and more
advanced services. Telecommunication companies will
find themselves well placed, able to capitalise on existing
experience and expertise and participate in new business
avenues beyond the current pipe, on top of the voice service
over the legacy networks.
Although this may sound exciting, we cannot be
complacent and rely on retaining what was once exclusive
telephony business. Cable companies and others will be quick
to perceive the potential of new sources of revenue involved
in the greatly extended value chain. The convergence ultimately
will bring about the transformation of marketing, education,
commerce and culture.
The convergence factor in real terms will create
new areas of growth in the provision of services that will let
in a multitude of players seeking to gain a business edge.
The technical and commercial horizon will widen significantly
as a result.

The New Opportunities
The deregulation of the telecommunications sector
and the introduction of the Convergence Act serves to
accelerate the scenario outlined above. The rapidly approaching
convergence era brings with it the anticipated merging of the
Telecommunications, Broadcasting and Computing industries.
Incumbents in the telecommunications industry cannot isolate
themselves and ignore the challenges and opportunities
which will become available. We will see the advent of what
has become known as Next Generation multiservices
communication companies that will provide a wide spectrum
of services to the consumer.
Voice telephony which has always been the main
business for Telcos is being challenged by the need for more
sophisticated means of communications demanded by
the role and complexity of the information needed to be
transmitted. Voice communication and voice based networks
can no longer satisfy the need to transmit text and graphical
information and in future such information will take
even more sophisticated forms of interactive and three
dimensional images, hence Interactive Multimedia Services
and online services.
The explosion in data communications would result
in data traffic overtaking voice traffic. This is facilitated by
a tremendous growth in the use of Internet services now
standing at 200% per year, data networking within the
corporate environment; and the growing realisation of
E-Commerce. This brings forth the new demand for a
network that will carry traditional Telco voice traffic whilst
enabling newer data-based services (derived mainly from
multimedia and Internet services) to be transmitted together
– eventually operating a system of voice over data network.

In the era of convergence, content provisioning will
be a very important component as this is where all the
applications reside. With the trend moving towards broadband,
interactive multimedia and Internet applications, content is
one area that promises a new major revenue stream for the
industry players.
The content area need not necessarily be static as
within its preparation and delivery, several value-added
activities can be implemented. The data created opens the
possibility for traditional telcos to introduce the next layer of
services in its operations – the infostructure, and added to
this, the new area of communication – the Internet.

The Internet – Cyberbed of Opportunities
The main advantage of the Internet is through the
innovative concept of anywhere, anytime accessibility. The
Internet allows access to the global market and extends reach
to all corners of the world, presenting us with a faster
time to market and a lowering in costs for advertising and
communications purposes.
The Internet/IP based network offers a whole host of
innovations, many remaining untapped throughout the world.
It offers a simple and yet effective means of delivering
education, commerce, government, information, news and
entertainment opportunities to a national and world population
without having to be delivered over broadband and high
speed networks. The shortage of personal computers in a
majority of homes need not be a stumbling block as recent
developments in Internet television serves as a catalyst in the
creation of an informed society. The further development of
this technology will in time provide the public with a
consumer friendly every day tool well within the reach of
the mass population, many of whom own a television set.
Be it for corporations or the general public, the value
that can be derived from the Internet depends on the content
and applications that service providers offer onto the
network. A cyber print of content such as Portal, hosts sites
for user interaction. The attractions of these sites rely on
contents and applications such as web server platforms,
Internet Commerce, real player servers, application servers
and hosting farms. After interacting for content, the natural
evolution is to transact for content, giving rise to the need
for electronic commerce (E-Commerce). This again offers
opportunities within the middle chain.

The Way To Go for Future Services
The future telecommunications industry will be based
on Information and Communications Technology (ICT).
Development in computers has encouraged the growth of
data networks, hence data traffic, facilitated by the booming
growth of the Internet. The driver of the future is convenience.
This single driver will bring with it an ever-increasing
demand for a wider range of high quality content services.
Networks will evolve to deliver increasingly rich
content and eventually full broadband multimedia. Similarly,
appliances must advance to display content in colour,
full video and high-fidelity stereo. The expense of these
advancements will be rationalised by the content they will
carry and display, which is very much related to the
bandwidth requirement.
The new Telco should focus itself in delivering, on
promise of convenience and mobility, premium quality
information and communication services to the potentially
enormous residential sector. In the business and corporate sector,
convenience is also important especially in increasing business
effectiveness and efficiency. This huge range of multimedia
services can be generally categorised into two groups:
1) On-Line Services
2) On-Demand Services
The type of services we envisage are outlined in the
list below:
1) On-Line Services – Application driven:
– E-Commerce (Electronic Transactions, Home
Shopping, Travel Agent, Electronic/Home Banking,
Advertising, On-Line Bill Payment, Internet Kiosk)
– Web-Based/Internet Communication (Web-based
IN services, Unified Messaging Services, VoIP,
Fast Internet Access, True Video Conferencing, Call
Conferencing, VAS)
– SoHo/Virtual Offices/Teleworking
– Educational Services (Virtual Learning, Virtual
University, True-Distant Learning, Smart School,
Virtual Library)
– Medical Data and Information (Remote diagnosis etc.)
– Citizen card (Smart card with combined features of
identity card, driving license, data on health records,
credit card, access card)
– Network Games
– Global Networking Service
2)

E-Commerce can be described as the buying and
selling of goods and services on the Internet, especially the
World Wide Web (WWW). The recent statistics by IDC
show that Internet users in Malaysia will grow from 1.89
million in 2000 to 3.91 million in 2004. This results in
forecasting an increased total revenue for E-Commerce from
USD426 million in 2000 to USD3 billion in 2004.
E-Commerce brings with it a number of attractions.
The electronic market place over the Internet platform (i.e.
WWW) is planet-wide, thus allowing for an instant global
reach of customers. In addition, E-Commerce provides
service 24 hours a day allowing business transactions to take
place anytime and anywhere, at a fraction of the expense of
conventional marketing and distribution channels.

On-Demand Services – Content driven:
– News On-Demand
– Movie On-Demand
– Music On-Demand
– Games On-Demand
– Pay TV

The convergence of the telecommunications, computing
and broadcasting industries will allow new generation Telcos
to provide a host of convenient services to the consumer.
Previously above their network capability, access
services, web-enabling services, transaction enabling services
and end-user interfaces will become more commonplace.
This should be treated as a great opportunity where Telcos
can capitalise on proven expertise and experience in the new
communications environment.
The industry advancement and convergence, through
a new set of enabling technologies, is beginning to change
the way people work, learn, play and live, allowing users an
opportunity to be a player in the growing knowledge economy.
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operations Review

ServiceCo

OPERATIONS REVIEW
ServiceCo constitutes a group of Strategic Business Units (SBU) that operate and manage
support services in Telekom Malaysia. It comprises Fleet Management, Malaysian Logistics,
Malaysian Security, Property Development and Property Operations. Operating as business units,
the SBUs’ primary objective is to provide high quality and cost effective services to TelCo – the
anchor customer. In the longer term, SBU’s mission is to develop viable commercial entities
providing valuable outsourcing opportunities for Telekom Malaysia as a continuing effort to
enhance shareholders’ value.

“the sum total is always
greater than the individual”

Nor Hizam bin Hashim
Chief Operating Officer, ServiceCo

Since inception, ServiceCo has made a concerted
effort to improve the cost management of Telekom
Malaysia’s non-core services. Towards reducing the noncore costs, ServiceCo embarked on a preparatory programme
for eventual commercialisation of these non-core services.
This was achieved by initiating appropriate programmes
to develop and enhance the business skills of its human
resources, and making its customer services more effective
and reliable. Both provisions remain fundamental to the
success of the programme.
In the year 2000, the Group continued with these
commercialisation process through a variety of ways. These
included strengthening commercial accountability and the
adoption of quality management standards in doing business
especially in the area of customer support and care. The SBUs
are subject to periodic quality surveys and reviews of their
endeavours to provide high quality and cost-effective non-core
services to TelCo.

FLEET MANAGEMENT
The primary business of the Fleet Management SBU
is to manage a fleet of vehicles for Telekom Malaysia based
on the concept of auto-lease. In addition, the SBU also
manages the sales of used cars earmarked for disposal by
Telekom Malaysia.
In the year 2000, Fleet Management executed three
contracts for the direct supply of fuel to TM’s vehicles at the
suppliers’ premises. The contracts valued at RM23 million,
for a duration of three years, were entered into between
Telekom Malaysia and three major petroleum supply companies
namely Petronas, Shell and Esso. The direct supply option
allows for greater efficiency in the management of fuel in
relation to delivery time and cost.
Improvement measures in the management of logistics
costs have also been studied and initiated to enhance business
efficiency. Towards this end, the Fleet Management SBU
introduced the electronic Fleet Card System nationwide. The
system replaced the previous manual (paper) fuel indent
system thus resulting in enhanced efficiency. More specifically,
better cost management driven by effective business control
and accounting has been reported.

Nor Hizam was appointed as the Chief Operating Officer,
TM International Ventures, effective 1 February 2001.
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A physical assurance of security at all our premises adds value
to that inherent in our technology

MALAYSIAN SECURITY
Malaysian Security SBU provides security services to
Telekom Malaysia aimed at safeguarding the Company’s
assets. Its business priorities are to reduce the incidences of
criminal acts such as fraud and minimise Telekom Malaysia’s
asset losses. Armed security services are also provided in
areas where security threats and risks are higher such as key
business outlets, counting centres and key installation points
that are gazetted by the government. Other services provided
by the Malaysian Security SBU include cash-in-transit
security services, optical fiber route patrolling services, security
audit services, investigation services, security consultancy
services and all day central monitoring services.
In the year 2000, the SBU continued to accelerate its
initiatives towards attaining improved cost management and
the provision of high quality security services. Towards this
end, the SBU concluded contracts with seven private security
companies to provide security services nationwide. The
contracts are for a duration of three years.

MALAYSIAN LOGISTICS
The core business of the Malaysian Logistics SBU
is to provide high quality logistic services and solutions to
all operating divisions in Telekom Malaysia including its
subsidiary companies. The main business activities are
warehousing, distribution and transportation services. These
services are also extended to external customers on a limited
scale to maximise economic resource utilisation.

In the year 2000, Malaysian Logistics SBU continued
to implement the operational strategies towards commercial
management and cost efficiency. In this respect, the SBU
pursued its goal to increase the external customer base and
improve the management of operating costs. The SBU
established a strategic alliance with Shell Gas, a major LPG
distribution company, to commercially utilise the warehouses
located in Prai, Malacca, Kuantan, Alor Star, Taiping and
Kluang. The need for adequate storage sites will increase in
the future. The SBU will continue to look for revenue
growth opportunities in the future.
As an on-going effort, improving cost management
has shown significant results. One of these is the reduction
of 10.7% in the operating expenditure of the Group, in
contrast to the budget for the year ended 31 December 2000.

PROPERTY OPERATIONS
The fundamental business of the Property Operations
SBU is to provide facility management services to Telekom
Malaysia. The strategic business mission of the SBU is
to excel in providing innovative and high quality facility
management services through the development of a competent
and business oriented workforce, effective teamwork, effective
cost management and total customer satisfaction.
For the year 2000, the SBU continued to adopt
preventive and comprehensive maintenance programmes in
its effort to enhance the reliability of building services. The
practice of utilising one-stop customer service centres for
building services introduced last year has proven to be
effective in enhancing the quality of facility management
services. The SBU continued to adopt this practice during
the year resulting in better customer care. The increased
application of information technology such as the development
of an official website for Telekom Malaysia’s resorts to
improve customer service and business control, has in turn
resulted in improving facilities management. In the year under
review, the Property Operations SBU concluded contracts
with cellular companies TM Touch and Mobikom to provide
and maintain their infrastructures including civil works and
construction of telecommunication towers.
The SBU continues to place emphasis on better cost
management resulting in a further reduction of facilities
management cost for the TM group.

Telekom Malaysia’s resorts – avenues for rest and recreation for
our employees whilst generating revenues
Above: Sri Intan, Cameron Highlands
Right: Sri Intan, Penang

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT
The Property Development SBU is responsible for
providing the following services:a.
project management
b. building consultancy
c.
marketing and valuation services.
In the year 2000, the SBU continued to implement
action plans to achieve better cost management of projects.
The SBU completed several key property projects which
include a commercial office block, satellite farm building in
Kinarut, Sabah, customer access network, area maintenance
offices in Beaufort, Papar and Kuala Penyu in Sabah and
Seberang Prai in Penang and customer service centres in
Pelangi and Shah Alam. The year 2000 witnessed the
completion of an Internet Data Centre in Cyberjaya that is
expected to provide a major revenue stream for the TM
group in the future.

The convergence of communications and IT and the
increased use of cellular communications necessitate a review
of TM’s infrastructure needs. The Property Development
SBU will continue to develop more cost and functionally
effective buildings to meet the needs of the anticipated
business convergence.

Operational efficiences ultimately enhance profitability
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THE
3GENERATION GAP

cellular –

The early 1980’s saw the birth of cellular services in
a few Nordic countries, followed quite closely by the USA
and United Kingdom. These first generation cellular systems
were based on analogue technology and were mutually
incompatible since they operated on different standards viz
NMT, AMPS and ETACS. Early services were plagued by
various service deficiencies such as limited coverage, quality
of service, bulky size and high cost of mobile telephone sets
and limited roaming capability.
A decade later, by the time the 2nd generation
system was conceived, most of these deficiencies, with the
exception of global roaming, were already corrected and
improved. The 2nd generation cellular systems, in particular
GSM, were developed to address two major service
requirements: quality of service (call clarity) and global
roaming. GSM is today accepted as the defacto global
standard for 2nd generation cellular service.
Today, there is a lot of hype and publicity on third
generation cellular system, the so-called 3G cellular. It is
imperative that we understand this new technology intimately
to ensure that the offering and its introduction matches the
market expectation.

THIRD GENERATION MOBILE ISSUES
Despite the flurry of activities worldwide for Third
Generation Mobile Services (“3G”) spectrum, and the
astronomical price bids by operators in the United Kingdom,
Germany and elsewhere around the world, competent and
clear cut business cases for 3G have yet to emerge. This
blurred view of an as yet untested and unproven technology
is causing deep anxiety in the mobile community, especially
in countries where the telecommunications regulator has
indicated 3G spectrums would be awarded based on the
auction process, or even a hybrid of a beauty contest and
auction process.
The relatively lacklustre service launches of WAP
and also to a certain extent GPRS, the so-called precursors
to 3G services and content, have also added to the deepening
apprehension. Thus far, WAP ended up being labelled an
“overhyped” service to access the Internet, with global
complaints of slow access speeds and boring or unattractive
content; whilst GPRS remains besotted with problems of
handset availability or incompatibility.
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3G network rollout is expected to be a hugely
expensive and complex undertaking. Without a clear
understanding of the main drivers and market positioning for
3G services, operators may just be piling up huge debts to
their balance sheets without a justifiable return on the
so-called “cutting edge” product launched.

PRODUCT VERSUS SERVICES
In the past several years, the oft repeated vision of
3G services, as shown at numerous trade shows and exhibitions,
especially from network infrastructure vendors, has included
the ability to view and listen to your grandchild whilst you
are at some remote beach in a far-away land; the ability to
transfer data or files from your home office at “lightning”
speed (at up to 2 Megabits per second) whilst sitting in a
foreign airport and also the ability to find a restaurant in
Paris or Rome by simply downloading a map showing the
street you are on with a “lighted” path showing the way to
your restaurant.
Are these the type of service consumers will pay
good money for, and allow the operators to recoup expensive
3G spectrum licence and network rollout costs over a
reasonable period, or will 3G turn out to be another product
doomed to failure? Have any lessons been learnt from the
well-known success stories emerging from Japan on i-Mode
and the exploding SMS usage around the world, especially
in Finland, the Philippines, Germany and Portugal?
The current predominant argument for 3G is the high
volume of data transmitted over the fixed networks, and
replicating this growing demand for data over a mobile
network seems a surefire recipe for success. Added to this is
the advantage of mobility to the consumer, with the capability
of high-speed data transmission and internet access “on the
go”. For these capabilities, the general view is consumers
should be willing to pay a high premium for the product.
As revealed by i-Mode however, speed is not an
important determinant for success. By comparison, attractive
content, simplified alliance policies with content providers
and a “pay as you use” charging mechanism became the key
to success. Similarly, SMS services, despite the simplified
data formats and display limitations of the ordinary handset,
succeeded in part due to easy access to content and affordable
charging by operators. Premium charging for mobile data
access (over that of a fixed data access) should, therefore, be
based more on the value and importance of the information
to the consumer than for mere mobility or high speed access
to information and content.

Typical 3G Network Topology
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3G DRIVERS AND SUCCESS FACTORS
In the final analysis, we believe the main drivers for
3G would be the services and content that are attractive to the
individual consumer, with the content and information being
made highly relevant to them, and not those thought of by
visionaries within the operators’ or the vendors’ organisations.
These, coupled with a simplified charging methodology,
should allow the initial phase of a 3G deployment at least a
chance to show off its product capabilities, before the “Star
Trek” kind of services such as mobile video conferencing
can take off.
It is also necessary to keep in mind that the mobile
phone is a personal device. Therefore, the services and
content deployed should rightly be tuned as such. The
majority of services and content that a consumer would want
to access and pay a premium for, would mostly be highly
personal in nature. Personalisation of the service access that
is offered to the individual, be it to his bank accounts, the
office LAN/WAN (for connection to the office e-mail server
or other office systems) or his home PC should be made
easily customisable by the consumer himself. In mobile
parlance, this would also provide the added benefit of
“locking” in the subscriber to the particular network, and
thence reducing “churn”.
The other unrivalled advantage of mobile data access,
which is “mobility” should also be put into full play. Mobile
networks know the location of each individual subscriber at
any given time, something a fixed network cannot do. Thus
providing information relevant to him at the particular moment
and in the location that he is in could be an added ingredient
for the success of 3G services (and similarly relevant for
existing 2G/2.5G networks).
A simplified and easily understood charging policy
and mechanism should also be in place before services are
rolled out to the consumer. Often, operators neglect this
important aspect of a service rollout. An unreasonably high
charging policy has killed many a good service, despite well
thought out marketing campaigns and promotions. Low pricing

during an extended “promotion period” could promote
widespread testing of 3G services, and “hook” consumers to its
capabilities and advantages. Reassessment of the tariff could
always be done later to ensure adequate returns for the operator.

3G MOBILE IN MALAYSIA
The general opinion from most operators and
international consultants points to 3G services requirement in
Malaysia being as late as 2004 or even 2005. Despite this,
however, all five operators are already gearing themselves
for the 3G spectrum allocation process which is expected to
be carried out before the end of 2001, be it via an auction
or a beauty contest or a hybrid of both. With two GSM900
and three GSM1800 operators on the local scene,
competition for the spectrum is expected to be intense,
especially after setting aside balance sheet considerations and
the absence of clear cut business cases.
To a GSM1800 operator such as Telekom Malaysia's
TMTOUCH, a 3G-spectrum licence is strategically important
for its future survival and operations (on a 10 to 20 year
business perspective). To TMTOUCH, as is also relevant for
any GSM 1800 operator, there are clear-cut cost advantages
in rolling out a 3G network. The 3G spectrum is obviously
closer to the spectrum for GSM1800 than GSM900. The
immediate cost advantage would be a high reusability of
nearly all GSM1800 base station sites instead of having to
build new sites specifically for 3G. Savings in the form of
site rental charges, physical infrastructure costs (towers,
cabins, back up power supply, etc) can add up substantially
to better business cases for 3G.
With the latest generation Base Transmitter Stations
being capable of accommodating 3G radio parts, the cost
savings become even more obvious to a GSM1800 network,
especially when taken together with the attendant savings
arising from shared transmission equipment and leased
circuits. Capital expenditures on network equipment could be
substantially reduced, making an even brighter business case
for 3G possible.
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Ask...

Telekom Malaysia

connects Malaysians
of all ages and race to and from

even the

remotest

of

areas,

cities, towns

and yes...

from the middle of the densest rainforest

to the heart of rarely traversed mountain ranges.

...and you will be
The need to

communicate

connected

is a vital part of our life.

We want to know the latest news. We need to hear from loved ones.
We would like to have a friendly ear to

listen

to us.

Whichever way you need to be connected...
via the

Communications

is now a basic need and should
not just be confined to fixed wired locations.

Our endeavours are towards
a

connected

Malaysia.

telephone, satellite, cellular networks

or even the

Internet,

we will always find a way.

Because we are here for you.

Subsidiaries

Telekom Cellular Sdn. Bhd.
ADNAN
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Telekom Cellular Sdn. Bhd. was one of the six
leading cellular operators to sign the agreement for the Cellular
Coverage Common Antenna System Project in August 2000.
TMTOUCH was appointed Official Cellular Provider for the
Fourth International Advisory Panel (IAP) meeting of the
MSC in August 2000.
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The company gives top priority to continuous
improvement of service to customers, enhancement of network

As part of the rationalisation process undertaken by
Telekom Malaysia, Mobikom Sdn. Bhd., the first cellular
company to provide digital cellular communications in
Malaysia through Mobifon 018 digital AMPS service since
1994 and Telekom Cellular Sdn. Bhd. was placed under one
management effective October 2000.
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Since its debut in 1996, TMTOUCH has rapidly
grown from a customer base of 233,000 at end 1999 to that
of more than 1,000,000 in 2000. It has 37 customer service
centres nationwide. Committed to infrastructure spending,
the Telekom Cellular Sdn. Bhd.’s main focus is to introduce
the latest and leading edge equipment to create a platform
for the provision of futuristic services ready for the
migration towards 3G.

TMTOUCH serves an extensive market comprising
corporate, government and individual sectors. Although its
strongest focus is on the 18-25 age group for which it
launched its TMTOUCH Advance prepaid service, it has also
lined up several attractive packages for the post paid market
segment. The Topaz, Intan, Silver, Platinum, Gold, TMTOUCH
Business Partner and Special Government Package offer
users discounts on access fees and value added services.
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TMTOUCH is the digital cellular network of Telekom
Cellular Sdn. Bhd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Telekom
Malaysia. It provides mobile telephony services under the
TMTOUCH 013 brand name. TMTOUCH operates on the
Global System for Mobile Communication (GSM) technology
based on 1800 MHz frequency spectrum, offering considerable
benefits such as greater security, superior speech quality,
clearer transmission, improved capacity and data transmission
capabilities.

TMTOUCH offers a wide range of services including
International Direct Dialing (IDD), Short Messaging Services
(SMS), Prepaid Services, Value Added Services such as caller
line identification presentation, call holding, call waiting, voice
messaging, call forwarding and itemised billing. International
roaming is now available with 45 roaming partners. Wireless
Application Protocol (WAP) was introduced in October 2000,
offering subscribers the latest news, stock prices, business
information, entertainment, updates and traffic information. The
TMTOUCH Corporate Homepage http://www.tmtouch.com.my
was officially re-launched in October 2000 as an informative,
interactive and transactional service.
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Adnan was appointed as the Senior Vice
President, Major Business & Government, Telco
effective 1 February 2001

coverage and capacity upgrading. As at December 2000,
TMTOUCH has recorded both outdoor and indoor coverages
of 40% and 42% respectively. Its current network spans all
major towns and their surrounding areas in Peninsula
Malaysia, Sabah and Sarawak.

Fiberail Sdn. Bhd.

Fiberail Sdn. Bhd. (Fiberail), a joint-venture company
between Telekom Malaysia and Keretapi Tanah Melayu
Berhad (KTMB) is licenced by the Ministry of Energy,
Communications and Multimedia to provide telecommunication
network related services. Fiberail has been granted the
exclusive right by KTMB to use their railway corridor for its
optical cable network.
With a 1,600 km fibre optic cable network connecting
all major towns in Peninsula Malaysia, Fiberail has been
able to offer cost effective and high quality network solutions
to meet the demands of the fast growing information,
communications and entertainment industry. The government’s
vision in promoting K-economy and MSC Project especially
in e-commerce has served as a wake-up call to corporations.
This has created a lot of challenges to the telecommunication
and service providers in meeting high expectation in service
quality and fast service delivery.
Fiberail recognises the importance and opportunities
derived from the phenomenon. Therefore, Fiberail has structured
a wide range of products and services to meet the ever-changing
needs and high expectation of its customers. We offer flexible
leased fibre optic packages, narrow and broad bandwidth
services and turnkey network solutions. Ancillary services
are added in to complement our core products. These include
leasing of telecommunication tower space and equipment
cabin space. These products will meet the requirements of
telecommunication operators, broadcasting organisations,
financial institutions, multinational corporations and the everexpanding and fast growing IT industry and multimedia
service providers.

The 100% fiber optic network connecting all major
towns helps its customers not only to reduce their network
set up time but also to help reduce their set up cost. The
integrated Network Management System using the state-ofthe-art technology supported by a professional and highly
committed technical team will ensure high quality and
reliability network service, particularly for high volume, high
speed data and mission critical applications.
Fiberail hopes to be the front-runner in Malaysia’s new
future, taking the fast track on the information superhighway.
All components of our network are geared for the highest
possible transmission quality to give total customer satisfaction.
On the quality initiative, Fiberail embarked on the ISO
project and achieved ISO 9002 certification on 7 April 2000.
Fiberail is the first licenced telecommunication operator to
achieve ISO 9002 certification on a company wide basis.
The scope of the certification is planning, development,
operation and maintenance, business management and support
services of the fibre optic network for telecommunication
purpose and business development for new products.
Staff training and empowerment is paramount in
contributing to the success of the company and this is in line
with the national aspiration. With a staff strength of 142, this
dynamic company has recorded a healthy growth in profit
and pleasing revenue per employee figures in what has been
a demanding year in the economic terms.
Future demand for a fibre optic telecommunication
system is deemed huge as the need for high speed audio,
video and data transmission increases at national and
international level. With constant review and upgrading of
technology for its network planning, equipment and engineering
support, Fiberail is confident and ensures superior quality
products for a full range of service packages to its customers.
In conclusion, eventhough the
year 2000 has been a very challenging
year, Fiberail has benefited from the
rapid growth of telecommunication
industry particularly with the
liberalisation and convergence of the
industry.
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Offering breathtaking views by day and night, Menara
Kuala Lumpur the world’s fourth tallest telecommunications
tower received her fourth millionth visitor in the year 2000.
This represented a continuous yearly increase in visitors
since it opened its doors in 1996. The year saw an increase
of 5% or 1,062,145 visitors was registered as compared to
1999, from both the foreign and domestic markets. The
ability to sustain visits to Menara Kuala Lumpur was
achieved through strategic all-year round activities in tandem
with the calendars of activities of schools, the Ministry of
Culture, Arts & Tourism and the Malaysian Tourism
Promotion Board. To ensure support from travel agencies,
MKL regularly introduces attractive incentives and schemes
as well as maintaining good relationship with them.

Meganet Communications Sdn. Bhd. is a provider of
intelligent building system (IBS), integrated telecommunications
and information technology solutions including multimedia
applications to both the government and private sectors.

Numerous exciting events have been held at MKL
during the year 2000. The Kuala Lumpur International
Towerthon 2000, recognised as the world’s best and most
lucrative tower run and in its third year since inception, drew
a total of 2,021 of local and foreign runners. The year 2000
also witnessed the world’s first tower BASE Jump where
three jumpers including a Malaysian were invited to exhibit
their skills.

Meganet offers IBS consulting services, engineering
services and post-implementation support services with respect
to the intelligent building system components. In detail,
some of the elements of IBS are the Integrated Building
Management System (IBMS), Network/Telecommunication
System, Local Area Network (LAN) & WAN System Building
Access & Security Management System, Car Parking System
and Smart Card Application solutions.
The year 2000 has been an encouraging year for
Meganet. Following completion of several high profile
projects in 1999, such as the Multimedia University, Prime
Minister’s Department and Residence and Parcels A and B,
Meganet is focusing on repeat businesses from the same
clients. Its success rate so far is indicative that Meganet is on
track in achieving its short and long-term goals.
As part of the Group’s initiative to consolidate its
business in year 2000, Meganet assumed all on-going projects
of Intelsec Sdn. Bhd. This marks a new era for Meganet as
it can now provide security management system solutions in
addition to its existing list of products and services. With
this expansion and diversity in products and services on
offer, Meganet is better positioned in meeting customer
needs. Customer interaction is vital to forward planning. The
feedback from various expositions, seminars and the
Appreciation Night held in the year 2000 will be taken into
account in future business strategy.
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In accordance with the Company’s mission and vision
statement to evolve from intelligent Building to Intelligent
City, Meganet continues to work with several prominent
developers in developing the Smart Township concept and is
deeply involved in the planning and developing stage to
incorporate an integrated communications infrastructure,
facilities and interconnectivity. The Intelligent City will help
enhance the quality of life for city-dwellers and promote
electronic ways of conducting business.
Meganet continues to show strong growth in the year
2000. Excellent solutions and services are priority and
responsible for the significant increase in the number of
clients and projects undertaken. The Company is confident in
forecasting a financial projection of a pleasing growth trend
in future years.

Other highlights of the year was the Tower Camp,
Tower Hunt, Tower Baby Celebrations, School Holidays
Fiesta, Anniversary Celebrations and also the display of
Formula One McLaren Mercedes cars.
Despite all its modernity, Menara Kuala Lumpur
possesses an inherent advantage in enlightening foreigners
on the local arts and cultural heritage of the country.
Working in association with the relevant government bodies
and agencies, display of arts and crafts and cultural
performances are undertaken regularly at the amphitheatre
and concourse areas of Menara Kuala Lumpur. Traditional
music, dances and plays like dikir barat, wayang kulit, mak
yong and also those of the other ethnic races draw the
enthusiasm of visitors.
Konsert Citrawarna Irama Malaysia and Konsert Di
Puncak Awan are prime examples of the ongoing efforts in
promoting the heritage and culture of the country. With the
Governments’ aggressive tourism promotion drive, Menara
Kuala Lumpur looks forward to working in tandem and
increasing the number of visitors. In its fifth year of operations,
all efforts are geared towards increasing the number of
activities whilst continuously improving services to ensure
that it remains a must visit destination.
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Stature comes with depth and not height. And with
this guiding principle, the year 2000 proved to be another
successful year for Menara Kuala Lumpur (MKL). Initially
conceived as a telecommunications tower, Menara Kuala
Lumpur is today more popularly known as a major tourist
destination.
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Menara Kuala Lumpur Sdn. Bhd.
SHAHID

Meganet Communications Sdn. Bhd.
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Telekom Publications Sdn. Bhd.
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Cybermall Sdn. Bhd. a wholly-owned subsidiary of
TPSB with full MSC status, was incorporated on 1 January
2000. It is entrusted with the responsibility of bringing
TPSB’s business into the multimedia age. Its first initiative
was to launch the Malaysia Internet Yellow Pages (MIYP) in
October 2000. MIYP offers value added and chain
management services through its user friendly and interactive
search engine. Users are now able to search easily for
information on companies, products, services, brands,
locations, directions and shortest routes with just the click of
a mouse. Geographical Information System (GIS) Services
offers assistance to Malaysian companies in managing branches
of their organisations such as locating their chain stores,
stations and distribution points. GIS acts as an interface,
allowing the company to acquire information, perform analysis
and effective business planning. A Wireless Application
Protocol (WAP) Service has been developed for TMTOUCH
network to provide inquiries on directory listings.
As a member of the Asian Directory Publishers
Association Inc. (ADPAI), Telekom Publications Sdn. Bhd.
is the exclusive sales agent for all members of ADPAI. The
most active involvement comes through the Yellow Pages of
the Philippines, Indonesia, Brunei and Myanmar.
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In all, TPSB produces 36 different directories covering
products, businesses, telecommunication services and equipment,
fax and telex, and tourism. The Malaysia Yellow Pages is a
directional medium based on classifications of products and
services while the Malaysia White Pages comprises two
volumes segregating residential telephone customers and business
customers. Both contains alphabetical listings. The Malaysia
Chinese Yellow Pages caters for the Chinese community.

The Neighbourhood Directory is an exclusive
publication targeting a specific area and offering businesses
additional opportunities to capture their local markets. Already
introduced in the Klang Valley, the service will be expanded
to other areas in accordance with demand.
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Telekom Publications Sdn. Bhd. (TPSB) is the official
publisher of the Malaysia Telephone Directories (White Pages
and Yellow Pages) in both print and multimedia format.

Other directories are more specialised in content and
target markets. For instance, the Malaysia Information Industry
Directory is industry specific, providing information on
telecommunications, related services and equipment. It also
includes Web and E-mail addresses and Telex Listings. The
Malaysia Tourist Pages focuses on tourist-related businesses.

VADS Sdn. Bhd.
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Haji Khairuddin was appointed as Group
Chief Auditor effective 1 January 2001

(TPSB)

VADS Sdn. Bhd. provides networking services,
electronic commerce solutions and applications to corporate
customers moving into the e-arena. The company has been a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Telekom Malaysia since 1997.
The year 2000 demonstrated continued strong
performance of VADS with a turnover growth of 49% and a
profit growth of 75% over 1999. The primary driver of this
strong growth is the company wide initiative of evolving
VADS to better serve its customers through two strategic
thrusts namely the internal and external evolution of VADS.
The internal evolution of VADS has been achieved
by transforming its business units into autonomous entities,
developing extensive skill building programmes, clear career
development paths and the hiring of highly-skilled personnel.
The external evolution of VADS has concentrated on
stronger corporate marketing initiatives by repositioning
VADS from a network to an e-business solutions provider
and by quick roll-out of new value-added products through
strategic alliances with world-class global players.

In the area of human resource, the company has
achieved increased personnel productivity (15% growth
over 1999), largely contributed by its recruitment drive
for the best talent in each operational area. For example,
Cisco/Microsoft certified engineers are hired for network
development and operations.
VADS offers two broad areas of e-space namely
e-infrastructure and e-applications. E-infrastructure provides
managed data network services for national and global
connectivity and network system integration services. VADS is
primed to serve multinational corporations (MNCs) by
leveraging the network resources of Telekom Malaysia and
its international partners.
E-applications encompass two broad services namely
Internet solutions and systems integration. The former offers
application service provider solutions and data centre access
services. The system integration services range from billing
and customer care to knowledge management solutions.
VADS is also broadening its product suite to meet
customers’ evolving needs through strategic alliances with
established global providers. Such strategic initiatives ensure
quick product/service rollout and protects VADS from the
technical risk of product obsolesence. Key alliance partners
are world-class network equipment and software providers
namely, Cisco, Sun Microsystems and Microsoft as well as
several application providers such as Onyx Software, Surf88
and Interactive Intelligence Inc.
It is the company’s objective to fully inform the
business community of VADS position as a key player in the
ICT domain, providing an edge that can improve and evolve
corporations to be competitive in the e-arena of today with the
ability to capitalise on enhanced productivity.

T E L E K O M M A L AY S I A B E R H A D
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The Melaka campus houses the Centre for Foundation
Studies and Extension Education and three faculties i.e the
Faculty of Information Science and Technology, Faculty of
Engineering and Technology and the Faculty of Business
and Law. Currently, the campus caters for almost 4,000
undergraduate and postgraduate students.

President

Multimedia University (MMU) was established as
a result of a mandate given to Telekom Malaysia in July
1996 by the Ministry of Education to set up the first
private university in Malaysia. The university was formerly
known as Universiti Telekom with its campus in Melaka.
Subsequently, in March 1997, Telekom Malaysia was given
another enormous task of setting up a Multimedia University,
located in the heart of Cyberjaya. Both campuses are now
known as Multimedia University.
Envisioned to be a world class university, MMU
being the first government-approved private university in
Malaysia, is proud of its close relations with various key
industry players, high quality research activities, ultra modern
laboratory & instruction facilities, innovative teaching
techniques and its active role in supporting the Multimedia
Super Corridor (MSC).
Commencing its operation in June 1999, the Cyberjaya
Campus houses the Faculty of Creative Multimedia, Faculty
of Engineering, Faculty of Management and Faculty of
Information Technology which aim to produce highly
skilled workforce required to serve the MSC and the global
community in the information and knowledge millennium.
The campus, which was officially launched by the Prime
Minister of Malaysia on 9 July 1999, has about 5,000 student
population at present.

96

Apart from finding new sources of income, the
University also placed great emphasis on prudent expenditure.
Total expenditure for year 2000 amounted to RM 5.8 million,
a minimal increase of 10.5% compared to 1999. The amount
is relatively small in view of the fact that the University
operates two campuses as well as the increase in the number
of students and staff members in the year 2000.
It was also an equally exciting year which marked
several significant achievements of the University.
It celebrated its pioneer graduates in its inaugural convocation
which further proved the university’s capability to supply
knowledge rich work force for the nation. Other highlights

of the year were the signing of agreements with giant
industry players such as IBM, INTEL and Microsoft. On the
R&D front, the University’s research efforts have shown
several encouraging results. To date, the University has
submitted 5 patent filings concerning the areas of
telecommunications and multimedia learning and numerous
high quality internationally refereed journal papers. The
University also successfully held two international conferencesthe Multimedia University International Symposium on
Information and Communications Technology 2000 (M2USIC
2000) and the Emerging Trends in Electronic Commerce
apart from numerous technical seminars held from time to time.

For the year 2000, there was a strong growth in
student population totalling almost 9,000 students compared
to the year 1999. Out of this, 500 are postgraduates at
Masters and Doctorate levels and nearly 300 are foreign
students coming from 33 countries. The number of students is
expected to increase further to 12,000 in the year 2003
which is the maximum targeted figure in the current plan.
In addition, the year 2000 also witnessed an increase in the
university’s income by about RM31 million or 58% in
comparison to the previous year. The increase is attributed to
several innovative steps taken by the University such as
offering short courses, professional consultancy to industries
and external collaborations.
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TELEKOM SALES & SERVICES
SENDIRIAN BERHAD

Telekom Sales & Services Sdn. Bhd.

It was jointly awarded ISO certification in August
2000 with Kedai Telekom.
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TSSSB has recently been commissioned by a leading
hotel to provide a PABX system valued at RM1.1 million.
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The Company offers a wide range of ICT products
and services under its own brand name as well as other
products under distributorship or dealership arrangements.
These include IT and Multimedia products such as PCs,
servers, printers, modems, peripherals, accessories, Integrated
Services Digital Network (ISDN) and network equipment,
routers, etc. Telecommunication products include single-line
phones, cordless/feature phones, Caller Line Identification
Presentation (CLIP) adjunct units and phones, key telephone
systems, PABX, facsimile machines, cellular phones, phone
cards, ring-ring cards and recharge cards. Together with
Telekom Malaysia, its parent company, TSSSB provides
Rented Payphone (TMRP) service and maintenance and
Telekom Malaysia services to the public.
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Telekom Sales & Services Sdn. Bhd. (TSSSB) is
a premier provider of Information and Communications
Technology (ICT) products, services and solutions. Through
its Corporate Sales group, eight sales outlets and various
business partners and dealers throughout the country, the
Company sells and distributes a host of ICT products and
interacts directly with customers in meeting their needs.
Through the vast chain of Kedai Telekom throughout Malaysia,
it provides a one-stop centre for Telekom Malaysia’s products
and services as well as the sale of retail Customer Premises
Equipment (CPE) products.

Telekom Applied Business Sdn. Bhd.
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TELEKOM APPLIED BUSINESS
SENDIRIAN BERHAD

(190662 - X)

Telekom Applied Business Sdn. Bhd. (TAB) is a total
Information and Communications Technology (ICT) solutions
provider focusing on E-Solution, Computer Telephony and
a TelCo Operation Support System for the government,
corporate, domestic and educational institution market.
Among others, TAB currently offers the following
major products in the ICT market: AIN/SS7 Applications,
Auto Attendance Systems, WAP Application, Infoline, Network
Fault Management System, Integrated Building Office
Automation, E-Link and Smart Card.
TAB is perhaps best known for the following
four products namely the EEZE Phone, iMEX, iPMS and
iCANMS. EEZE Phone is a next-generation fixed line prepaid
telephony system which optimizes Smart Card Technology,
Customer Premise Equipment, Telco Switches and Computer
Telephony Technology which uses a concept similar to that
adopted in cellular prepaid technology. This product has
particular relevance to multi-tenant rented accommodation
dwellers, office and commercial premises, event and exposition
customers, allowing full versatility and cost control while
eliminating telephony fraud. Integrated Messaging Exchange,
iMEX is a one-stop messaging exchange which enables
users to maintain real time contact by drawing together the
telephone, data and wireless network into a single connected
environment. The Integrated Payphone Management System,
iPMS, featuring web-based management interface and endto-end integration, is an effective way to manage payphone
operation for efficient control and profitability in the payphone
business. Potential benefits are fraud prevention, reduction in
cost, increase in revenue, improved payphone serviceability
and ability to integrate with existing systems. TAB officially

launched iPMS in July 2000. The Integrated Customer
Access Network Management System, iCANMS is an
integrated end-to-end solution for nationwide monitoring,
escalation and management of the customer access network
asset, allowing management of a multiple network system
from a single view in reduced response time.
TAB was granted full Multimedia Super Corridor
(MSC) status in May 2000 and participated in MSC Expo
2000 in September 2000.
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TERENGGANU

Haji Mohamad
Najid Ramli
General Manager
Business Operations

PETALING JAYA

Sales Outlet
• Kuala Terengganu • Dungun
• Kemaman

KELANTAN

PERAK

KEDAH/PERLIS

PENANG

Ahmad Zakaria

Mohd Ali Nordin

Sharoom Cha

Ahmad Ismail

General Manager
Business Operations

General Manager
Business Operations

General Manager
Business Operations

General Manager
Business Operations

Sales Outlet

Sales Outlet

Sales Outlet

Sales Outlet

• Kota Bharu • Pasir Mas
• Tanah Merah • Pasir Putih
• Kuala Krai

•
•
•
•
•

• Alor Setar • Jitra • Langkawi
• Kangar • Sungai Petani • Kulim

• Jalan Burmah • Bayan Baru
• Butterworth • Bukit Mertajam
• Sungai Bakap • Lebuh Downing

Ipoh • Tasek • Kampar • Batu Gajah
Taiping • Parit Buntar • Sungai Siput
Grik • Kuala Kangsar • Tapah
Sitiawan • Tanjong Malim
Teluk Intan

Primatel Business Centre
• Alor Setar

Primatel Business Centre
• Jalan Burmah

Primatel Business Centre
• Ipoh

JOHOR

NEGERI SEMBILAN

SARAWAK

PAHANG

Haji Zainal Abidin
Haji Abd. Rahman
General Manager
Business Operations
Sales Outlet
• Petaling Jaya • Damansara Utama
• Subang Jaya • Kajang
Primatel Business Centre
• Menara PKNS, Petaling Jaya

KUALA LUMPUR

SELANGOR

MELAKA

Abd. Razak Abu Samah

Zulkifli Abdul Aziz

Sharif Zaimi Abu Hashim

Haji Ali Man

General Manager
Business Operations

General Manager
Business Operations

General Manager
Business Operations

General Manager
Business Operations

Sales Outlet

Sales Outlet

Sales Outlet

Sales Outlet

•
•
•
•
•

• Seremban • Port Dickson
• Kuala Pilah • Tampin

• Kuantan • Bentong • Kuala Lipis
• Raub • Mentakab

•
•
•
•

Batu Pahat • Yong Peng • Muar
Kluang • Mersing • Segamat
Johor Bahru • Pelangi • Skudai
Pasir Gudang • Kota Tinggi
Pontian • Kulai

Primatel Business Centre
• Seremban

SABAH

Kuching • Batu Lintang • Pending
Lapangan Terbang Kuching
Sibu • Miri • Bintulu • Sri Aman
Sarikei • Limbang • Kapit • Lawas

Primatel Business Centre
• Miri • Kuching

Haji Osman Haji Muhamad

Abd. Halim Abd. Razak

Dato’ Hassan Swam

Ramsah Haji Mohd Tahir

General Manager
Business Operations

General Manager
Business Operations

General Manager
Business Operations

General Manager
Business Operations

Sales Outlet

Sales Outlet

Sales Outlet

Sales Outlet

• Bukit Mahkamah • Komplek Maluri
• Komplek Damai

•
•
•
•

• Melaka • Alor Gajah

•
•
•
•

Primatel Business Centre
• Bangunan The Weld

Setapak • Ampang • Kepong
Rawang • Shah Alam • Banting
Sabak Bernam • Bukit Raja
Kuala Selangor • Kuala Kubu Baru

Primatel Business Centre
• Bangunan Peringgit Point, Melaka

Kota Kinabalu • Airport K.Kinabalu
Sandakan • Tawau • Lahad Datu
Wisma MUIS • Keningau • Beaufort
Kudat • WP Labuan

Primatel Business Centre
• Kota Kinabalu • WP Labuan
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international Ventures

The International Ventures Divison, formerly the New Ventures Division, was established in 1993. The Division adopt a
strategy of overseas investment in telecommunications-related services in order to capitalise on its expertise in developing
telecommunication networks in emerging markets. This programme of expansion in global reach for Telekom Malaysia has the
objective of identifying key overseas markets with high growth potential and to contributing the Group’s long term mission of
becoming an international and world class telecommunications company. As at 30 September 2000 the Group has invested
approximately USD 890 million in eight countries in Asia and Africa.
It has been Telekom Malaysia’s policy to participate actively in the management of its international investments including
where possible seeking representation on the relevant board of directors. The Company has formed strategic partnerships with
national telecommunications companies in South Africa, Ghana and Guinea and has also established a presence in Thailand, Sri
Lanka, Bangladesh, Malawi and Cambodia.
Telekom Malaysia aims to strategically expand the Group’s operations internationally and to capitalise on opportunities
in selective investments in the emerging markets in Asia and Africa. The Company focuses on investment opportunities in
telecommunications and related industries, particularly cellular and other network related businesses. Telekom Malaysia is also
exploring opportunities to add to the Group’s investment in satellite, global satellite, multimedia, broadcasting and fibre-optics
operations to further enhance shareholders’ value.
List of foreign subsidiaries and associated companies of Telekom Malaysia:
Subsidiaries/Associated Companies

Country

Effective Interest (%)

Digital Phone Company Limited

Thailand

49.99

Ghana Telecommunications Company Limited

Ghana

25.50

MTN Networks (Private) Limited

Sri Lanka

100.00

Samart Corporation Public Listed Company Limited

Thailand

24.99

Societe Des Telecommunications De Guinea

Guinea

60.00

Telkom SA Limited

South Africa

12.00

TM International (Bangladesh) Limited

Bangladesh

70.00

Telekom Networks Malawi Limited

Malawi

60.00

Cambodia Samart Communications Co. Ltd.

Cambodia

51.00

Usha Martin Telecommunications Ltd. (UMTL)

India

37.71

With the exception of Digital Phone Company (DPC), its cellular operating company in Thailand, the year 2000 has been
another profitable year in the operations of Telekom Malaysia’s international subsidiaries. However, currency devaluation ranging
from 40 to 200 percent experienced by the subsidiaries, especially those in Africa, has severely eroded the profit margin.
Despite the financial challenges, all companies have experienced significant growth in terms of subscriber base, network
quality and coverage. New products and services have been introduced into the market in parallel with the deployment of new
technologies especially in the Internet Service Provider (ISP) business.
The year under review was another year of consolidation of Telekom Malaysia’s existing interests and the strengthening
of its presence in various countries. Efforts have been made by the International Ventures Division to seek new opportunities
overseas such as in Kenya and Indonesia.
For year 2001, Telekom Malaysia shall continue to seek opportunities to venture into potential growth areas in Asia
including developed countries in the Asia Pacific Region, further cementing business relationships further through South-South
co-operation especially in countries with liberal social-economic policies conducive to supporting private investments.
Telekom Malaysia shall undertake all responsibilities to ensure that the offshore investments are in step with the current
technologies in GSM cellular, 3G mobile system, and next generation TelCo especially in the areas of wireless broadband and the
Internet business.
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TELKOM SA LIMITED (TSA)
Telekom Malaysia’s largest foreign investment is still
Telkom South Africa (TSA) through its consortium with
SBC Communications (SBC) of the United States. Telekom
Malaysia has an equity of 12% while SBC and the
government of South Africa each holds 18% and 70% equity
respectively in TSA. TSA has been issued a licence for a
5-year exclusivity period commencing May 1997 to the end
of financial year on 31 March 2002. TSA has total assets of
USD 6,180 million. Its revenue for the year exceeded
USD 3,800 million. The licence granted to TSA requires the
Company to add 2.7 million lines (of which 70% is in the
rural areas) during the 5-year exclusivity period.
As at end December 2000, TSA recorded total
telephone Direct Exchange Lines (DEL) of 5.5 million.
A total of 1,793 payphones were installed. Vodacom, a GSM
cellular operator in which TSA has 50% equity provided
services to 3.5 million customers. TSA has awarded contracts
amounting to USD 79 million in the last financial year.
In addition, TSA did business worth USD 181 million with
companies that have a significant black share holding during
the same period.

GHANA TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY
LIMITED (GHANA TELECOM)
Telekom Malaysia has a 25.5% stake in Ghana
Telecommunications Company, through G-Com Ltd, a
consortium formed with 3 other Ghanaian partners. The
company which is the national telecommunications operator,
has a 20 year licence to operate telecommunications services
in the country.
As at end December 2000, Ghana Telecom registered
total Direct Exchange Lines (DELs) of 179,467, an increase
of more than 10.6% from the December 1999 figure (157,725).
During the period of January to December 2000, a total of
3,190 payphones were installed.
A GSM cellular network service was successfully
launched in September 2000, and by December 2000, it had
registered more than 23,000 subscribers.

T E L E K O M M A L AY S I A B E R H A D

SOCEITE DES TELECOMMUNICATIONS
DE GUINEE (SOTELGUI)
Towards the end of 1995, Telekom Malaysia acquired a
60% stake in Sotelgui for USD 45 million. Today Sotelgui is
the national telecommunications operator under a 10-year
licence to offer PSTN, cellular and Internet services.
As at end December 2000, Sotelgui registered
approximately 24,000 subscribers for Telephone Direct Exchange
Lines (DEL), 311 for payphone, 617 for Internet, 47 for leased
line, 350 for Radio in Local Loop (RiLL) and 343 for Telex.
In the cellular service, Sotelgui has recorded an
accumulated total of 29,064 subscribers comprising of 22,828
post paid and 6,236 prepaid customers.
In terms of network development, Sotelgui is targeting
to increase its switch capacity to 45,600 Effective Line
Capacity (ELC). Towards the end of the year, the company
is committed to achieve the customer base target of 69,371.

MTN NETWORKS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
(MTN NETWORKS)
MTN Networks is a wholly owned subsidiary of
Telekom Malaysia. The Company has provided a GSM Network
called DIALOG GSM in Sri Lanka since April 1995.
As at December 2000, MTN Networks has registered
a total of approximately 150,000 customers. More than
102,000 are in the post paid sector while the balance are
prepaid customers.
International roaming continues to be MTN Networks’
significant revenue contributors. More agreements with new
roaming partners were signed and currently MTN Networks
has partnerships with 117 operators in 65 countries worldwide.

TELEKOM NETWORKS MALAWI LIMITED (TNM)
Telekom Networks Malawi Limited (TNM) is a joint
venture between Telekom Malaysia and Malawi
Telecommunications Limited (MTL). Telekom Malaysia holds
a 60% equity while MTL holds the remaining 40% TNM’s
is the principal operator and provider of GSM 900 cellular
services throughout the Republic of Malawi under the brand
name CALLPOINT.
As at end December 2000, TNM has recorded a
subscriber base of approximately 27,000. The prepaid service
was successfully launched on 20 June 2000. The company
registered 9,236 prepaid and 17,845 postpaid customers
respectively for the same period.
The company is planning to launch its international
roaming services before the end of 2000. Although the service
is still being implemented, roaming arrangement has already
been made between TNM with Vodafone of UK and Vodacom
of South Africa, thus enabling TNM subscribers to roam in
South Africa and the United Kingdom.
TNM has launched a new customer care and billing
system called ‘VNU’ on 13 July 2000. With a view of
promoting efficient services and customer care, The system
has improved TNM’s collection performance.
TNM is planing to expand its network coverage and
capacity further by the end of 2000.

SAMART CORPORATION PUBLIC COMPANY
LIMITED (SAMART)
In 1997, Telekom Malaysia acquired a 24.99% stake
in Samart; a public listed company in Thailand. Telekom
Malaysia’s principal partner in Samart is the Villailuck
family which holds 48.73% equity in the Company. Samart is
involved in providing value added telecommunications
services, manufacturing TV antennas and satellite dishes as
well as distributing telecommunications equipment.

DIGITAL PHONE COMPANY LIMITED (DPC)
There was a significant change in the shareholding
structure in DPC as Samart Corp sold a large number of its
shares to the Shin Corporation. The transfer of shares was
completed on 27 April 2000, which resulted in the Shin
Corporation holding 47.55% equity in DPC while Telekom
Malaysia’s 49.99% equity has remained unchanged. The
remaining equity is held by Total Access Communications
(TAC) 2.29%, Communications Authority of Thailand
(CAT), 0.06% and the CAT employee fund, 0.11%.
DPC’s principal activity is as operator and provider of
PCN 1800 cellular services throughout Thailand under the
brand name DPC HELLO. DPC entered into a contract to
operate and provide cellular system radio with Communications
Authority of Thailand (CAT). Under the contract it has the
right to operate a mobile phone services in digital PCN
system for a period of 15 years.

MTN Networks, Sri Lanka, a wholly owned subsidiary of Telekom Malaysia operates a GSM Network with the name of DIALOG GSM, where
services such as Stock Price on Demand, Mobile Banking, e-mail notification, mobile fax are provided under the brand name of E-volution

In April 2000, the company successfully launched a
new service under the brand name E-volution, providing
Stock Price on Demand, Mobile banking, e-mail notification
and mobile fax facilities.
By the end of the year, the company has planned and
developed Wireless Access Protocol (WAP) Services to
widen its revenue stream.
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highlights of the Year 2000
As at end December 2000, the company registered a
total of 216,000 customers. It plans to develop new products
and services, including prepaid services, City phone, Dual
phone and International Roaming services.

TM INTERNATIONAL (BANGLADESH)
LIMITED (TMIB)
Telekom Malaysia holds a 70% equity stake in this
joint venture company with A. K. Khan Group holding the
remaining 30%. Launched in November 1997, this business
venture enters into its fourth year of operation under the
brand name AKTEL. TMIB has a 15 years license to provide
GSM services throughout Bangladesh.
As at end December 2000, TMIB registered a
customer base of 33,369 while targeting 40,500 before the
end of 2001. The company continues to develop a prepaid
system and international roaming system, expected to be
operational before the end of 2001.
In conjunction with the evolution of Mobile Internet,
TMIB has incorporated DESHTEL, a company which is
going to pursue an Internet Service Provider (ISP) business.
Currently the company is applying for the ISP licence and is
targeting the launch of ISP services in 2001.

CAMBODIA SAMART COMMUNICATIONS CO. LTD.
(CASACOM)
In August 1998, Telekom Malaysia invested USD 18
million for its 51% stake in CASACOM. The equity was
purchased from Samart Corporation. CASACOM operates an
NMT 900 network and offers the largest services coverage in
Cambodia. The Company has also obtained a licence to
provide GSM services nationwide. Its GSM operations
commenced in April 1999. In September 1999, the Company
launched its prepaid system based on the GSM 900 network.
The Prime Minister of Cambodia, Hon. Mr. Hun Sen.
officially launched the GSM service in December 1999.

3

january

Telekom Malaysia reported a smooth transition as the millennium rolled
over from 1999 to year 2000. The Company’s investment of RM130
million in several Y2K initiatives and a contingency plan planned three
years before, in 1997, saw business as usual at Telekom Malaysia.

JANUARY

Its accumulated customer base as of December 2000
stood at 24,679. For GSM and NMT post paid, CASACOM
has registered 8,690 subscribers and in GSM prepaid, 15,989
customers.

USHA MARTIN TELECOMMUNICATIONS LTD.
(UMTL)
The company, in which Telekom Malaysia had a
direct shareholding of 37.71% has been issued a licence to
install and operate a GSM cellular network in Calcutta, India.
Launched in May 1995, UMTL operates under the
brand name COMMAND. The company also operates a
paging service, known as PageFirst, to seven cities in India.
Telekom Malaysia sold its stake in UMTL to Hutchinson in
October 2000 for USD 130 million.

5

january

Our international venture policies extend beyond the realm of financial involvement where we partake in programmes
ensuring the progress of the community where we operate

During the festive season the likelihood of
traffic accidents ranks high. In support of
creating greater awareness of road safety,
Telekom Malaysia jointly launched OPSSTATIK, a road safety campaign with Polis
DiRaja Malaysia (PDRM). During the launch,
stickers, leaflets and sunshades were widely
distributed to educate drivers on safety
consciousness on Malaysian roads.

JANUARY

25

january

Human Resources Minister, YB. Datuk Dr. Fong
Chan Onn officiated the Human Resources Expo
2000 organised by Telekom Malaysia’s Human
Resources Division. The two-day exhibition was
aimed at giving the public a better understanding of
the Company’s HR practices, the Division’s
functions, its products and services and all other
related information on its work culture. In view of
the size and complexity of Telekom Malaysia, it has
become a vital task for the Human Resources
Division to develop a strong and efficient work force.

JANUARY
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19
26

february

Residents of Kampung Tengkurus, Kota Belud, Sabah enjoyed greater access to the
world when Telekom Malaysia extended telecommunications services to their area.
A telephone exchange was built and fibre optic cables installed, costing the Company
RM600,000. The service was officially launched by YAB. Dato’ Seri Panglima Osu
Sukam, the Chief Minister of Sabah.

january

YAB. Dato’ Seri Abdullah Ahmad Badawi, Deputy Prime Minister flagged off the
prestigious Le Tour de Langkawi 2000. Top cyclists from around the world competed
for twelve days in a race that has gained recognition as a major sport event. As the
main sponsor, Telekom Malaysia contributed RM6 million to the event, of which
RM4.5 million was in cash and the balance of RM1.5 million in telecommunications
facilities and support services.

JANUARY

26

FEBRUARY
february

Multimedia University (MMU)’s graduates became the first in the world to receive
their scrolls in electronic form at the University’s inaugural convocation held on its
RM350 million campus. The 128 graduates are now able to put their credentials
online when applying for jobs. The digitally signed certificates were presented to the
graduates by the University’s Chancellor, YABhg. Datin Seri Dato’ Paduka Dr. Siti
Hasmah Mohd Ali.

FEBRUARY

15

february

Twenty-two players pledged to carry Telekom
Malaysia’s challenge in the Premier II League
and Malaysian League and to play for
Telekom Malaysia team at a special signing
ceremony witnessed by Tuan Haji Ibrahim
Md. Nassir, Senior Vice-President, Corporate
Human Resources. The team accolades
included winning the FAM Cup in 1998 and
competing the country’s elite teams in the
Premier League in 2000.

FEBRUARY

16

february

In a national effort to assist small and
medium-sized industries (SMIs) gain a
foothold in the electronic market, Telekom
Malaysia had teamed up with the SMI
Association of Malaysia to conduct a
roadshow series on e-commerce education
throughout the country. Aimed at creating
greater awareness, the “TM/SMI e-Commerce
Roadshow” highlighted the long-term benefits
of e-commerce and the potential opportunities
in the electronic market.

20

march

The Royal visit of their Majesties Yang Dipertuan Agong Sultan Salahuddin Abdul Aziz Shah and
the Raja Permaisuri Agong to Telekom Malaysia crowned this month’s events. After the initial
briefing by the Chief Executive, their Majesties and entourage then proceeded to visit Network
Management Centre or Netcare, the first of such network management systems in Southeast Asia
that manages Telekom Malaysia’s network in real time round the clock. Next on the itinerary was
the International Customer Assistance Service Centre at Jalan Raja Chulan which provides assistance
for overseas calls. The final stop was Muzium Telekom where the Royal visitors were given an
insight into 130 years of telecommunications history and development beginning with the days of
the Morse Code Telegraph to the era of cellular phones and digital networks of the 21st century.
The Royal party was received by YB. Datuk Amar Leo Moggie, Minister of Energy, Communications
and Mutlimedia and Telekom Malaysia’s Chairman YBhg. Dato’ Ir. Md. Radzi Mansor.

MARCH

FEBRUARY
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17
26

may

iTalk – based on Voice over Internet Protocol (VoIP) technology –
was launched, further extending Telekom Malaysia’s offering of
cost-saving products. It gives customers substantial savings on long
distance and IDD calls. Voice and data can now travel simultaneously
over a single network line.

march

MAY

For all their hard work, the workers and volunteers of Le Tour de Langkawi 2000
(LTdL) received commendation from the Prime Minister, YAB. Dato Seri Dr.
Mahathir Mohamad. The Prime Minister presented certificates to 880 helpers,
acknowledging their contribution in making the international event a success for the
fifth time at the “Majlis Penghargaan Le Tour de Langkawi 2000”.

14

july

VADS e-volution, a service by VADS Sdn. Bhd., a subsidiary of Telekom Malaysia, was
launched by YB. Datuk Amar Leo Moggie, Minister of Energy, Communications and
Multimedia. VADS offers a suite of managed services aimed at helping corporations develop
their businesses the electronic way. This includes developing e-infrastructure and
e-applications services.

MARCH

JULY

4

april

EastGate – Malaysia’s first high bandwidth
Internet exchange and hubbing service was
introduced by Telekom Multimedia. Designed
to assist Internet Service Providers (ISPs) and
other IT companies in Southeast Asia, the
service also helps users save on costs of
purchasing hardware. EastGate provides
subscribers with reliable and high-speed
connectivity of 400Mbps. Costing at RM20
million, the service ranks as the most advanced
gateway in the region.

14

may

This year’s Kuala Lumpur International Towerthon
attracted 160 runners from 23 countries who met
the challenge of running 800 meters uphill
followed by a climb up the famous 2,058 steps of
Menara Kuala Lumpur to reach a height of 288
meters. The winner of the men’s title this year was
Jonathan Wyatt of New Zealand. This was his
second win in a row. The women’s title went to
Melisa Moon, also of New Zealand.

23

july

YB. Datuk Wences Angang, Minister of Resources and Information Technology
Development, Sabah launched Telekom Malaysia ‘Fibre-To-The-Street’ telephone
exchange, the first in the district of Menumbok in Kuala Penyu, Sabah. Equipped with
fibre optic and with a capacity of 480 lines, the business and residential communities
in Menumbok will have access to a wide range of services. The exchange was built
at a cost of RM927,000.

JULY

MAY

APRIL

110

111

T E L E K O M M A L AY S I A B E R H A D

T E L E K O M M A L AY S I A B E R H A D

28

27

august

Telekom Malaysia signed an agreement with UBM Training Consultancy Sdn. Bhd. to serve the
Sekolah Online project. Under this agreement, Telekom Malaysia would provide 20,000 free TMnet
accounts to teachers, students and 36 schools nationwide. Signing on behalf of UBM Training Consultancy
Sdn. Bhd. was its Chairman, YB. Tan Sri Dato’ Dr. Abdul Hamid Pawanteh while Telekom Malaysia
was represented by YBhg. Dr. Md. Khir Abdul Rahman, Chief Executive Telekom Malaysia. The
signing was witnessed by YB. Dato’ Haji Abdul Aziz Shamsudin, Deputy Education Minister.

july

Telekom Malaysia contributed RM1.2 million to Sabah Tourism Promotion Corporation for
its “Eco-Challenge Sabah”. In addition, Telekom Malaysia also provided telecommunications
facilities including telephone lines, facsimile, Internet and satellite mobile phones. YBhg.
Dr. Md. Khir Abdul Rahman, Chief Executive of Telekom Malaysia presented the
‘contributions’ to YAB. Dato Seri Dr. Mahathir Mohamad, Prime Minister of Malaysia.
“Eco-Challenge Sabah”, the world’s premier expedition race was held in Sabah from
21 August to 2 September 2000.

JULY

30

AUGUST

august

Telekom Malaysia contributed RM300,000 for the convening of the 4th International Advisory
Panel (IAP) Meeting and MSC Exposition 2000 held in Cyberjaya. As the official communications
provider, Telekom Malaysia provided services for the media centre, telephones, faxes, ISDN lines
and Global Network multi-point video conferencing sessions. YBhg. Dato’ Abdul Halim Hussain,
Senior Vice President, Consumer & Business presented the cheque to YBhg. Tan Sri Dato’ Dr.
Othman Yeop Abdullah, Executive Chairman of Multimedia Development Corporation (MDC).

AUGUST

14

august

Telekom Malaysia launched the “Olympians
2000 Ring-Ring Card” to commemorate
Malaysia’s participation in the Sydney 2000
Olympic Games. YB. Dato’ Hishammuddin
Tun Hussein, Minister of Youth and Sports
officiated the launch. Described as a prepaid
calling card, Ring-Ring Card allows users to
make calls – local, national and international
– from house and office phones, hotels and
Telekom Malaysia’s payphones as well as
mobile phones. The joint venture project with
the Olympic Council of Malaysia reflected
Telekom Malaysia’s commitment to sports.

AUGUST

15

august

Telekom Malaysia launched
www.magicalmalaysia.com.my,
a common website for the tourism
and hospitality industry. A onestop hospitality guide, the launch
was timely as it coincided with the
Hotel Communications Technology
Solutions Seminar and Exhibition.
The website aims to create a
community of hoteliers as well as
promoting the use of e-commerce
via the Internet for those in the
hospitality industry.

31

august –

1

september

A total of 150 young participants from all over the country converged at
Menara Kuala Lumpur for a one-night Tower Camp. The programme
enabled children aged between 10 to 14 to spend quality time with their
peers, and be engaged in a series of team-led activities such as colouring
competition, tower treasure hunt and telematch.

AUGUST/ SEPTEMBER

AUGUST
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16
13

september

SEPTEMBER

september

Telekom Malaysia contributed RM250,000 to
the Ministry of Culture, Art and Tourism
Malaysia in conjunction with “Kempen
Mengibar Jalur Gemilang” which aimed
at inculcating a spirit of patriotism among
Malaysians. YBhg. Dato’ Abdul Halim
Hussain, Senior Vice President, Consumer &
Business presented the mock cheque to YB.
Dato’ Ong Tee Kiat, Deputy Minister of
Culture, Arts and Tourism and Chairman of
Kempen Jalur Gemilang Sub-Committee.

SEPTEMBER

114

OCTOBER

Telekom Malaysia signed a RM13 million agreement to provide Bumiputra-Commerce Bank with a customised total
networking solutions via the Corporate Information Superhighway or COINS. The agreement spreading over five years,
will enable Bumiputra-Commerce Bank to move into e-Banking, e-Commerce, e-Mail and Messaging, Internet Banking
and others. The signatories were YBhg. Dr. Md. Khir Abdul Rahman, Chief Executive of Telekom Malaysia and
Dr. Rozali Mohamed Ali, Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer of Bumiputra-Commerce Bank.

Telekom Malaysia and Microsoft (M) Sdn. Bhd. announced a strategic alliance to support
the IT industry’s fastest growing market segment specifically the Application Hosting
Services. This alliance will enable Telekom Malaysia to offer IT services to small and
medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) in a single package at affordable costs. Known as
Netmyne 2, the service consists of four packages: Netmyne Corporation, Netmyne SME,
Netmyne Scholar and Netmyne Home.

14

october

12

october

Telekom Malaysia was announced the winner of
the Excellence Award for the Trading Services
category of the inaugural KLSE Excellence
Award held in Kuala Lumpur. The award
recognises Telekom Malaysia’s achievement as a
company with sound corporate governance
practices in the sector.

OCTOBER

20

october
OCTOBER

Telekom Malaysia appointed Pantai Medicare Sdn. Bhd. as Telekom Malaysia’s new Health Care
Provider providing the full services of a Healthcare Maintenance Organisation (HMO). The
agreement, effective for two years, offers Telekom Malaysia a more streamlined form of medical
administration. Telekom Malaysia was represented by Executive Director, YBhg. Dato’ Dr. Abdul
Rahim Haji Daud while Pantai Holdings Bhd. was represented by Encik Mokhzani Mahathir,
Group Chief Executive Officer.

24

october

Cybermall Sdn. Bhd. a wholly owned subsidiary of Telekom
Publications Sdn. Bhd. launched a website called ‘Malaysian
Internet Yellow Pages’ (MIYP), the first-of-its-kind for
online digital mapping service in the country. It provides
instant directions and information on Government premises,
listed companies and individual address and telephone
numbers. The MIYP also incorporated geographical
information systems features to assist users in retreiving
directory listings. YB. Datuk Amar Leo Moggie officially
launched the service and website.

OCTOBER
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9
31

october –

3

november

Telekom Malaysia contributed RM5,000 to Majlis Kanser Nasional (MAKNA) in conjuction with
Periwinkle Celebration 2000. YBhg. Dato’ Ir. Md. Radzi Mansor, Chairman of Telekom Malaysia
presented the cheque to YBhg. Dato’ Dr. Mohd. Farid Ariffin, the Chairman of MAKNA. About
1,000 employees of Telekom Malaysia and their family members also took part in a run from
Muzium Telekom to Menara Kuala Lumpur.

november

Telekom Malaysia participated in Asean Communications & Multimedia 2000 hosted by the
Ministry of Energy, Communications and Multimedia. Billed as the largest communications and
multimedia show in Malaysia and formerly known as ASEAN Telecom, the premier event
showcased the full potential of the convergence of technologies. Telekom Malaysia exhibited a
wide range of multimedia products and services such as Eastgate, I-Choose, Netmyne, TMNet
Portal and i-Comms. YAB. Dato’ Seri Abdullah Ahmad Badawi, Deputy Prime Minister officiated at
the opening. Some 23 countries participated in the event.

OCTOBER / NOVEMBER

NOVEMBER

22

november

Telekom Malaysia together with PDRM launched a Cyber Cafe in the Police Training Centre
(PULAPOL) in Jalan Semarak, Kuala Lumpur. The Cyber Cafe aimed to expose PDRM personnel
and family to IT and multimedia within the PDRM complexes. Aside from the basic Internet access,
the cafe also has games and audiovisual facilities as well as a mini library stocked with IT-related
books and magazines. The Cyber Cafe is open 7 days a week from 10.00 am till 12.00 midnight.

NOVEMBER

6-9

november

Telekom Malaysia together with the Ministry of Energy,
Communications and Multimedia and in collaboration
with the Commonwealth Telecommunications
Organisation (CTO) hosted the 40th Commonwealth
Telecommunications Council (CTC) Meeting. Officially
opened by YAB. Dato Seri Dr. Mahathir Mohamad,
Prime Minister of Malaysia, the four-day meeting
addressed issues pertaining to the theme “From Telephony
to Multimedia – Telecommunications in the 21st
Century”. CTO plays a vital role in promoting cooperation
and understanding between Commonwealth countries.
Its objectives include helping member countries
develop the full potential of telecommunication services
and make the most of the opportunities that
telecommunications has to offer.

8

november

For the fifth consecutive year since 1996, Telekom
Malaysia has won the NACRA Best Annual Report
Award for the Trading and Services Category. The
award for the 1999 Annual Report was presented during
the NACRA Awards ceremony held in Kuala Lumpur.

NOVEMBER

19-22

november

Telekom Malaysia became the main sponsor of the Langkawi International Dialogue
2000 (LID 2000) for the fourth consecutive year, contributing RM2 million for the
event. Attended by 350 participants including heads of government, members of the
academia and senior government officers, the LID 2000 explored issues related to
global trends and emerging economies and how the smart partnership approach can
make a difference. LID 2000 provided a strategic platform for Telekom Malaysia to
hold discussions with potential foreign investors and business partners. YAB. Dato Seri
Dr. Mahathir Mohamad, the Prime Minister of Malaysia, was the patron and advisor
for LID 2000.

NOVEMBER

NOVEMBER
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23

november

Social
responsibilities

Telekom Malaysia signed an agreement with Maybank to provide a network solution via the Corporate
Information Superhighway or COINS and to introduce the Multiple Partner Loyalty Programme. The
new solution, when fully commissioned, would enable Maybank to enhance the reliability and speed of
its service delivery. The Multiple Partner Loyalty Programme is a joint effort by both organisations to
reward their customers through an enhanced reward programme. Telekom Malaysia was represented by
Executive Director, YBhg. Dato’ Dr. Abdul Rahim Haji Daud and YBhg. Dato’ Dr. Ir. Haji Mohd. Khir
Harun, Senior Vice President, Major Business & Government. Signing on behalf of Maybank were
Executive Director, YBhg. Dato’ Mohammed Hussein, Mr. Tong Hon Keong, General Manager of
Information System and Encik Abdul Aziz Peru Mohamed, General Manager of Consumer Banking.

NOVEMBER

Caring for Our Shareholders
picture from left to right:-

29

Telekom Malaysia posted a Group profit of RM819 million for 1999, a decline of 17 percent over
1998. At the operating level, the Group registered a profit before tax of RM884.2 million, a decline
of 47 percent from the previous year. The lower profit was attributed to decline in top line revenue,
higher provision for bad debt and higher costs. Profits from overseas investments however, showed a
positive growth of 4.5 percent.

9

Telekom Malaysia held its 15th Annual General Meeting in Kuala Lumpur. About 800 shareholders
and proxy attended the meeting in which a few resolutions were passed. This includes the declaration
of a 10 percent dividend.

FEBRUARY

14

MAY

december

Telekom Malaysia signed an agreement with First
Cartel (M) Sdn. Bhd. as the Title Sponsor for the ‘Le
Tour de Langkawi 2001’. With this, the third largest
cycling event in the world is now officially known as
‘Telekom Malaysia Le Tour de Langkawi 2001’. The
sponsorship of RM8 million was disbursed in two
parcels – RM6.5 million in cash and the balance of
RM1.5 million in telecommunication facilities. The
12-stage-event started in Alor Setar on 6 February
2001 and culminated in the final stage in Kuala
Lumpur on 18 February 2001.

DECEMBER
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22

december

Telekom Malaysia joined hands with Polis DiRaja
Malaysia and PLUS to launch a “Road Safety
Campaign” during the festive season. This ‘safe
driving’ campaign was launched by the Inspector
General of Police, YDH Tan Sri Norian Mai at the
Sungai Besi Toll Plaza, Kuala Lumpur. Telekom
Malaysia also sponsored toll-free phone line called
“Tele-Aduan-Trafik” at 1-800-88-1281 for one month
beginning 20 December 2000. The Company also
sponsored 78 units of mini canopies to be used during
the “OPS STATIK” period.

DECEMBER

SHAREHOLDERS
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EMPLOYEES

Caring for Our Employees
picture from left to right:-

23

JANUARY

20
JUNE

24
JUNE

picture from left to right:-

This year’s HARI RAYA AIDILFITRI saw more than 10,000 employees gathered at the premises of
Telekom Malaysia’s Training College. Also present to grace the occasion were YBhg. Dato’ Ir. Md.
Radzi Mansor, Chairman, YBhg. Datuk Wira Mohamed Said Mohamed Ali, Chief Executive and
members of the Management Committee. It was a great time for ‘all in the family’.

Eighty-five employees of Telekom Malaysia’s staff received recognition award for their service
excellence, performance and outstanding contribution to the Company. The awards were divided into
several categories: Best employee, Best Executive, Best Manager, Best Division, Best Suggestion
Scheme and Special Awards. YBhg. Dato’ Ir. Md. Radzi Mansor, Chairman, YBhg. Dr. Md Khir
Abdul Rahman, Chief Executive and YBhg. Dato’ Dr. Abdul Rahim Haji Daud, Executive Director
presented the awards.

At the 5th Convocation of Telekom Training College (TTC) 429 graduates joined the country’s pool
of skilled human resources. Their fields of expertise included multimedia, engineering, marketing and
secretarial services. The graduates received their certificates from YB. Dato’ Abdul Aziz Shamsuddin,
Deputy Education Minister.

13
JULY

The Employee Assistance Programme (EAP) developed by Telekom Malaysia’s Corporate Human
Resources Division was introduced to create harmony in the work environment as well as enhance
employee productivity. EAP also marked Telekom Malaysia’s strategy to reduce organisational costs
by providing preventive education through counselling.

29

Telekom Malaysia participated and won an award in the national level celebration of “Perhimpunan
Hari Pekerja” organised by Ministry of Human Resources. The contingent comprised 160 staff from
Telekom Malaysia’s headquarters and offices throughout the Klang Valley.

31

Telekom Malaysia participated in the National Day parade held in Shah Alam, Selangor. 110
employees from the Klang Valley and Selangor volunteered to represent the Company at the parade.

JULY

AUGUST

EMPLOYEES
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EMPLOYEES

Caring for Our Employees
picture from left to right:-

picture from left to right:-

29

TIARANITA, the Association set up by Telekom Malaysia for women employees and wives of male
employees organised a Jumbo Sale. All proceeds went to the Association to serve its many deserving
causes.

17

Telekom Malaysia held an appreciation dinner known as “Jasamu Dikenang” in honour of its 85 retired
employees at Pulau Langkawi for their loyal service, dedication and commitment to the Company. The
retirees and spouses were given special treatment throughout the four day programme which included
tours and shopping sprees in Langkawi. “Jasamu Dikenang” is a yearly event held by Telekom
Malaysia since 1992.

27-28

Telekom Malaysia held its 14th National Level Tilawah Al-Quran and Tahfiz Al-Quran at Telekom
Training College, Kuching, Sarawak. The event was aimed at encouraging the Islamic society to
become well-versed with the teachings of Islam. About 47 “qari and qariah” participated in the adult
and children’s categories. They represented the staff of Telekom Malaysia and their families from all
over the country.

SEPTEMBER

OCTOBER

OCTOBER

2-4

Telekom Malaysia held its fourth Sukan Telekom Malaysia (SUTMA) at Universiti Tenaga Nasional,
Bangi, Selangor. The tournament aimed at fostering closer ties among staff in the various states,
besides encouraging sportsmanship and teamwork. About 1,000 employees nationwide participated in
the sporting event, organised by Kelab Telekom Malaysia Kuala Lumpur. YB. Datuk Tan Chai Ho,
Deputy Minister of Energy, Communications and Multimedia officiated the event.

23-24

Telekom Malaysia employees nationwide gathered in Melaka to attend the 5th National TCS
Convention. Initiated in January 1994, the programme was organised to assist Telekom Malaysia in
attaining its vision of becoming a world class telecommunications company by 2005. During the dinner
that marked the end of the Convention, awards were presented to various teams for their participation
and achievements.

24

The “Excellence Award Presentation 2000” ceremony was held in Melaka as part of Telekom
Malaysia’s appreciation of the employees’ contribution and support towards the success of the
Company. The awards were divided into a few categories including Executive Award, Manager Award
and Division Award. This yearly event was introduced in 1994 as part of Telekom Malaysia’s Reward
and Recognition Programme for quality improvement and Total Customer Satisfaction.

NOVEMBER

NOVEMBER

NOVEMBER

EMPLOYEES
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Caring for Our Customers
picture from left to right:-

30

AUGUST

29

SEPTEMBER

COMMUNITY
Caring for Our Community
picture from left to right:-

4 Divisions of Telekom Malaysia namely Customer Assistance Service (CAS), MSC Project, Customer
Care Centre (CCC) and Telekom Sales and Services Sdn. Bhd. attained the ISO 9001 and 9002
Certification from SIRIM QAS Sdn. Bhd.. YBhg. Dato’ Dr. Mohd. Ariffin Haji Aton, President and
Chief Executive of SIRIM Berhad presented the certificates to the winners.

Telekom Malaysia introduced ‘TM Freeway’, a new service that offers free national calls to subscribers
as reward for spending time listening to advertising messages. With every 15-20 seconds of ‘listening
effort’ over the telephone, customers are entitled to two minutes of free talk time. This innovative and
exciting service allows customers to enjoy significant savings.

3

Telekom Malaysia bid bon voyage to pilgrims on the HAJ with 50,000 sets of sling bags, ‘punjut
kasut’ and water bottles worth RM550,000. The presentation was made by Chief Executive YBhg.
Datuk Wira Mohamed Said Mohamad Ali to YB. Senator Dato’ Paduka Dr. Abdul Hamid Othman,
Minister in the Prime Minister’s Department. The pilgrims were also offered the Company’s
“Malaysia’s Direct Service” for easy calls home while in the Holy land. Telekom Malaysia’s
contribution began in 1995. It reflects the close cooperation between the Company and Tabung Haji.

18

The Wheelchair Tennis of Malaysia received RM100,000 contribution from Telekom Malaysia to take
part in the 2nd Malaysia International Wheelchair Tennis Open 2000, an annual event that bears
significance for the International Tennis Federation (ITF). The cheque was presented to YABhg. Datin
Seri Dato’ Paduka Dr. Siti Hasmah Mohd. Ali, Patron of the Wheelchair Tennis Malaysia by YBhg.
Dato’ Syed Mustaffa Syed Ali, Senior Vice President, Network Services.

21

About 50 special students were celebrated in the Kami Sentiasa Bersamanmu programme at the Kuala
Lumpur Tower. They were from various primary and secondary schools in Klang, Selangor. The
programme was made more memorable with performances by the students and contestants.

FEBRUARY

FEBRUARY

MAy

25

NOVEMBER

Telekom Malaysia held a prize presentation ceremony to honour the winners of the “Hello & Menang”
# 1 Contest. Prizes worth RM300,000 were awarded to the winners at the ceremony. Encik Zainal
Abidin Abd. Manan whose slogan made it to the grand prize received RM100,000. The contest
received close to a 250,000 entries – a record total in the history of contests and competitions
organised by the Company.

19

OCTOBER

Telekom Malaysia presented awards to 23 scholars who were sponsored by Yayasan Telekom Malaysia.
The recipients were rewarded for their academic achievements in institutions of higher learning both
locally and abroad. They each received RM750, an appreciation certificate and a memento from YBhg.
Dato’ Ir. Md. Radzi Mansor, Chairman of Telekom Malaysia. The event also saw the launch of
Yayasan Telekom Malaysia’s website, which enables the public to access information on the
educational programme and scholarship.

CUSTOMERS
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Financial
Statements

Directors’ Report
1.

for the year ended 31 December 2000

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2000.
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Directors’ Report
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Statement of Changes in Equity
Cash Flow Statements
Notes to the Financial Statements
Statement by Directors
Statutory Declaration
Report of the Auditors
General Information
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131
134
135
136
137
138
139
167
167
168
169

2.

The principal activities of the Company during the year are the establishment, maintenance and provision of
telecommunication and related services under the licence issued by the Minister of Energy, Communications and
Multimedia. The principal activities of the subsidiary companies are set out in note 16 to the financial statements. There
have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the year.

RESULTS
3.

4.

The results of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the year are as follows:
The Group
RM million

The Company
RM million

Profit after taxation
Minority interest

697.8
7.4

128.0
—

Profit for the year attributable to shareholders

705.2

128.0

In the opinion of the Directors, the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the year were not
substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature other than that arising from the
change in accounting policy referred to in paragraph 16 of the Significant Accounting Policies.

DIVIDENDS
5.

Since the end of previous financial year, the dividends paid, declared or proposed by the Company are as follows:
RM million
(a)

In respect of the year ended 31 December 1999, as proposed in the Directors’ Report
for that year, a final dividend of 10.0 sen per share (Malaysian Income Tax Exempted)
was paid on 19 June 2000:
– as provided in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 1999
– under provision arising from the exercise of options subsequent to financial year end

305.0
2.9
307.9

(b)

In respect of the year ended 31 December 2000, a proposed final dividend of 10.0 sen
per share less tax of 28%.

223.2

EMPLOYEES’ SHARE OPTION SCHEME (ESOS)
6.

The Employees’ Share Option Scheme (ESOS) was approved by the shareholders at an Extraordinary General Meeting held
on 28 March 1997. During the year, no new options were granted pursuant to the ESOS.
As at 31 December 2000, options to subscribe for 128,600,500 ordinary shares of RM1 each at the option price of RM10.50
per share remained unexercised. The ESOS remains in force until 21 April 2002. The options granted do not confer any
right to participate in any share option scheme of any other company.
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SHARE CAPITAL

DIRECTORS

7.

15. The Directors in office since the date of the last report are:

During the year, the issued and fully paid-up share capital of the Company was increased by the issuance of 59,145,500
ordinary shares of RM1 each at the option price of RM10.50 per share for cash under the ESOS. These shares rank “paripassu” in all respects with the existing issued ordinary shares of the Company.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS
8.

As at 31 December 2000, the Company has USD359.9 million Convertible Bonds due 2004 outstanding. These Bonds are
convertible into fully paid ordinary shares of RM1 each of the Company at an initial conversion price of RM15.60
per ordinary share and with a fixed rate of exchange upon conversion of RM2.5553 equals USD1, on or after 3 November
1994 up to and including 26 September 2004. The Bonds if not converted, will be redeemed on 3 October 2004 at their
principal amount. The Bonds may also be redeemed by the Company at anytime on or after 21 October 1999 at their
principal amount, plus accrued interest.

Directors

Alternate Directors

Dato’ Ir. Muhammad Radzi bin Haji Mansor
Dato’ Dr. Md Khir bin Abdul Rahman
(appointed with effect from 1/5/2000)
Dato’ Dr. Abdul Rahim bin Haji Daud
YB. Joseph Salang Gandum
YB. Dato’ Ir. Haji Mohd Zin bin Mohamed
(appointed with effect from 22/5/2000)
Dato’ Dr. Mohd Munir bin Abdul Majid
(appointed with effect from 22/5/2000)
Ir. Prabahar s/o N. K. Singam
(appointed with effect from 23/6/2000)

MOVEMENTS ON RESERVES AND PROVISIONS
9.

All material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the year have been disclosed in the financial statements.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION
10. Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were prepared, the Directors took reasonable steps to:
(a)

(b)

ascertain that actions had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of provision for
doubtful debts and had satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had been written off and that adequate provision
had been made for doubtful debts; and
ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to be realised at their book value in the ordinary course of business
had been written down to their expected realisable values.

11. At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which:
(a)

(b)

would render the amounts written off or provided for bad and doubtful debts in the financial statements of the Group
and of the Company inadequate to any substantial extent or the values attributed to current assets in the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company misleading; and
have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the
Company misleading or inappropriate.

12. In the interval between the end of the year and the date of this report:
(a)

no items, transactions or other events of material and unusual nature has arisen which, in the opinion of the Directors,
would substantially affect the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the year in which this
report is made; and

(b)

no charge has arisen on the assets of any company in the Group which secures the liability of any other person nor has
any contingent liability arisen in any company in the Group except as disclosed in note 31(b) to the financial statements.

13. No contingent or other liability of any company in the Group has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable
within the period of twelve months after the end of the year which, in the opinion of the Directors, will or may affect the
ability of the Group or the Company to meet their obligations when they fall due.
14. At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial
statements of the Group and the Company which would render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading.
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Lim Kheng Guan
(appointed with effect from 23/6/2000)
Rosli bin Man
(appointed with effect from 15/7/2000)
Tan Poh Keat
(appointed with effect from 29/8/2000)
Dato’ Dr. Halim bin Shafie
(appointed with effect from 24/11/2000)

Suriah bt. Abd Rahman
(appointed with effect from 24/11/2000)

Dato’ Abdul Majid bin Haji Hussein
(appointed with effect from 5/12/2000)

Mohammad Zanudin bin Ahmad Rasidi
(appointed with effect from 12/12/2000)

Datuk Wira Mohamed Said bin Mohamed Ali
(resigned with effect from 1/5/2000)
K. P. Ramanathan Menon
(resigned with effect from 17/5/2000)
Haji Ahmad Kamal bin Abdullah Al-Yafii
(resigned with effect from 17/5/2000)
Datuk Ng Wang @ Ng Chiang Chin
(resigned with effect from 1/6/2000)
Kunaseelan s/o J. Govindasamy
(resigned with effect from 8/6/2000)
Haji Nasruddin bin Haji Alang Saidin
(resigned with effect from 15/7/2000)
Tan Sri Datuk Nuraizah bt. Abdul Hamid
(resigned with effect from 31/10/2000)

Dato’ Dr. Halim bin Shafie
(resigned with effect from 31/10/2000)

Datuk Dr. Syed Muhamad bin Syed Abdul Kadir
(resigned with effect from 5/12/2000)

Mohammad Zanudin bin Ahmad Rasidi
(resigned with effect from 5/12/2000)

16. In accordance with Article 98 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the following Directors retire from the Board at
the Sixteenth Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer themselves for re-election:
YB. Dato’ Ir. Haji Mohd Zin bin Mohamed
Dato’ Dr. Mohd Munir bin Abdul Majid
Ir. Prabahar s/o N. K. Singam
Lim Kheng Guan
Rosli bin Man
Tan Poh Keat
Dato’ Dr. Halim bin Shafie, and
Dato’ Abdul Majid bin Haji Hussein
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Significant Accounting Policies
DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
17. In accordance with Article 103 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Dato’ Ir. Muhammad Radzi bin Haji Mansor
retires from the Board at the Sixteenth Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers himself for re-election.

The following accounting policies have been used consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in relation to
the financial statements except for the change in accounting policy with respect to the treatment of exchange differences arising
on long term foreign currency monetary items mentioned in paragraph 16.
1.

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared under the historical cost convention in
accordance with applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia and the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST
18. In accordance with the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings, interest in shares in the Company during the year of the
Directors who held office at the end of the year are as follows:

2.

Number of ordinary shares of RM1 each
Balance at 1.1.2000/
Balance at
Date of appointment
Bought
Sold
31.12.2000
Dato’ Ir. Muhammad Radzi bin Haji Mansor
Dato’ Dr. Abdul Rahim bin Haji Daud
YB. Joseph Salang Gandum
Tan Poh Keat

123,500
12,000
15,000
15,000

—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—

123,500
12,000
15,000
15,000

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and all its subsidiary companies made
up to the end of the year. All subsidiary companies are consolidated using the acquisition method of accounting whereby
the results of the subsidiary companies acquired or disposed during the year are included in the Consolidated Income
Statement from the date of their acquisition or up to the date of their disposal. Inter-company transactions are eliminated
on consolidation.

3.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
Subsidiary companies are those companies in which the Group has power to exercise control over the financial and
operating policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities.

19. In accordance with the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings, none of the other Directors have any direct or indirect interests
in the shares in the Company during the year. None of the Directors of the Company who held office at the end of the
year have interests in the shares of subsidiary companies.

Investments in subsidiary companies are stated at cost less any provision for permanent diminution in value.
4.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
Associated companies are companies in which the Group exercise significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the associated companies but not control over those policies.

20. Since the end of the previous year, none of the Directors have received or become entitled to receive any benefit (except
for the Directors’ fees, remuneration and other emoluments as disclosed in note 3 to the financial statements) by reason of
a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the Director or with a firm of which he is a member or
with a company in which he has a substantial financial interest and any benefit that may deemed to have been received by
certain Directors in respect of the contracts referred to in note 29 to the financial statements.

Investments in associated companies are stated at cost less any provision for permanent diminution in value.
The Group’s share of profits less losses of associated companies is included in the Consolidated Income Statement, and the
Group’s share of post-acquisition retained profits and reserves are added to the carrying value of investments in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet. These amounts are taken from the audited financial statements made up to a date which is not
more than six months before the date of the Company’s financial statements, or management financial statements made up
to the date of the Company’s financial statements if audited financial statements are not available, for each of the companies
concerned. Appropriate adjustments are made to the associated companies’ financial statements to take into account any
deviation from the Group’s accounting policies.

21. Neither during nor at the end of the year was the Company or any of its related corporations, a party to any arrangement
whose object was to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

AUDITORS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5.

22. The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

GOODWILL
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the Group’s share of the fair value of the separable net assets of
subsidiary and associated companies at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is written off against reserves in the year of
acquisition.

In accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors dated 27 February 2001.
6.

INCOME RECOGNITION
Operating income represents revenue earned from the sale of products and services net of returns, duties and sales taxes
paid, and after eliminating income within the Group. Operating income is recognised or accrued at the time of the provision
of the product or service.
Dividend income from investment in subsidiary companies, associated companies and other investments is recognised when
a right to receive payment is established.

DATO’ IR. MUHAMMAD RADZI BIN HAJI MANSOR
Chairman

Interest income includes interest from deposits with licensed banks, finance companies and other financial institutions and
is recognised on an accrual basis.
7.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
(i)

DATO’ DR. MD KHIR BIN ABDUL RAHMAN
Chief Executive

130

Cost
Cost of telecommunication network comprises expenditure up to and including the last distribution point before
customers’ premises and includes contractors’ charges, materials, direct labour and related overheads. The cost of other
property, plant and equipment comprises their purchase cost and any incidental cost of acquisition.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
(ii) Depreciation
Freehold land is not depreciated as it has an infinite life. Leasehold land is amortised over the periods of the respective
leases. Long term leasehold land has an unexpired lease period of 50 years and above. Other property, plant and
equipment are depreciated on a straight line basis from the time they are available for use so as to write off their cost
over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful lives in years assigned to the property, plant and equipment are as follows:
Telecommunication network
Movable plant and equipment
Computer support systems
Buildings

3
5
3
5

–
–
–
–

20
8
5
40

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment under construction commences when the property, plant and equipment
are ready for their intended use.
In the case of other land mentioned in note 15(a) to the financial statements, pending finalisation with the relevant
authorities as to their tenure, amortisation is provided at an estimated amount of RM0.3 million per annum.
8.

INVENTORIES
Inventories mainly comprise items held for capital projects and maintenance. Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis. In arriving at net realisable value, due allowance is made
for all obsolete and slow moving items.

9.

TRADE RECEIVABLES
Bad debts are written off and specific provisions are made for trade receivables considered to be doubtful of collection. In
addition, a general provision based on a percentage of trade receivables is made to cover possible losses which are not
specifically identified.

10. INVESTMENTS

15. RETIREMENT BENEFIT
The Company had established an approved retirement benefit trust fund in respect of the defined retirement benefits for
eligible employees under the Telekom Malaysia Retirement Benefit Scheme. The fund was valued every three years by a
professionally qualified independent actuary who will also propose the rates of contribution payable.
The cost of providing retirement benefits was charged against profits on a systematic basis, so as to be sufficient to meet
the liability of the scheme over the future working lives of the existing employees.
The Retirement Benefit Scheme was discontinued with effect from 31 December 2000. The total estimated retirement benefit
liabilities over and above the value of assets held in the retirement benefit trust fund as at that date have been provided for.
With effect from 1 January 2001, the retirement benefits are made through an additional contribution to the Employees
Provident Fund (EPF) and are charged to the Income Statement in the period in which they arise.
16. FOREIGN CURRENCY
Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated into Ringgit Malaysia at the exchange rates ruling at the Balance Sheet date
and transactions in foreign currencies in the Income Statements are converted at exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
During the financial year ended 31 December 2000, the Company changed the accounting policy with respect to the
treatment of exchange differences arising on long term foreign currency monetary items. Details of the change in this
accounting policy is set out in note 33 to the financial statements.
Income Statements of foreign subsidiary/associated companies are translated into Ringgit Malaysia at average exchange rates
for the year and the Balance Sheets are translated at the closing rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange
differences arising from the translation of the foreign subsidiary/associated companies financial statements are reflected in
the Exchange Fluctuation Reserve.
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of foreign subsidiary/associated companies are treated as assets and liabilities of the
Company and are translated at the exchange rate ruling at the date of transaction.

Investments in shares quoted on Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange are stated at the lower of cost and market value.

All other exchange gains or losses are dealt with through the Income Statement.

Investments in unquoted shares and International Satellite Organisations are stated at cost less provision for any permanent
diminution in value.

The principal closing rates used in translation (units of Malaysian Ringgit per foreign currency) are as follows:

11. FINANCE COSTS
Costs incurred in connection with financing the construction and installation of property, plant and equipment are capitalised
until the property, plant and equipment are ready for their intended use. All other finance costs are charged out to the
Income Statements.
12. DEFERRED TAXATION
Provision is made for deferred taxation, using the liability method, on all material timing differences except where it is
considered reasonably probable that the tax effect of such deferrals will continue in the foreseeable future.

Foreign Currency

2000

1999

Foreign Currency

2000

1999

US Dollar

RM3.80000

RM3.80000

Ghanaian Cedi

RM0.00055

RM0.00111

Japanese Yen

RM0.03316

RM0.03721

Guinea Franc

RM0.00202

RM0.00275

Deutsche Mark

RM1.83825

RM1.95225

Indian Rupee

RM0.08139

RM0.08734

Canadian Dollar

RM2.53815

RM2.61726

Malawi Kwacha

RM0.04744

RM0.08225

Pound Sterling

RM5.67530

RM6.14674

Sri Lanka Rupee

RM0.04585

RM0.05333

South African Rand

RM0.50258

RM0.61750

Bangladesh Taka

RM0.07036

RM0.07473

Thai Baht

RM0.08721

RM0.10130

13. BONDS
Bonds, which include notes and debentures, issued by the Company are stated at the net proceeds received on issue. The
finance costs which represent the difference between the net proceeds and the total amount of the payments of the Bonds
are allocated to periods over the term of the Bonds at a constant rate on the carrying amount and are charged to the Income
Statement.
For Convertible Bonds, the amount recognised in shareholders funds in respect of shares issued upon conversion will be
the amount at which the liability for the Bonds is stated as at the date of conversion. The excess of the conversion amount
over the nominal value of share is treated as share premium. No gain or loss will be recognised on conversion.
14. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE HEDGING INSTRUMENTS
Financial derivative hedging instruments are used in the Company’s risk management of foreign currency and interest rate
exposures of its financial liabilities. Hedge accounting principles are applied for the accounting of the underlying exposures
and their hedge instruments. The underlying foreign currency liabilities are translated at their respective hedged exchange rate,
and differential interest receipts and payments arising from interest rate derivative instruments are accrued, so as to match
the net differential with the related expenses on the hedged liabilities. No amounts are recognised in respect of future periods.
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17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances, demand deposits and bank overdrafts. Cash equivalents
are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
insignificant risk of change in value.
18. COMPARATIVES
Comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes resulting from the prior year adjustments as disclosed in
note 33 to the financial statements and extended to comply with the additional disclosure requirements of the applicable
approved accounting standards in Malaysia for the year ended 31 December 2000.

These accounting policies form an integral part of the financial statements set out on pages 134 to 166.
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Income Statements

T E L E K O M M A L AY S I A B E R H A D

Balance Sheets

for the year ended 31 December 2000

All amounts are in millions unless otherwise stated
Note

2000
RM

The Group
1999
RM

The Company
2000
1999
RM
RM

OPERATING INCOME

2

8,815.7

7,833.0

7,676.4

7,049.6

OPERATING COST

3

(7,389.4)

(6,596.7)

(7,026.6)

(5,320.7)

1,426.3

1,236.3

649.8

1,728.9

276.8

75.6

412.4

218.2

1,703.1

1,311.9

1,062.2

1,947.1

OPERATING PROFIT
OTHER OPERATING INCOME

4

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE FINANCE COST
NET FINANCE COST

5

SHARE OF PROFIT LESS LOSSES
OF ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
TAXATION (Including share of associated companies
taxation of RM46.1 million (1999: RM61.9 million))

6

MINORITY INTEREST

(20.2)

200.5

—

—

1,017.0

600.1

1,469.2

7
7

(462.1)

(477.9)

(553.0)

(64.0)

(472.1)

697.8

953.0

128.0

1,469.2

—

—

128.0

1,469.2

7.4

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE
TO SHAREHOLDERS

DIVIDENDS PER SHARE (sen)

(495.4)

1,250.8

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION

EARNINGS PER SHARE (sen)
– basic
– diluted

(432.1)

(1.1)

705.2

951.9

22.9
22.7

31.6
31.5

10.0

10.0

as at 31 December 2000

All amounts are in millions unless otherwise stated
2000
RM

The Group
1999
RM

3,087.3
1,940.3
8,394.9

3,028.2
1,378.3
8,036.8

3,087.3
1,940.3
10,935.9

3,028.2
1,378.3
11,034.0

13,422.5
157.3

12,443.3
181.0

15,963.5
—

15,440.5
—

1,354.8
6,209.1
676.5
15.3
276.7

1,350.0
6,162.0
650.5
9.9
161.0

1,354.8
6,251.4
613.0
—
275.7

1,350.0
6,054.4
594.7
—
160.6

8,532.4

8,333.4

8,494.9

8,159.7

22,112.2

20,957.7

24,458.4

23,600.2

15
16
17
18
19

18,706.0
—
1,259.7
144.7
640.9

19,144.8
—
1,288.8
223.3
654.4

16,236.3
5,739.8
44.6
139.1
640.9

16,529.4
5,569.1
118.4
216.8
654.4

20
21
22
23

156.4
3,977.3
166.2
2,215.7

186.0
2,926.1
170.1
1,036.6

108.0
3,606.9
166.2
1,929.6

120.4
2,850.9
170.1
896.3

6,515.6

4,318.8

5,810.7

4,037.7

3,165.4
872.1
894.0
223.2

2,673.4
547.5
1,146.5
305.0

2,387.6
667.1
875.1
223.2

1,982.0
102.4
1,136.2
305.0

CURRENT LIABILITIES

5,154.7

4,672.4

4,153.0

3,525.6

NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

1,360.9

1,657.7

512.1

24,458.4

23,600.2

Note

SHARE CAPITAL
SHARE PREMIUM
RESERVES

8
9

TOTAL CAPITAL AND RESERVES
MINORITY INTERESTS
Convertible Bonds
Borrowings
Customers’ deposits
Deferred taxation
Retirement benefits

10
11
12
13
14

DEFERRED AND LONG TERM LIABILITIES

—
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
INVESTMENTS
LONG TERM RECEIVABLES
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Short term investments
Cash and cash equivalents
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Taxation
Proposed dividend

24
11

22,112.2

The above Income Statements are to be read in conjunction with the Significant Accounting Policies on pages 131 to 133 and
the Notes to the Financial Statements on pages 139 to 166.
Report of the Auditors – Page 168.
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(353.6)
20,957.7

The Company
2000
1999
RM
RM

The above Balance Sheets are to be read in conjunction with the Significant Accounting Policies on pages 131 to 133 and the
Notes to the Financial Statements on pages 139 to 166.
Report of the Auditors – Page 168.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2000

for the year ended 31 December 2000

All amounts are in millions
unless otherwise stated

Note
At 1 January 1999
– as previously reported
– prior year adjustment

33

– as restated
Goodwill written-off
– subsidiary companies
– associated companies
Exchange Fluctuation Reserve
Net loss not recognised
in income statement
Profit for the year
– as previously reported
– prior year adjustment

33

– as restated
Dividends for year ended
– 31.12.1999

25

Issue of shares
– exercise of share option
At 31 December 1999
At 1 January 2000
– as previously reported
– prior year adjustment

33

– as restated
Goodwill written-off
– associated companies
Exchange Fluctuation Reserve
Net loss not recognised
in income statement
Profit for the year
Dividends for year ended
– 31.12.1999
(under provision of prior year)
– 31.12.2000
Issue of shares
– exercise of share option
At 31 December 2000

25
25

Issued and fully paid
of RM1 each
Special share*/Ordinary shares
Number of
Nominal
shares
value
RM

Non-distributable
Exchange
Share Fluctuation
premium
Reserve
RM
RM

Retained
Profits
RM

Total
RM

2,999.0
—

1,107.2
—

2,999.0

2,999.0

1,107.2

—
—
—

—
—
—

—
—
—

—
—
(74.0)

(104.0)
(173.3)
—

(104.0)
(173.3)
(74.0)

—

—

—

(74.0)

(277.3)

(351.3)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

819.1
132.8

819.1
132.8

—

—

—

—

951.9

951.9

Dividends for year ended
– 31.12.1999

—

—

—

—

(305.0)

(305.0)

Issue of shares
– exercise of share option

29.2

271.1

3,028.2

3,028.2

1,378.3

17.4

—
(56.6)

8,973.8
(1,250.0)

12,025.9
(178.5)

7,723.8

11,847.4

—

300.3

8,093.4

12,443.3

3,028.2
—

3,028.2
—

1,378.3
—

(995.3)
938.7

9,210.6
(1,117.2)

12,621.8
(178.5)

3,028.2

3,028.2

1,378.3

(56.6)

8,093.4

12,443.3

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
(117.6)

(3.4)
—

(3.4)
(117.6)

—

—

—

(117.6)

(3.4)

(121.0)

—

—

—

—

705.2

705.2

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

(2.9)
(223.2)

(2.9)
(223.2)

—

—

—

—

(226.1)

(226.1)

59.1

59.1

562.0

—

3,087.3

3,087.3

1,940.3

(174.2)

—

621.1

8,569.1

13,422.5

Issued and fully paid
of RM1 each

Note

2,999.0
—

29.2

(1,054.1)
1,071.5

All amounts are in millions
unless otherwise stated

Distributable

At 1 January 1999
– as previously reported
– prior year adjustment

33

– as restated
Profit for the year
– as previously reported
– prior year adjustment

33

– as restated

25

At 31 December 1999

At 1 January 2000
– as previously reported
– prior year adjustment

33

– as restated
Profit for the year
Dividends for year ended
– 31.12.1999
(under provision of prior year)
– 31.12.2000

Issue of shares
– exercise of share option
At 31 December 2000

25
25

Special share*/Ordinary shares
Number of
Nominal
shares
value
RM

Non-distributable

Distributable

Exchange
Fluctuation
Reserve
RM

Retained
Profits
RM

Share
premium
RM

2,999.0
—

2,999.0
—

1,107.2
—

2,999.0

2,999.0

1,107.2

—
—

—
—

—

(1,071.5)
1,071.5

Total
RM

10,941.3
(1,071.5)

13,976.0
—

—

9,869.8

13,976.0

—
—

—
—

1,336.4
132.8

1,336.4
132.8

—

—

—

1,469.2

1,469.2

—

—

—

—

29.2

29.2

271.1

—

—

300.3

3,028.2

3,028.2

1,378.3

—

11,034.0

15,440.5

3,028.2
—

3,028.2
—

1,378.3
—

11.972.7
(938.7)

15,440.5
—

3,028.2

3,028.2

1,378.3

—

11,034.0

15,440.5

—

—

—

—

128.0

128.0

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

(2.9)
(223.2)

(2.9)
(223.2)

—

—

—

—

(226.1)

(226.1)

59.1

59.1

562.0

—

—

621.1

3,087.3

3,087.3

1,940.3

—

10,935.9

15,963.5

(938.7)
938.7

(305.0)

(305.0)

* Issued and fully paid shares include The Special Rights Redeemable Preference Share (Special Share) of RM1. Refer to note
8 to the financial statements for details of the terms and rights attached to Special Share.

* Issued and fully paid shares include The Special Rights Redeemable Preference Share (Special Share) of RM1. Refer to note
8 to the financial statements for details of the terms and rights attached to Special Share.
The above Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity is to be read in conjunction with the Significant Accounting Policies on
pages 131 to 133 and the Notes to the Financial Statements on pages 139 to 166.
Report of the Auditors – Page 168.
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The above Statement of Changes in Equity is to be read in conjunction with the Significant Accounting Policies on pages 131 to
133 and the Notes to the Financial Statements on pages 139 to 166.
Report of the Auditors – Page 168.
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Cash Flow Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2000

for the year ended 31 December 2000

All amounts are in millions unless otherwise stated
Note

2000
RM

The Group
1999
RM

The Company
2000
1999
RM
RM

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

26

2,964.9

2,861.9

2,907.0

2,940.9

CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

27

(2,511.7)

(2,768.9)

(2,947.2)

(3,278.0)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

28

732.0

68.6

1,073.5

All amounts are in millions unless otherwise stated
1.

The principal activities of the Company during the year are the establishment, maintenance and provision of
telecommunication and related services under the licence issued by the Minister of Energy, Communications and
Multimedia. The principal activities of the subsidiary companies are set out in note 16 to the financial statements. There
have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the year.

491.6
2.

NET INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

1,185.2

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES

(6.1)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE YEAR

23

161.6
(36.3)

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

1,033.3

154.5

—

—

1,036.6

911.3

896.3

741.8

2,215.7

1,036.6

1,929.6

896.3

OPERATING INCOME
2000
RM

The Group
1999
RM

Calls/Usage
Business
Residential
Mobile

2,888.8
1,955.7
634.0

2,627.2
1,771.7
414.4

2,692.2
1,927.2
280.4

2,487.0
1,771.7
179.1

Sub Total

5,478.5

4,813.3

4,899.8

4,437.8

474.5
759.9
215.6

499.5
740.9
210.6

494.1
758.3
4.1

480.6
740.9
3.6

1,450.0

1,451.0

1,256.5

1,225.1

Others
Business
Residential
Mobile

84.9
70.4
132.5

59.8
72.4
93.6

79.3
70.4
2.6

59.8
72.4
0.8

Sub Total

287.8

225.8

152.3

133.0

Total
Business
Residential
Mobile

3,448.2
2,786.0
982.1

3,186.5
2,585.0
718.6

3,265.6
2,755.9
287.1

3,027.4
2,585.0
183.5

Total Telephone

7,216.3

6,490.1

6,308.6

5,795.9

820.4
98.8
234.0
446.2

719.6
73.2
260.7
289.4

1,086.2
95.7
185.9
—

984.1
73.2
196.4
—

Total Non-telephone

1,599.4

1,342.9

1,367.8

1,253.7

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME

8,815.7

7,833.0

7,676.4

7,049.6

Rentals
Business
Residential
Mobile
Sub Total

Data services
Internet and Multimedia
Other telecommunication related services
Non telecommunication related services

The above Cash Flow Statements are to be read in conjunction with the Significant Accounting Policies on pages 131 to 133
and the Notes to the Financial Statements on pages 139 to 166.
Report of the Auditors – Page 168.
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The Company
2000
1999
RM
RM

Non telecommunication related services are mainly from subsidiary companies with core business in consultancy, maintenance,
property management, education, printing and publication of telephone directories and others as disclosed in note 16 to the
financial statements.
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OPERATING COST

4.
The Group
2000
1999
RM
RM

140

Depreciation
Manpower
Domestic and international outpayment
Supplies and inventories
Retirement benefits
Net (gain)/loss on foreign exchange – Realised
Net (gain)/loss on foreign exchange – Unrealised
Bad and doubtful debts
Trade receivables owing
by subsidiary companies written-off
Maintenance
Charges and commission
Utilities
Rental of land and buildings
Other rental expenses
Lease rental of equipment
Directors of the Company
– fees
– remuneration and other emoluments
Former Directors of the Company
– fees
– remuneration and other emoluments
– ex-gratia
Other directors – remuneration and other emoluments
Audit fees
– current year
– in respect of previous year
Provision for diminution in value
of quoted investment written-back
Provision for diminution in value
of an associated company written-back
Diminution in value of investment in subsidiary companies
Property, plant and equipment written-off
Provision for diminution in value of investment
in an International Satellite Organisation
Provision for loans/advances to subsidiary companies
Provision for impairment losses
of property, plant and equipment
Others

2,480.9
1,021.3
782.2
385.5
162.0
(12.9)
(45.0)
486.4

TOTAL OPERATING COST

2,469.2
952.1
679.0
343.9
39.5
8.4
93.2
539.0

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

The Company
2000
1999
RM
RM
2,155.4
842.9
811.8
261.7
160.7
(13.0)
(53.7)
294.2

2,177.7
801.7
703.6
214.7
39.2
8.4
93.2
328.3

—
279.8
155.9
151.6
87.0
89.6
30.8

—
180.5
47.4
123.3
83.3
68.2
15.1

335.5
200.8
57.5
131.6
100.9
82.3
24.4

—
180.5
31.4
123.3
94.9
62.1
22.1

0.3
0.5

0.5
0.6

0.3
0.5

0.4
0.5

0.2
0.1
0.3
0.2
1.1
0.2

0.1
—
—
0.3
0.8
—

0.1
0.1
0.3
—
0.4
0.1

0.1
—
—
—
0.3
—

—

(15.9)

—

(15.9)

—
—
43.9

(9.0)
—
0.1

—
457.1
36.1

—
—
0.1

77.7
—

—
—

77.7
584.2

—
—

304.0
905.8

—
977.1

—
476.7

—
454.1

7,389.4

6,596.7

7,026.6

5,320.7

(a)

Estimated money value of benefits of Directors amounted to RM38,193 (1999: RM68,400) for the Group and Company.
Estimated money value of benefits of a former Director amounted to RM7,000 (1999: RM18,433) for the Group and Company.

(b)

Professional fee paid in 1999 to a firm in which a former Director was a partner was RM78,375. No such professional
fee payable during the year.

5.

2000
RM

The Group
1999
RM

The Company
2000
1999
RM
RM

Rental income from buildings
Gain on sale of short term investments
Sale of scrap stores
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Income from investment in International
Satellite Organisations
Rental income from vehicles
Dividend income from subsidiaries
Dividend income from quoted shares
Dividend income from unquoted shares
Interest from subsidiaries
Profit on disposal of an associated company
Others

7.5
2.2
7.4
—

5.3
9.1
6.6
0.1

21.2
2.2
7.4
—

16.2
9.1
6.6
0.2

10.6
0.2
—
1.5
1.5
—
197.4
48.5

12.8
0.3
—
1.6
0.2
—
—
39.6

10.6
3.8
15.2
1.5
1.5
136.9
158.9
53.2

12.8
3.6
1.7
1.6
0.2
90.9
75.3

TOTAL OTHER OPERATING INCOME

276.8

75.6

412.4

218.2

NET FINANCE COST
Foreign
RM

2000
Domestic
RM

Total
RM

Foreign
RM

1999
Domestic
RM

Total
RM

Finance cost in respect of:
Borrowings
Convertible Bonds
Others

322.8
54.7
2.9

164.1
—
8.1

486.9
54.7
11.0

314.0
54.7
—

162.5
—
8.3

476.5
54.7
8.3

Total finance cost
Interest income

380.4
—

172.2
(90.5)

552.6
(90.5)

368.7
(3.1)

170.8
(58.5)

539.5
(61.6)

NET FINANCE COST OF
THE COMPANY

380.4

81.7

462.1

365.6

112.3

477.9

(25.1)
(6.0)

(16.8)
(13.2)

50.6

432.1

Finance cost of subsidiary companies
Interest income of subsidiary companies
TOTAL NET FINANCE
COST OF THE GROUP

8.3
(7.2)

381.5

1.6
(2.4)

364.8

23.3
(5.0)

130.6

24.9
(7.4)

495.4
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TAXATION

7.
The Group
2000
1999
RM
RM

EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

The Company
2000
1999
RM
RM
Net profit attributable to shareholders (RM million)

The taxation charge for the Group and Company comprise:
(i) Malaysia:
Current year taxation
In respect of prior year
Deferred taxation

(ii) Overseas:
Current year taxation
Associated companies
– current year taxation
– in respect of prior year

TOTAL TAXATION

488.5
0.9
5.4

—
(4.5)
3.5

472.1
—
—

—
—
—

494.8

(1.0)

472.1

—

12.1

3.1

—

—

41.6
4.5

61.9
—

—
—

—
—

46.1

61.9

—

—

553.0

64.0

472.1

—

The effective rate of taxation for the Company is higher than the statutory rate principally due to non-tax deductible expenses.
The effective rate of taxation for the Group is higher than the statutory rate principally due to losses of certain subsidiary
companies, which for tax purposes are not available for off-set against taxable profits of other companies within the Group.

7.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a)

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share of the Group is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to shareholders by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Net profit attributable to shareholders (RM million)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (million)
Basic earnings per share (sen)

2000

The Group
1999

705.2

951.9

3,072.9

3,013.6

22.9

31.6

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (million)
Adjustment for ESOS (million)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted earnings per share (million)
Diluted earnings per share (sen)
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The Group
1999

705.2

951.9

3,072.9
30.7
3,103.6

3,013.6
9.2
3,022.8

22.7

31.5

Net profit attributable to shareholders has been restated to take into account the prior year adjustments as disclosed in note
33 to the financial statements.

8.

SHARE CAPITAL
The Company
2000
1999
RM
RM
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of RM1 each
Special share of RM1

5,000.0
*

5,000.0
*

Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of RM1 each
Special share of RM1

3,087.3
*

3,028.2
*

TOTAL ISSUED AND FULLY PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

3,087.3

3,028.2

*RM1
(a)

The Special Rights Redeemable Preference Share (Special Share) would enable the Government through the Minister
of Finance to ensure that certain major decisions affecting the operations of the Company are consistent with the
Government’s policy. The Special Shareholder, which may only be the Government or any representative or person
acting on its behalf, is entitled to receive notices of meetings but does not carry any right to vote at such meetings
of the Company. However, the Special Shareholder is entitled to attend and speak at such meetings.
Certain matters, in particular, the alteration of the Articles of Association of the Company relating to the rights of the
Special Shareholder, the dissolution of the Company, any substantial acquisitions and disposal of assets, amalgamation,
merger and takeover, require the prior consent of the Special Shareholder.

(b) Diluted earnings per share
For the diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. For this purpose, the Convertible Eurobonds due 2004 are not
included as they are not dilutive potential ordinary share.
For the Employees’ Share Option Scheme (ESOS), a calculation is done to determine the number of shares that could
have been acquired at market price (determined as the average annual share price of the Company’s shares) based on
the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to outstanding share options. This calculation serves to determine
the ‘unexercised’ shares to be added to the ordinary shares outstanding for the purpose of computing the dilution. No
adjustment is made to net profit attributable to shareholders for the share options calculation.

2000

The Special Shareholder has the right to require the Company to redeem the Special Share at par at any time. In a
distribution of capital in a winding-up of the Company, the Special Shareholder is entitled to the repayment of the
capital paid-up on the Special Share in priority to any repayment of capital to any other member. The Special Share
does not confer any right to participate in the capital or profits of the Company.
(b)

During the year, the issued and fully paid-up share capital of the Company was increased by the issuance of
59,145,500 ordinary shares of RM1 each at the option price of RM10.50 per share for cash under the ESOS. These
shares rank “pari-passu” in all respects with the existing issued ordinary shares of the Company.
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SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)
(c)

10. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED)

ESOS
The Employees’ Share Option Scheme (ESOS) was approved by the shareholders at an Extraordinary General Meeting
held on 28 March 1997. During the year, no new options were granted pursuant to the ESOS.

(iii) The Bonds bear interest rate of 4% per annum payable semi-annually in arrears in equal instalments on
31 March and 30 September in each year during the tenure and on the date of maturity. Any Bonds converted
will cease to carry interest as from the last interest payment date immediately preceding the date of conversion.

The movement during the year in the number of options over the shares of the Company are as follows:

(iv) The Bonds constitute, subject to the negative pledge, unsecured obligations of the Company.

2000
Million

The Company
At 1 January
Exercised
Lapsed

1999
Million

190.9
(59.1)
(3.2)

At 31 December

217.8
(26.9)
—

128.6

RESERVES
The Group
2000
1999
RM
RM
Retained Profits
Exchange Fluctuation Reserves arising from translation
of foreign subsidiary/associated companies

8,569.1

TOTAL RESERVES

8,394.9

(174.2)

8,093.4
(56.6)
8,036.8

The Company
2000
1999
RM
RM
10,935.9

11,034.0

—

—

10,935.9

11,034.0

Subject to agreement with the Inland Revenue Board, the Company has sufficient tax credit under Section 108 of the
Income Tax Act, 1967 and tax exempt income under section 8 of the Income Tax (Amendment) Act 1999 at 31 December
2000 to frank the payment of net dividends of approximately RM7,411.6 million (1999: RM6,420.8 million) out of total
distributable reserves of RM10,935.9 million (1999: RM11,034.0 million) without incurring additional taxation.

10. CONVERTIBLE BONDS
(a)

Convertible Bonds represent USD359.9 million (1999: USD359.9 million) Convertible Eurobonds due 2004.

(b)

The principle features of the Eurobonds are as follows:
(i)

11.

None of the remaining Bonds have been redeemed, purchased or cancelled during the financial year.

BORROWINGS
2000

Unless previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled, the Bonds are convertible on or after 3 November 1994
up to and including 26 September 2004 into fully paid ordinary shares of RM1 each of the Company at an initial
conversion price of RM15.60 per ordinary share and with a fixed rate of exchange on conversion of RM2.5553
equals USD1.

1999

Total
RM

Weighted
Average
Rate of
Finance

Long
Term
RM

Short
Term
RM

Total
RM

—
9.4

—
247.9

5.95%
6.74%

4.9
278.1

—
11.5

4.9
289.6

18.6

41.1

59.7

9.91%

41.8

56.8

98.6

7.66%

257.1

50.5

307.6

7.52%

324.8

68.3

393.1

4.29%

817.3

350.6

1,167.9

5.16%

913.4

372.7

1,286.1

4.50%
7.87%

—
400.0

7.2
455.5

7.2
855.5

4.50%
7.87%

—
768.0

8.1
87.6

8.1
855.6

5.80%

1,217.3

813.3

2,030.6

6.24%

1,681.4

468.4

2,149.8

Total Domestic

6.04%

1,474.4

863.8

2,338.2

6.44%

2,006.2

536.7

2,542.9

FOREIGN
Secured
– Borrowings from
financial institutions (sub-note a)
– Other borrowings (sub-note a)

6.57%
4.20%

61.6
14.4

—
6.1

61.6
20.5

3.21%
3.44%

42.9
19.3

—
—

42.9
19.3

5.98%

76.0

6.1

82.1

3.28%

62.2

—

62.2

190.9

At 31 December 2000, options to subscribe for 128,600,500 ordinary shares of RM1 each at the option price of
RM10.50 per share remained unexercised. The ESOS remains in force until 21 April 2002. The options granted do
not confer any right to participate in any share option scheme of any other company.

9.

(c)

Weighted
Average
Rate of
Finance

Long
Term
RM

Short
Term
RM

—
6.69%

—
238.5

11.66%

THE GROUP
DOMESTIC
Secured
– Borrowings from
financial institutions (sub-note a)
– Cagamas Loans (sub-note b)
– Borrowings under Islamic
Banking facilities (sub-note a)

Unsecured
– Borrowings from
financial institutions
– Borrowings under
Islamic Banking facilities
– Other borrowings

(ii) Unless previously redeemed, purchased and cancelled or converted, each Bond will be redeemed on 3 October
2004 at its principal amount together with accrued interest. The Bonds may also be redeemed, in whole or in
part, by the Company at any time on or after 21 October 1999 at their principal amount, plus accrued interest.
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BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

11.
2000
Weighted
Average
Rate of
Finance

Long
Term
RM

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
2000

1999
Short
Term
RM

Total
RM

Weighted
Average
Rate of
Finance

Long
Term
RM

Short
Term
RM

Weighted
Average
Rate of
Finance

Total
RM

Long
Term
RM

1999
Short
Term
RM

Total
RM

Weighted
Average
Rate of
Finance

Long
Term
RM

Short
Term
RM

Total
RM

THE COMPANY
Unsecured
– Notes and
Debentures (sub-note c)
– Borrowings from
financial institutions
– Borrowings under
Islamic Banking facilities
– Other borrowings

7.45%

3,031.8

—

3,031.8

6.88%

1,903.3

—

1,903.3

8.29%

1,375.8

—

1,375.8

7.41%

1,938.1

7.6

1,945.7

8.60%
2.76%

228.0
23.1

—
2.2

228.0
25.3

7.66%
3.82%

224.4
27.8

—
3.2

224.4
31.0

7.73%

4,658.7

2.2

4,660.9

7.15%

4,093.6

10.8

4,104.4

Total Foreign

7.70%

4,734.7

8.3

4,743.0

7.09%

4,155.8

10.8

4,166.6

TOTAL BORROWINGS

7.15%

6,209.1

872.1

7,081.2

6.84%

6,162.0

547.5

6,709.5

DOMESTIC
Secured
– Cagamas Loans (sub-note b)

6.69%

238.5

9.4

247.9

6.74%

278.1

11.5

289.6

6.69%

238.5

9.4

247.9

6.74%

278.1

11.5

289.6

7.30%
7.87%

1,000.0
400.0

200.0
455.5

1,200.0
855.5

8.09%
7.87%

989.2
768.0

—
87.6

989.2
855.6

7.54%

1,400.0

655.5

2,055.5

7.99%

1,757.2

87.6

1,844.8

7.45%

1,638.5

664.9

2,303.4

7.82%

2,035.3

99.1

2,134.4

7.45%

3,031.8

—

3,031.8

6.88%

1,903.3

—

1,903.3

8.48%

1,330.0

—

1,330.0

7.55%

1,863.8

—

1,863.8

8.59%
2.76%

228.0
23.1

—
2.2

228.0
25.3

7.66%
3.82%

224.4
27.6

—
3.3

224.4
30.9

Total Foreign

7.77%

4,612.9

2.2

4,615.1

7.84%

4,019.1

3.3

4,022.4

TOTAL BORROWINGS

7.67%

6,251.4

667.1

6,918.5

7.21%

6,054.4

102.4

6,156.8

Unsecured
– Borrowings from
financial institutions
– Other borrowings

Total Domestic
FOREIGN

Domestic
RM

2000
Foreign
RM

Total
RM

Domestic
RM

1999
Foreign
RM

Total
RM

The Group’s long term borrowings are
repayable as follows:
After
After
After
After

one year and up to five years
five years and up to ten years
ten years and up to fifteen years
fifteen years (sub-note d)

808.9
114.1
27.6
523.8
1,474.4

2,405.2
1,584.4
2.5
742.6
4,734.7

3,214.1
1,698.5
30.1
1,266.4
6,209.1

1,424.2
58.2
—
523.8
2,006.2

2,959.4
446.2
8.4
741.8
4,155.8

4,383.6
504.4
8.4
1,265.6

Unsecured
– Notes and
Debentures (sub-note c)
– Borrowings from
financial institutions
– Borrowings under
Islamic Banking facilities
– Other borrowings

6,162.0
Domestic
RM

2000
Foreign
RM

Total
RM

Domestic
RM

1999
Foreign
RM

Total
RM

496.8
114.1
27.6
1,000.0

2,338.0
1,529.8
2.5
742.6

2,834.8
1,643.9
30.1
1,742.6

987.9
58.2
—
989.2

2,888.6
384.2
4.5
741.8

3,876.5
442.4
4.5
1,731.0

1,638.5

4,612.9

6,251.4

2,035.3

4,019.1

6,054.4

The Company’s long term borrowings
are repayable as follows:
After
After
After
After
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one year and up to five years
five years and up to ten years
ten years and up to fifteen years
fifteen years (sub-note d)

(a)

Secured by way of fixed and floating charge on the landed properties and other assets of certain subsidiary companies.
(note 15 to the financial statements)

(b)

This represents borrowings from Cagamas secured by way of assignment of the titles of properties relating to staff
housing loans.
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11.

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
(c)

The Group and the Company have the option to prepay the total domestic loan outstanding of RM523.8 million (1999:
RM523.8 million) and RM1,000.0 million (1999: RM989.2 million) respectively in 2004.

(e)

Long Dated Swap
Underlying Liability
USD300.0 million 7.875% Debentures Due 2025
In 1998, the Company entered into a long dated swap, which will mature on 1 August 2025.
Hedging Instrument
The Company made a payment of USD5.0 million and is obliged to pay fixed amounts of JPY209.9 million semiannually on each 1 February and 1 August, up to and including 1 August 2025.
Prior to 1 February 2004, the counter-party is not obliged to agree to any request by the Company to terminate the
transaction. Commencing from 1 February 2004, the Company has the right to terminate the transaction at a rate
mutually agreed with the counter-party. However, the Company intends to hold the contract to maturity.
On 1 August 2025, the Company will receive RM750.0 million from the counter-party. These proceeds will be swapped
for USD300.0 million at a pre-determined exchange rate of RM2.5 to USD1.0, which will be used for the repayment
of the USD300.0 million 7.875% redeemable unsecured Debentures. The effect of this transaction is to effectively build
up a sinking fund with an assured value of USD300.0 million on 1 August 2025 for the repayment of the Debentures.
Interest Rate Swap (IRS)
Underlying Liability
USD350.0 million unsecured Syndicated Term Loan
In 1998, the Company entered into a 5-year USD350.0 million unsecured syndicated term loan, paying interest at
floating rates, to mature on 11 May 2003. During the year ended 31 December 2000, the facility was refinanced into
two tranches comprising USD200.0 million due on 30 June 2003 and USD150.0 million due on 29 June 2007.
Hedging Instrument
In 1998, the Company entered into an IRS agreement with notional principal of USD400.0 million that entitles it to
receive interest at floating rate and obliges it to pay interest at fixed rate of 6.75% per annum.
The Company unwound USD200.0 million notional principal of the swap at zero cost by embedding an interest rate
‘cap’ of 7.25% per annum on the floating rate leg of the remaining USD200.0 million notional amount of the IRS.
With the cap, the floating rate interest receivable from the counter-party has effectively been limited to a maximum
rate of 7.25% per annum. The effect of this transaction is to fix the interest rate payable on USD200.0 million of the
above USD loan, to 6.75% per annum as long as interest rates are below 7.25% per annum. If market interest rates
exceed that level, the interest rate payable reverts to a floating rate. The swap matures on 14 January 2005.

(g)

Cross-currency Interest Rate Swap (CCIRS)
Underlying Liability
USD200.0 million 7.125% Notes Due 2005
In 1995, the Company issued USD200.0 million 7.125% Notes due 2005. The translated RM balance of the Notes as
at 31 December 2000 as per the Company’s accounting policy is RM771.6 million (1999: RM789.6 million).
The Notes are redeemable in full on 1 August 2005.
Hedging Instrument
In 1999, the Company entered into a CCIRS, on a USD50.0 million tranche of the above Notes, for the period from
5 March 1999 to 1 August 2005. The effect of the transaction is to convert USD50.0 million of the fixed rate Notes
to a fixed rate JPY liability of 1.25% per annum with a premium on redemption. The premium on the redemption of
the JPY leg is dependant on the USD/JPY exchange rate on the date of maturity, nevertheless the final redemption amount
is range bound between a minimum of JPY6,080.0 million plus coupon repayment of maximum JPY1,520.0 million.
The Company has recognised the maximum coupon repayment based on a constant rate of return over the life of the
instrument with the assumption of the final redemption amount being the maximum amount payable. However, should
the final redemption amount be less than that, there would be a write-back of any over-accrued amount.
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12. CUSTOMERS’ DEPOSITS

Consists of USD200.0 million 7.125% Notes due 2005, USD300.0 million 7.875% Debentures due 2025 and USD100.0
million Guaranteed Floating Rate Notes due 2006 with interest during the year ranging from 8.21% to 9.02% (1999:
7.22% to 8.58%). During the year, there is a new issue of USD300.0 million 8.0% Guaranteed Notes due 2010.

(d)

(f)

T E L E K O M M A L AY S I A B E R H A D

2000
RM

The Group
1999
RM

The Company
2000
1999
RM
RM

Telephone
Data services
Others

634.2
34.8
7.5

609.5
35.7
5.3

575.6
34.8
2.6

556.9
35.7
2.1

TOTAL CUSTOMERS’ DEPOSITS

676.5

650.5

613.0

594.7

Telephone customers’ deposits are subjected to rebate at 5% per annum in accordance with Telephone Regulations, 1996.

13. DEFERRED TAXATION

At 1 January
Transfer from Income Statement
At 31 December

2000
RM

The Group
1999
RM

The Company
2000
1999
RM
RM

9.9
5.4

6.4
3.5

—
—

—
—

15.3

9.9

—

—

The tax effect of timing differences which are expected to continue in the foreseeable future and not provided for at
31 December were:
The Group
The Company
2000
1999
2000
1999
RM
RM
RM
RM
Between depreciation and capital allowances
Other timing differences (sub-note a)
TOTAL TAX EFFECT NOT PROVIDED FOR
(a)

1,265.9
(531.8)

1,139.9
(319.4)

1,373.5
(72.9)

1,240.9
(59.4)

734.1

820.5

1,300.6

1,181.5

Included in other timing differences are unabsorbed tax losses of subsidiary companies of RM334.7 million (1999:
RM226.9 million)

14. RETIREMENT BENEFITS
2000
RM

The Group
1999
RM

The Company
2000
1999
RM
RM

At 1 January
Charged to Income Statement
Utilised during the year

161.0
162.0
(46.3)

160.6
39.5
(39.1)

160.6
160.7
(45.6)

160.5
39.2
(39.1)

At 31 December

276.7

161.0

275.7

160.6

The Retirement Benefit Scheme was discontinued with effect from 31 December 2000. The total estimated retirement benefit
liabilities over and above the value of assets held in the retirement benefit trust fund as at that date have been provided for.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

THE GROUP
Telecommunication
network
RM
Cost
Balance at 1.1.2000
Additions
Disposals/Write-off
Currency translation
differences
Balance at 31.12.2000
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at 1.1.2000
Depreciation
Disposals/Write-off
Impairment losses
Currency translation
differences
Balance at 31.12.2000
Net Book Value
Balance at 1.1.2000
Additions
Depreciation
Disposals/Write-off
Impairment losses
Currency translation
differences
Balance at 31.12.2000

Movable
plant and
equipment
RM

Computer
support
systems
RM

26,184.0
1,892.9
(237.2)

971.5
101.7
(46.2)

1,523.2
289.2
(16.3)

(87.1)

(9.4)

(0.4)

27,752.6

1,017.6

Land
(sub-note a)
RM

307.7
98.0
—
(1.8)

1,795.7

403.9

Buildings
RM

2,338.1
260.2
(0.5)
(9.8)
2,588.0

Capital
Work-InProgress,
at cost
(sub-note b)
RM

4,111.5
(185.4)*
—
—
3,926.1

Total
Property,
Plant and
Equipment
RM

35,436.0
2,456.6
(300.2)
(108.5)
37,483.9

13,708.0
1,981.4
(216.9)
304.0

716.0
104.2
(24.1)
—

1,042.7
301.7
(14.8)
—

4.5
0.6
—
—

820.0
93.0
(0.5)
—

—
—
—
—

16,291.2
2,480.9
(256.3)
304.0

(30.5)

(7.6)

(0.3)

—

(3.5)

—

(41.9)

15,746.0

788.5

12,476.0
1,892.9
(1,981.4)
(20.3)
(304.0)

255.5
101.7
(104.2)
(22.1)
—

480.5
289.2
(301.7)
(1.5)
—

303.2
98.0
(0.6)
—
—

1,518.1
260.2
(93.0)
—
—

(56.6)

(1.8)

(0.1)

(1.8)

(6.3)

12,006.6

229.1

1,329.3

5.1

466.4

398.8

909.0

1,679.0

—

4,111.5
(185.4)*
—
—
—
—
3,926.1

THE GROUP
Telecommunication
network
RM
Cost
Balance at 1.1.1999
Additions
Disposals/Write-off
Currency translation
differences
Balance at 31.12.1999
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at 1.1.1999
Depreciation
Disposals/Write-off
Currency translation
differences

18,777.9

Balance at 31.12.1999

19,144.8
2,456.6
(2,480.9)
(43.9)
(304.0)

Net Book Value
Balance at 1.1.1999
Additions
Depreciation
Disposals/Write-off
Currency translation
differences

(66.6)
18,706.0

Balance at 31.12.1999

Net book value of certain subsidiary companies’ property, plant and equipment pledged as security for borrowings (note 11 to
the financial statements):

Land
(sub-note a)
RM

Buildings
RM

Total
Property,
Plant and
Equipment
RM

24,632.4
1,671.3
(101.7)

922.5
58.4
(7.1)

1,414.5
109.5
(0.7)

302.0
7.4
(1.2)

2,281.5
60.8
(1.4)

3,223.5
888.0*
—

32,776.4
2,795.4
(112.1)

(18.0)

(2.3)

(0.1)

(0.5)

(2.8)

—

(23.7)

26,184.0

971.5

11,810.3
1,973.7
(71.7)

619.3
102.7
(5.8)

(4.3)

(0.2)

1,523.2

307.7

754.3
288.8
(0.4)

4.0
0.6
(0.1)

2,338.1

4,111.5

716.6
103.4
—

—
—
—

13,904.5
2,469.2
(78.0)
(4.5)

—

—

—

—

1,042.7

4.5

820.0

—

35,436.0

13,708.0

716.0

12,822.1
1,671.3
(1,973.7)
(30.0)

303.2
58.4
(102.7)
(1.3)

660.2
109.5
(288.8)
(0.3)

298.0
7.4
(0.6)
(1.1)

1,564.9
60.8
(103.4)
(1.4)

3,223.5
888.0*
—
—

18,871.9
2,795.4
(2,469.2)
(34.1)

(13.7)

(2.1)

(0.1)

(0.5)

(2.8)

—

(19.2)

12,476.0

255.5

480.5

303.2

1,518.1

4,111.5

16,291.2

19,144.8

Net book value of certain subsidiary companies’ property, plant and equipment pledged as security for borrowings (note 11 to
the financial statements):
RM

RM
160.1
5.4
1.1
0.9
207.1
374.6

150

Computer
support
systems
RM

* Net of transfer to property, plant and equipment

* Net of transfer to property, plant and equipment

Telecommunication network
Movable plant and equipment
Computer support systems
Land
Buildings

Movable
plant and
equipment
RM

Capital
Work-InProgress,
at cost
(sub-note b)
RM

Telecommunication network
Movable plant and equipment
Computer support systems
Land
Buildings

155.3
6.1
0.6
0.5
231.6
394.1
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

THE COMPANY
Telecommunication
network
RM

Movable
plant and
equipment
RM

Computer
support
systems
RM

Land
(sub-note a)
RM

Buildings
RM

Capital
Work-InProgress,
at cost
(sub-note b)
RM

Total
Property,
Plant and
Equipment
RM

Cost
Balance at 1.1.2000
Additions
Disposals/Write-off

23,867.3
1,570.8
(213.3)

803.6
51.5
(45.2)

1,340.5
224.9
(16.2)

284.2
97.5
—

1,955.3
240.2
(0.5)

3,790.7
(286.5)*
—

32,041.6
1,898.4
(275.2)

Balance at 31.12.2000

25,224.8

809.9

1,549.2

381.7

2,195.0

3,504.2

33,664.8

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at 1.1.2000
Depreciation
Disposals/Write-off

13,138.4
1,753.5
(200.3)

639.5
67.1
(23.6)

Balance at 31.12.2000

14,691.6

683.0

THE COMPANY
Telecommunication
network
RM

Computer
support
systems
RM

Land
(sub-note a)
RM

Buildings
RM

Total
Property,
Plant and
Equipment
RM

Net Book Value
Balance at 1.1.1999
Additions
Depreciation
Disposals/Write-off

11,461.0
1,030.2
(1,762.0)
(0.3)

213.2
22.6
(71.6)
(0.1)

542.2
70.6
(252.0)
(0.1)

273.9
6.6
(0.5)
—

1,241.5
55.1
(91.6)
—

2,643.0
1,147.7*
—
—

16,374.8
2,332.8
(2,177.7)
(0.5)

Balance at 31.12.1999

10,728.9

164.1

360.7

280.0

1,205.0

3,790.7

16,529.4

* Net of transfer to property, plant and equipment
979.8
255.1
(14.7)
1,220.2

4.2
0.5
—

750.3
79.2
(0.5)

—
—
—

15,512.2
2,155.4
(239.1)

4.7

829.0

—

17,428.5

Net Book Value
Balance at 1.1.2000
Additions
Depreciation
Disposals/Write-off

10,728.9
1,570.8
(1,753.5)
(13.0)

164.1
51.5
(67.1)
(21.6)

360.7
224.9
(255.1)
(1.5)

280.0
97.5
(0.5)
—

1,205.0
240.2
(79.2)
—

3,790.7
(286.5)*
—
—

16,529.4
1,898.4
(2,155.4)
(36.1)

Balance at 31.12.2000

10,533.2

126.9

329.0

377.0

1,366.0

3,504.2

16,236.3

THE COMPANY
Telecommunication
network
RM

Movable
plant and
equipment
RM

(a)

Computer
support
systems
RM

Land
(sub-note a)
RM

Buildings
RM

Capital
Work-InProgress,
at cost
(sub-note b)
RM

Total
Property,
Plant and
Equipment
RM

Cost
Balance at 1.1.1999
Additions
Disposals/Write-off

22,913.1
1,030.2
(76.0)

786.9
22.6
(5.9)

1,270.0
70.6
(0.1)

277.6
6.6
—

1,900.2
55.1
—

2,643.0
1,147.7*
—

29,790.8
2,332.8
(82.0)

Balance at 31.12.1999

23,867.3

803.6

1,340.5

284.2

1,955.3

3,790.7

32,041.6

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at 1.1.1999
Depreciation
Disposals/Write-off

11,452.1
1,762.0
(75.7)

573.7
71.6
(5.8)

727.8
252.0
—

3.7
0.5
—

658.7
91.6
—

—
—
—

13,416.0
2,177.7
(81.5)

Balance at 31.12.1999

13,138.4

639.5

979.8

4.2

750.3

—

15,512.2

Details of land (at cost) are as follows:

Freehold land
Long term leasehold
Short term leasehold
Other land

2000
RM

The Group
1999
RM

The Company
2000
1999
RM
RM

199.8
94.9
2.0
107.2

114.7
90.4
1.6
101.0

178.9
93.6
2.0
107.2

92.5
89.1
1.6
101.0

403.9

307.7

381.7

284.2

The title deeds pertaining to other land have not yet been registered in the name of the Company. Pending finalisation
with the relevant authorities, the land have not been classified according to their tenure.
(b)

* Net of transfer to property, plant and equipment

Included in the capital work-in-progress are finance costs capitalised amounting to RM3.0 million (1999: RM3.4 million)
for the Group and RM Nil (1999: RM0.6 million) for the Company.

16. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
The Company
2000
1999
RM
RM
Investments, unquoted:
Malaysia – at cost
– at written down value (sub-note a)
Overseas – at cost

1,380.7
#
229.3

1,837.7
—
229.3

Amount owing by subsidiary companies (sub-note b)

1,610.0
4,714.0

2,067.0
3,502.1

Provision for loans and advances

6,324.0
(584.2)

5,569.1
—

TOTAL INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

5,739.8

5,569.1

(a)

152

Movable
plant and
equipment
RM

Capital
Work-InProgress,
at cost
(sub-note b)
RM

Investments in certain subsidiary companies has been written down to RM1 each.
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16. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES (CONTINUED)

16. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES (CONTINUED)

The subsidiary companies are as follows:

The subsidiary companies are as follows:

Name of Company

Paid-up
Capital

Principal Activities

2000
Million

1999
Million

Citifon Sdn Bhd

100

100

RM65.0

RM65.0

Intelsec Sdn Bhd*

100

100

RM3.0

RM3.0

Intelligent security services

Mediatel (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

100

100

RM4.0

RM4.0

Investment holding

Menara Kuala Lumpur Sdn Bhd

100

100

RM91.0

RM91.0

Mobikom Sdn Bhd

100

100

RM260.0

RM260.0

Parkside Properties Sdn Bhd*

100

100

RM0.1

RM0.1

Investment holding

Telekom Applied Business Sdn Bhd

100

100

RM1.1

RM1.1

Development and sale of
software products

Telekom Cellular Sdn Bhd

100

100

RM695.0

RM695.0

Telekom Enterprise Sdn Bhd

100

100

RM0.6

RM0.6

Investment holding

Telekom Infotech Sdn Bhd*

100

100

RM0.5

RM0.5

Investment holding

Telekom Malaysia-Africa Sdn Bhd

100

100

RM0.1

RM0.1

Investment holding

Telekom Malaysia International Sdn Bhd

100

100

RM16.2

RM16.2

Investment holding

Telekom Management Services Sdn Bhd

100

100

RM#

RM#

Telekom Multi-Media Sdn Bhd

100

100

RM1.6

RM1.5

Interactive multimedia
communication services and
solutions

Telekom Payphone Sdn Bhd

100

100

RM9.0

RM9.0

Investment holding and public
telephone services

Telekom Publications Sdn Bhd

100

100

RM6.0

RM6.0

Payphone network and related
services

Management and operation
of Kuala Lumpur Tower
Mobile telecommunication services

Mobile telecommunication services

Consultancy and engineering
services in telecommunications

Printing and publication of
telephone directories and
distribution of information

Name of Company

% of
Shareholdings
2000 1999

Paid-up
Capital

Principal Activities

2000
Million

1999
Million

TM International (Bangladesh)
Limited##

70

70

TK100.0

TK100.0

Mobile telecommunication
services

Fiberail Sdn Bhd

60

60

RM14.2

RM14.2

Leasing of optical fibre
telecommunication system

Societe Des Telecommunications
De Guinee##

60

60

GFR
75,000.0

GFR
75,000.0

Telecommunication and related
services

Telekom Networks Malawi Limited**

60

60

MKW65.0

MKW65.0

Telekom Consultancy Sdn Bhd*

51

51

RM#

RM#

Telekom Malaysia (UK) Limited*

100

—

STR#

—

International telecommunication
facilities

TM (Hong Kong) Limited*

100

—

HKD#

—

International telecommunication
facilities

TM (USA) Inc*

100

—

USD#

—

International telecommunication
facilities

RM0.6

RM0.1

Telecommunication services
Consultancy and engineering
services in telecommunications

Subsidiary held through Telekom Publications Sdn Bhd
Cybermall Sdn Bhd

100

100

Telecommunications, multimedia
and information technology services

Subsidiary held through Universiti Telekom Sdn Bhd
Unitele Multimedia Sdn Bhd

100

100

RM#

RM#

100

100

RM1.0

RM1.0

Management and provision of
distance learning products and
services

Subsidiary held through VADS Sdn Bhd
Electronic Commerce Services Sdn Bhd

Electronic commerce services

Telekom Sales and Services Sdn Bhd

100

100

RM7.0

RM7.0

Trading in customer premises
equipment

Telesafe Sdn Bhd*

100

100

RM4.0

RM4.0

Fire and industrial safety services

Subsidiaries held through Telekom Malaysia International Sdn Bhd

The Network Connections Sdn Bhd

100

100

RM1.5

RM1.5

Internet System Integration and
networking facilities relating to
information technology

MTN Networks (Private) Limited##

100

100

TM International (L) Limited##

100

100

USD#

USD#

Investment holding

TM International Lanka
(Private) Limited##

100

100

SLR200.0

SLR200.0

Investment holding

TMI Mauritius Limited##

100

100

SA Rand#

SA Rand#

Investment holding
Investment holding

TM International (Cayman) Ltd*

100

100

USD#

USD#

Investment holding

TM Global Incorporated##

100

100

USD#

USD#

Investment holding

TM International Leasing Incorporated##

100

100

USD#

USD#

Investment holding

Universiti Telekom Sdn Bhd

100

100

RM1.0

RM1.0

VADS Sdn Bhd

100

100

RM15.0

70

70

RM11.0

Meganet Communications Sdn Bhd

154

% of
Shareholdings
2000 1999

SLR1,638.9 SLR1,638.9

Management of private university

G-Com Limited**

85

85

CED22.9

CED22.9

RM15.0

Value added data and electronic
telecommunication services

Cambodia Samart
Communication Co Ltd**

51

51

USD8.5

USD8.5

RM11.0

Interactive multimedia
communication services

Mobile telecommunication services

Mobile telecommunication
services
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16. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES (CONTINUED)

Name of Company

17. ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

% of
Shareholdings
2000 1999

Paid-up
Capital
2000
Million

Principal Activities

1999
Million

Subsidiaries held through Telekom Multi-Media Sdn Bhd
TM Orion Sdn Bhd*
Telekom Smart School Sdn Bhd

100

100

RM#

RM#

51

51

RM15.0

RM15.0

Electronic commerce and related
services
Development and distribution of
educational software and hardware

Provision for diminution in value
Goodwill written-off

Subsidiary held through Telekom Enterprise Sdn Bhd
Mobitel Sdn Bhd*

55

55

Investment, at cost (quoted):
Overseas
Investments, at cost (unquoted):
Malaysia
Overseas

RM8.0

RM8.0

Mobile telecommunication services

All subsidiary companies are incorporated in Malaysia except the following:
Name of Company

Place of Incorporation

Cambodia Samart Communication Co Ltd**
G-Com Limited**
MTN Networks (Private) Limited##
Societe Des Telecommunications De Guinee##
Telekom Networks Malawi Limited**
TM Global Incorporated##
TM International (Bangladesh) Limited##
TM International (Cayman) Ltd*
TM International (L) Limited##
TM International Lanka (Private) Limited##
TM International Leasing Incorporated##
TMI Mauritius Limited##
Telekom Malaysia (UK) Limited*
TM (Hong Kong) Limited*
TM (USA) Inc*

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

Cambodia
Ghana
Sri Lanka
Republic of Guinea
Malawi
Federal Territory, Labuan
Bangladesh
British West Indies, USA
Federal Territory, Labuan
Sri Lanka
Federal Territory, Labuan
Mauritius
United Kingdom
Hong Kong
United States of America

Group’s share of post acquisition profit
less losses as restated

These subsidiary companies are not active as at 31 December 2000
Audited by a member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Subsidiary not audited by member firms of PricewaterhouseCoopers
These amounts are less than 0.1 million in their respective currency

USD
STR
HKD
TK
CED
GFR
MWK
SLR
SA Rand

US Dollar
Pound Sterling
Hong Kong Dollar
Bangladesh Taka
Ghanaian Cedi
Guinea Franc
Malawi Kwacha
Sri Lanka Rupee
South African Rand

(b)

Amount owing by subsidiary companies

The Group
1999
RM

198.9

198.9

—

—

10.5
2,072.6

14.6
1,972.8

9.1
10.3

11.5
71.0

2,282.0
—
(1,027.1)

2,186.3
(2.4)
(1,023.7)

19.4
—
—

82.5
(2.4)
—

1,254.9

1,160.2

19.4

80.1

90.3

—

—

(20.4)

The Company
2000
1999
RM
RM

Share of net assets of associated companies
Amount owing by associated companies (sub-note a)

1,234.5
25.2

1,250.5
38.3

19.4
25.2

80.1
38.3

TOTAL INTEREST IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

1,259.7

1,288.8

44.6

118.4

23.3

80.5

—

—

Market value of quoted investment/share of net assets
of associated company
The associated companies are as follows:
Name of Company
GITN Sdn Bhd

% of
Shareholdings
2000 1999

Principal Activities

45

45

25.3

25.3

MYSPEED.COM Sdn Bhd

15

—

E-commerce services

Sistem Iridium Malaysia Sdn Bhd

40

40

Wireless communications services

Skytel Systems (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

—

40

Radio paging and voice messaging services

UMT Investment Limited

—

49

Investment holding

Usha Martin Telekom Limited

— 37.71

Mobile telecommunication services

Usha Martin Telematics Limited

—

49

Investment holding

Itopia Inc
*
##
**
#

2000
RM

Integrated telecommunication network infrastructure
Research and development of telecommunication products

Associates held through Telekom Multi-Media Sdn Bhd
Mahirnet Sdn Bhd

49

49

Distance learning services

Mutiara.Com Sdn Bhd

30

30

Information Technology and telecommunications
infrastructure

The amount owing by subsidiary companies are unsecured and bears interest ranging from 0% to 8.0% (1999: 0% to
9.7%) with no fixed repayment terms. However, the Company has indicated that it will not demand substantial
repayment within the next twelve months.
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17. ASSOCIATED COMPANIES (CONTINUED)
Name of Company

18. INVESTMENTS
% of
Shareholdings
2000
1999

Associates held through Telekom Malaysia International Sdn Bhd
Digital Phone Company Limited
49.99
48.99

Mobile telecommunication services

Cambodia National Communication Inc*

Trunk land mobile radio services

Samart Corporation Public Company Limited

42

42

24.46

24.99

40

Investment holding

Associate held through G-Com Limited
Ghana Telecommunications Company Limited

30

Telecommunication and related services

Associate held through Thintana Communications Llc
Telkom SA Limited

30

30

The Group
1999
RM

Investments in International Satellite Organisations, at cost
Investments in unquoted shares, at cost

160.8
61.6

160.8
62.5

160.8
56.0

160.8
56.0

Provision for permanent diminution in value

222.4
(77.7)

223.3
—

216.8
(77.7)

216.8
—

TOTAL INVESTMENTS AFTER PROVISIONS

144.7

223.3

139.1

216.8

2000
RM

The Group
1999
RM

Staff loans (sub-note a)
Amount receivable within twelve months
included under other receivables

731.5

735.1

731.5

734.5

(90.6)

(80.7)

(90.6)

(80.1)

TOTAL LONG TERM RECEIVABLES

640.9

654.4

640.9

654.4

Telecommunication and broadcasting services

Associate held through Telekom Malaysia-Africa Sdn Bhd
Thintana Communications Llc
40

30

2000
RM

Principal Activities

19. LONG TERM RECEIVABLES

Telecommunication and related services

All associated companies are incorporated in Malaysia except the following:
Name of Company

Place of Incorporation

Cambodia National Communication Inc*
Digital Phone Company Limited
Ghana Telecommunications Company Limited
Itopia Inc
Samart Corporation Public Company Limited
Thintana Communications Llc
Telkom SA Limited
UMT Investment Ltd
Usha Martin Telekom Limited
Usha Martin Telematics Limited

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

Cambodia
Thailand
Ghana
United States of America
Thailand
United States of America
South Africa
India
India
India

(a)

* This associated company is not active as at 31 December 2000

The Company
2000
1999
RM
RM

Staff loans amounting to RM244.8 million (1999: RM281.9 million) have been assigned to secure the Company’s
borrowings from Cagamas.

20. INVENTORIES

During the year, the Company has disposed its shareholding in Usha Martin Group and Skytel Systems (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd.
Usha Martin Group comprises UMT Investment Ltd, Usha Martin Telekom Limited and Usha Martin Telematics Limited.
All associated companies have co-terminous financial year end with the Company except for Telkom SA and Itopia Inc with
financial year ends on 31 March and 30 June respectively.

The Company
2000
1999
RM
RM

At cost:
Cables and wires
Network materials
Telecommunication equipment
Spares and others

2000
RM

The Group
1999
RM

The Company
2000
1999
RM
RM

36.5
40.5
31.6
41.7

42.9
25.1
50.5
60.7

36.4
40.5
13.1
18.0

42.8
23.1
23.7
30.8

150.3

179.2

108.0

120.4

6.1

6.8

—

—

156.4

186.0

108.0

120.4

(a) Amount owing by associated companies
The amount owing by associated companies are unsecured and interest free with no fixed repayment terms. However,
the Company has indicated that it will not demand substantial repayment within the next twelve months.
At net realisable value:
Spares and others
TOTAL INVENTORIES
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2000
RM

The Group
1999
RM

Receivables from telephone customers
Receivables from non-telephone customers
Receivables from subsidiary companies

2,425.3
1,717.9
—

1,996.8
988.9
—

1,730.4
1,452.1
310.8

1,400.0
952.1
372.9

Advance rental billings

4,143.2
(339.2)

2,985.7
(234.8)

3,493.3
(371.8)

2,725.0
(234.8)

Provision for doubtful debts

3,804.0
(915.4)

2,750.9
(804.8)

3,121.5
(540.0)

2,490.2
(535.5)

Total trade receivables after provisions

2,888.6

1,946.1

2,581.5

1,954.7

548.5
190.0
350.2
—

569.9
—
410.1
—

537.7
190.0
264.4
33.3

568.8
—
294.3
33.1

3,977.3

2,926.1

3,606.9

2,850.9

Prepayments
Deposit for additional investment in an associated company
Other receivables
Other receivables from subsidiary companies
TOTAL TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
AFTER PROVISIONS

The Company
2000
1999
RM
RM

2000
RM

The Group
1999
RM

Deposits with:
Licensed banks
Licensed finance companies
Other financial institutions

810.2
135.2
1,249.4

459.9
72.7
450.3

586.3
95.0
1,224.7

355.7
57.4
439.4

Total Deposits
Cash and bank balances
Bank overdrafts

2,194.8
65.9
(45.0)

982.9
95.7
(42.0)

1,906.0
23.6
—

852.5
43.8
—

TOTAL CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR

2,215.7

1,929.6

896.3

1,036.6

The bank overdrafts were unsecured and interests were payable at rates which varied according to the lenders’ prevailing
base lending rates. Interest rates during the period ranged from 6.5% to 7.65% (1999: 5.0% to 10.25%) per annum except
for an overseas subsidiary company where the interest rate ranged from 21.0% to 30.0% (1999: 19.0%).

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
The Group
2000
1999
RM
RM

22. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
2000
RM

The Group
1999
RM

Shares quoted on The Kuala Lumpur
Stock Exchange

166.2

TOTAL SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
Market value of quoted shares

The Company
2000
1999
RM
RM

The Company
2000
1999
RM
RM

The Company
2000
1999
RM
RM

Trade payables
Finance cost payable
Deposits and trust monies
Other non trade payables

2,373.1
278.1
132.4
381.8

2,212.2
158.2
59.1
243.9

1,660.5
255.5
122.4
349.2

1,601.8
139.2
58.0
183.0

170.1

166.2

170.1

TOTAL TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

3,165.4

2,673.4

2,387.6

1,982.0

166.2

170.1

166.2

170.1

174.1

207.3

174.1

207.3

25. DIVIDENDS
The Company
2000
1999
RM
RM

160

Proposed final dividend of 10.0 sen per share less tax
(1999: 10.0 sen per share Malaysian Income Tax Exempted)
Dividend under provided in respect of prior year

223.2
2.9

305.0
—

TOTAL DIVIDENDS

226.1

305.0
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26. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

28. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The Group
2000
1999
RM
RM

Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and employees
Payment of finance cost
Payment of income taxes
TOTAL CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The Company
2000
1999
RM
RM

7,313.1
(3,130.9)
(463.3)
(754.0)

7,524.3
(3,570.6)
(548.7)
(543.1)

6,321.5
(2,253.3)
(428.0)
(733.2)

6,518.2
(2,561.1)
(497.1)
(519.1)

2,964.9

2,861.9

2,907.0

2,940.9

27. CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
The Group
2000
1999
RM
RM
Sale of property, plant and equipment
Disposal/(purchase) of investment (net)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of subsidiary companies *
Acquisition of associated companies
Additional investment in subsidiary companies
Additional investment in associated companies
Disposal of associated company
(Advances to)/repayment from subsidiary companies (net)
(Advances to)/repayment from associated companies (net)
Deposit for additional investment in an associated company
Repayments of loans by employees
Loans to employees
Interest received
Dividend received

—
6.4
(2,456.6)
—
(0.1)
—
(208.5)
225.2
—
13.1
(190.0)
91.2
(84.1)
88.7
3.0

0.6
75.5
(2,684.0)
(34.1)
(7.8)
(5.3)
(157.8)
—
—
(26.0)
—
84.0
(91.5)
51.4
26.1

—
6.1
(1,898.4)
—
(0.1)
(0.1)
(0.8)
225.2
(1,211.9)
13.1
(190.0)
90.6
(84.1)
85.0
18.2

0.6
81.9
(2,332.1)
(35.7)
(7.8)
(124.9)
—
—
(888.7)
(26.0)
—
80.2
(91.5)
62.5
3.5

TOTAL CASH FLOWS USED IN
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(2,511.7)

(2,768.9)

(2,947.2)

(3,278.0)

* Summary of the effect of the acquisition of subsidiary companies in 1999 are as follows:
1999
RM
Goodwill
Long Term Liabilities
Property, plant and equipment
Capital Work-In-Progress
Current Assets
Current Liabilities
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The Company
2000
1999
RM
RM

98.2
(6.8)
38.3
19.8
10.7
(124.5)

Purchase consideration satisfied by cash
Cash and cash equivalent acquired

35.7
(1.6)

Cashflow on acquisition, net of cash acquired

34.1

The Group
2000
1999
RM
RM
Issue of share capital
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Dividends paid
TOTAL CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The Company
2000
1999
RM
RM

621.1
1,324.8
(906.0)
(307.9)

300.3
884.9
(900.6)
(216.0)

621.1
1,324.8
(564.5)
(307.9)

300.3
780.0
(372.7)
(216.0)

732.0

68.6

1,073.5

491.6

29. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In 1996, Daewoo-Peremba Construction J/V (D-PC J/V) was awarded the contract for the construction of Menara Telekom
at an estimated contract value of RM572.4 million. Dato’ Dr. Mohd Munir bin Abdul Majid, a Director appointed during
the year is also a director of Peremba Construction Sdn Bhd, a partner of the D-PC J/V. Progress billings from D-PC J/V
during the year amounted to RM53.2 million.
Fujikura Federal Cables Sdn Bhd (FFCSB) was awarded contracts for the supply of copper cables in 1994 and the supply
of optical fibre cables and accessories in 1996 at estimated contract value totalling RM159.1 million. Mr. Tan Poh Keat, a
Director appointed during the year also acts as a consultant to FFCSB. Purchase of cables from FFCSB during the year
amounted to RM22.6 million.
The above transactions have been entered in the normal course of business and at negotiated terms.

30. COMMITMENTS
The Group
2000
1999
RM
RM
Property, plant and equipment
Commitments in respect of expenditure contracted for
Commitments in respect of expenditure
approved but not contracted for

The Company
2000
1999
RM
RM

4,002.2

2,380.6

2,166.7

2,168.9

432.5

1,245.4

243.8

473.6

At 31 December 2000, there exists a potential claim for recovery of loss and expenses totalling to RM527.5 million that
may increase the cost of the Menara Telekom’s building. The Directors, based on professional opinion received, are of the
view that the Company has a good case to dispute and/or contest the claim.
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31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (UNSECURED)
(a)

32. SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2000, the Group and the Company had contingent liabilities in respect of:
(i)

A guarantee and indemnity on a USD26.0 million (RM98.8 million) financing facility granted to a subsidiary
company, TM International (Bangladesh) Ltd which has been executed on 26 July 2000 and expiring on
26 January 2012. Telekom Malaysia Berhad has obtained an indemnity from A. K. Khan & Co Ltd, a shareholder
of TM International (Bangladesh) Ltd, their proportionate share of 30% of all obligations made under the said
Guarantee & Indemnity.

Operating Profit Before
Income
Taxation
RM
RM
By Geographical Location
2000
Malaysia
Overseas*

(ii) A bank guarantee facility of RM15.0 million granted by a financial institution to a subsidiary company, Telekom
Smart School Sdn Bhd, to guarantee the due performance under the Smart School Integrated Solution contract.
This guarantee shall remain in force and effect until 27 January 2004.
There were no other contingent liabilities or material litigations or guarantees other than those arising in the ordinary
course of the business of the Group and the Company and on these no material losses are anticipated.
(b)

Subsequent to 31 December 2000, a claim was initiated against a wholly owned subsidiary, Telekom Multi-Media Sdn
Bhd. The claim, which the plaintiff is seeking, are for damages of RM105.7 million for loss of profits and Canadian
Dollars 0.9 million for expenses incurred. The Directors, based on the legal opinion received, are of the view that the
company has a reasonably good case to dispute and/or contest the claim by the plaintiff.

1999
Malaysia
Overseas*

*

Assets
Employed
RM

8,503.9
311.8

1,217.6
33.2

25,372.0
1,894.9

8,815.7

1,250.8

27,266.9

7,516.1
316.9

842.4
174.6

23,437.5
2,192.6

7,833.0

1,017.0

25,630.1

The Group has operations in Sri Lanka, Bangladesh, Thailand, Cambodia, Ghana, Republic of Guinea, Malawi, South
Africa and United States of America. In 1999, the Group also operated in India.

32. SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS
Operating Profit Before
Income
Taxation
RM
RM
By Activity
2000
Telecommunication
Non-telecommunication

1999
Telecommunication
Non-telecommunication
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Assets
Employed
RM

8,305.3
510.4

1,158.2
92.6

26,610.8
656.1

8,815.7

1,250.8

27,266.9

7,517.4
315.6

1,006.6
10.4

24,943.4
686.7

7,833.0

1,017.0

25,630.1

33. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS
Pursuant to the Directors’ decision on early adoption of MASB 6, The Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, the
Company now recognises foreign exchange gains or losses arising on the revaluation of long term foreign borrowings to
the Income Statement as and when it occurs rather than deferring and amortising such exchange differences over the
remaining lives of these borrowings.
This change in accounting policy has been accounted for retrospectively. The comparative information have been restated
to conform with the changed accounting policy. The effect of this change in accounting policy to the Income Statements
for the current year ended 31 December 2000 is a saving in amortisation of foreign exchange losses of RM281.4 million.
The current year opening reserves, the preceding year reserves and the Group’s share of post acquisition profit less losses of
associated companies have been restated to adjust for post retirement medical benefit, retirement and pension fund liabilities
as well as interest expense, which were not charged to the Income Statements by certain associated companies prior to
31 December 1998. These matters have no effect on the Income Statement for the current and preceding financial year.
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Statement by Directors
pursuant to Section 169(15) of the Companies Act, 1965
33. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (CONTINUED)
The effect of the changes are shown below:
As previously
reported
RM

THE GROUP

Effect of
changes
RM

As restated
RM

We, Dato’ Ir. Muhammad Radzi bin Haji Mansor and Dato’ Dr. Md Khir bin Abdul Rahman being two of the Directors of
Telekom Malaysia Berhad, state that, in the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 131 to 166 are
drawn up so as to exhibit a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2000
and of the results and the cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the year ended on that date in accordance with the
applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia and the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965.
In accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors dated 27 February 2001.

1999
Operating cost
Operating profit
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders

(6,729.5)
1,103.5
819.1

Group’s share of post acquisition profit less
losses in associated companies
Retained profits

– at 1 January
– at 31 December
(change in accounting policy and liabilities of associated companies
not charged to Income Statements)
Exchange Fluctuation Reserve

– at 1 January
– at 31 December

1999
Operating cost
Operating profit
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders
Retained profits

(178.5)

90.3

8,973.8
9,210.6

(1,250.0)
(1,117.2)

7,723.8
8,093.4

(1,054.1)
(995.3)

1,071.5
938.7

Effect of
changes
RM

(5,453.5)
1,596.1
1,336.4

132.8
132.8
132.8

10,941.3
11,972.7

(1,071.5)
(938.7)

Exchange Fluctuation Reserve

(1,071.5)
(938.7)

1,071.5
938.7

34. CURRENCY

17.4
(56.6)

DATO’ IR. MUHAMMAD RADZI BIN HAJI MANSOR
Chairman

DATO’ DR. MD KHIR BIN ABDUL RAHMAN
Chief Executive

As restated
RM

Statutory Declaration

– at 1 January
– at 31 December
(change in accounting policy)
– at 1 January
– at 31 December

(6,596.7)
1,236.3
951.9

268.8

As previously
reported
RM

THE COMPANY

132.8
132.8
132.8

(5,320.7)
1,728.9
1,469.2
9,869.8
11,034.0

I, Dato’ Dr. Md Khir bin Abdul Rahman, being the Director primarily responsible for the financial management of Telekom
Malaysia Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the financial statements set out
on pages 131 to 166 are correct, and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue
of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

—
—
Subscribed and solemnly
declared at Kuala Lumpur
this 27 February 2001

)
)
)

DATO’ DR. MD KHIR BIN ABDUL RAHMAN

All amounts are expressed in Ringgit Malaysia (RM) unless otherwise stated.
Before me:

T. THANAPALASINGAM
Commissioner for Oaths
Kuala Lumpur
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Report of the Auditors
to the Members of Telekom Malaysia Berhad

General Information

as at 31 December 2000

(Company No: 128740-P)

We have audited the financial statements set out on pages 131 to 166. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s Directors. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

1.

Telekom Malaysia Berhad is a public limited liability Company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia, and listed on the
Main Board of the Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange.

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved Auditing Standards in Malaysia. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statements presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

2.

The address of the registered office of the Company is:

In our opinion:

3.

(a)

Tingkat 2, Ibupejabat Telekom Malaysia
Jalan Pantai Baharu
50672 Kuala Lumpur

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965 and applicable
approved accounting standards in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of:
(i)

Ibupejabat Telekom Malaysia
Jalan Pantai Baharu
50672 Kuala Lumpur

the matters required by section 169 of the Companies Act, 1965 to be dealt with in the financial statements; and

(ii) the state of affairs of the Group and Company as at 31 December 2000 and of the results and cash flows of the Group
and Company for the year ended on that date;

The principal office and place of business of the Company is:

4.

The average number of employees at the end of the financial year amounted to:

and
(b)

the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by the subsidiary
companies of which we have acted as auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

2000

1999

Group

31,702

31,641

Company

25,554

26,355

The names of the subsidiary companies of which we have not acted as auditors are indicated in note 16 to the financial
statements. We have considered the financial statements of these subsidiary companies and the auditors’ reports thereon.
We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiary companies that have been consolidated with the Company’s
financial statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements and we have received satisfactory information and explanations required by us for those purposes.
The auditors’ reports on the financial statements of the subsidiary companies were not subject to any material qualification and
did not include any comment made under subsection (3) of section 174 of the Act.

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS
(AF: 1146)
Public Accountants

ABDUL RAHIM HAMID
[904/3/02(J/PH)]
Partner

Kuala Lumpur
Date: 27 February 2001
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Shareholding Statistics

List of Top 20 Shareholders

as at 9 March 2001

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
Share Capital
Authorised Share Capital

as at 9 March 2001

No. Name
1.

: 5,000,000,001

Khazanah Nasional Berhad

Share Held

Percentage (%)

1,109,232,990

35.91

2. Minister of Finance

650,394,784

21.06

Issued and Fully Paid-up Capital : 3,088,615,381

3. Employees Provident Fund Board

353,443,500

11.44

Class of shares

: 3,088,615,381 ordinary shares of RM1 each and 1 (one) Special Rights Redeemable
Preference Share of RM1 each and fully paid.

4. Bank Negara Malaysia

251,680,000

8.15

5. Permodalan Nasional Berhad

150,150,000

4.86

Voting Rights

: One vote per ordinary share.
The Special Share has no voting right other than those referred to in note 8 (a) to the
financial statements.

6. Kumpulan Wang Amanah Pencen

54,439,000

1.76

7. Amanah Raya Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Amanah Saham Malaysia

31,370,000

1.02

8. Bank Simpanan Nasional

20,555,500

0.67

9. Malaysia Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Great Eastern Life Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad (MLF)

16,299,920

0.53

10. Amanah Raya Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Sekim Amanah Saham Nasional

13,257,000

0.43

11. Chase Malaysia Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Abu Dhabi Investment Authority

11,346,000

0.37

12. Lembaga Tabung Haji

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS
Size of Shareholdings
Shareholders
Malaysian
Foreign
No
%
No
%

Shares
Malaysian
No
%

Foreign
No

%

Less than 500
500 – 5,000
5,001 – 10,000
10,001 – 100,000
100,001 – 1,000,000
Above 1,000,000

121
15,016
954
700
135
56

0.60
74.05
4.70
3.45
0.67
0.28

353
1,878
202
475
336
51

1.74
9.26
1.00
2.34
1.66
0.25

4,118
26,594,001
7,173,535
20,910,191
43,740,334
2,726,268,000

0.00
0.86
0.23
0.68
1.42
88.27

85,110
3,439,111
1,622,650
19,806,049
99,304,812
139,667,470

0.00
0.11
0.05
0.64
3.22
4.52

TOTAL

16,982

83.75

3,295

16.25

2,824,690,179

91.46

263,925,202

8.54

2000 MONTHLY TRADING VOLUME & HIGHEST-LOWEST SHARE PRICE

10,031,000

0.32

13. Amanah Raya Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Amanah Saham Wawasan 2020

9,656,000

0.31

14. Malaysia Nominees (Asing) Sendirian Berhad
Oversea-Chinese Bank Nominees Pte Ltd
for Singapore Telecommunications Limited (OCB330005-058MIS)

7,852,000

0.25

15. Malaysia Nominees (Asing) Sendirian Berhad
Straits Lion Asset Management Pte Ltd
for The Great Eastern Life Assurance Co Ltd (00-10020)

7,145,000

0.23

16. Chase Malaysia Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
IBJ Bank & Trust Company For The Schroder Pacific Emerging Markets Fund

5,824,000

0.19

17. Chase Malaysia Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Stichting Pensioenfonds Abp

5,276,000

0.17

18. Chase Malaysia Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Emerging Markets Growth Fund

4,870,000

0.16

19. Cartaban Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
SSBT Fund GB01 For Harbor International Fund

4,600,000

0.15

20. Kerajaan Negeri Perak Darul Ridzuan

4,500,000

0.15

2,721,922,694

88.13

TOTAL
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS HOLDINGS
(2% And Above)
No. Name

share performance
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1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Share Held

Percentage (%)

Khazanah Nasional Berhad
Minister of Finance
Employees Provident Fund Board
Bank Negara Malaysia
Permodalan Nasional Berhad

1,109,232,990
650,394,784
353,443,500
251,680,000
150,150,000

35.91
21.06
11.44
8.15
4.86

TOTAL

2,514,901,274

81.42
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Net Book Value of Land & Buildings
as at 31 December 2000

REGISTRAR
Tenaga Koperat Sdn. Bhd. (118401-V)
20th Floor, Plaza Permata (formerly known as IGB Plaza)
Jalan Kampar
Off Jalan Tun Razak
50400 Kuala Lumpur
Tel : 03-4041 6522
Fax : 03-4042 6352

Location
1. Federal Territory
a. Kuala Lumpur
b. Labuan

Freehold
No. of
Area
Lots (’000 sq ft)

Leasehold
No. of
Area
Lots (’000 sq ft)

Excepted land*
No. of
Area
Lots (’000 sq ft)

Net book
value
of land
RM
(million)

Net book
value of
buildings
RM
(million)

15
–

1,154
–

5
–

411
–

–
–

–
–

126.0
0.7

730.3
9.7

2. Selangor

9

8,720

16

25,429

97

16,698

106.4

158.4

3. Perlis

–

–

4

52

14

750

0.4

5.0

4. Perak

4

17

9

379

119

7,780

40.8

87.6

5. Pulau Pinang

2

5

16

1,238

60

15,431

7.7

42.5

Malaysia practised an imputation system in the distribution of the dividends whereby the income tax paid by a company is
imputed to dividends distributed to shareholders.

6. Kedah

7

535

12

1,335

55

2,818

10.7

79.4

7. Johor

5

106

24

1,249

138

14,097

4.0

95.0

Malaysian income tax is deducted or deemed to have been deducted at corporate tax rate which is currently at 28% from
dividends paid by a company residing in Malaysia.

8. Melaka

2

3

14

738

38

4,457

1.0

47.6

19

47,565

8

278

71

9,371

52.3

40.1

The income tax deducted or deemed to have been deducted from dividend is accounted for by the income tax of the company.
There is no further tax or witholding tax on the payment of dividends to all shareholders.

10. Terengganu

–

–

13

713

41

6,285

1.3

45.6

11. Kelantan

–

–

8

356

41

2,234

0.8

22.8

12. Pahang

5

80

22

1,250

98

8,409

3.6

86.9

13. Sabah

–

–

13

140

76

26,290

7.2

84.9

14. Sarawak

5

202

27

861

109

10,284

26.1

119.7

15. Sri Lanka

5

63

–

–

–

–

4.9

2.0

16. Malawi

–

–

26

90

–

–

–

0.8

60

4,881

–

–

–

–

0.4

14.8

18. Bangladesh

7

357

–

–

–

–

0.9

1.2

19. South Africa

7

58

–

–

–

–

3.6

3.2

20. Cambodia

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

1.5

152

63,746

217

34,519

957

124,904

398.8

1,679.0

LISTING
The Company’s shares are listed on the Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange in Malaysia.

MALAYSIAN TAXES ON DIVIDEND

9. Negeri Sembilan

The Annual Report is available to the public who are not shareholders of the Company, by writing to:

General Manager, Corporate Communications Division
TELEKOM MALAYSIA BERHAD (128740-P)
1st Floor, Ibupejabat Telekom Malaysia
Jalan Pantai Baharu
50672 Kuala Lumpur
Fax : 03-7957 4747

17. Republic of Guinea

Total

* Excepted land are lands situated outside the Federal Territory which are either alienated land, reserved land owned by the
Federal Government or land occupied, used, controlled and managed by the Federal Government for federal purposes (in
Melaka, Pulau Pinang, Sabah and Sarawak) as set out in Section 3(2) of the Telecommunication Services (Successor Company)
Act, 1985. The Government has agreed to lease these land to Telekom Malaysia Berhad for a term of 60 years with an option
to renew, under article 85 and 86 of the Federal Constitution.
Further details on the above properties can be obtained from:
Telekom Malaysia Berhad, Property Operation, Lot 1, Seksyen 17, 40000 Shah Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan.

172

173

T E L E K O M M A L AY S I A B E R H A D

T E L E K O M M A L AY S I A B E R H A D

Proxy Form

Usage of Properties
as at 31 December 2000

I/We ________________________________________________________________________________________________

Location

Exchanges

Transmission Office
Station
Buildings

Satellite/
Submarine
Stores/
Cable
Residential Warehouses Stations

Resort

Kedai TM/
TelecomPrimatel/
munication/
Business
Tourism
Centre
University
Tower

of __________________________________________________________________________________________________
being a Member/Members of TELEKOM MALAYSIA BERHAD hereby appoint
____________________________________________________________________________________________________
of __________________________________________________________________________________________________

1. Federal Territory
a. Kuala Lumpur
b. Labuan

25
3

7
2

23
1

27
4

19
12

1
2

–
–

2
–

–
–

1
–

2. Selangor

85

11

18

–

42

–

–

8

1

–

3. Perlis

10

–

–

2

1

–

–

1

–

–

4. Perak

68

19

32

81

42

–

–

3

–

–

5. Pulau Pinang

23

2

15

33

23

2

1

4

–

–

6. Kedah

48

10

4

26

11

–

1

3

–

1

7. Johor

83

17

7

51

22

1

–

6

–

–

8. Melaka

18

2

5

23

7

2

–

2

1

–

9. Negeri Sembilan

31

14

4

16

–

1

2

2

–

—

10. Terengganu

32

12

5

15

6

–

–

–

–

–

11. Kelantan

23

3

7

18

13

–

–

2

–

–

12. Pahang

44

21

13

49

17

3

5

3

–

–

13. Sabah

40

32

22

22

22

2

1

7

–

–

14. Sarawak

72

39

24

47

25

1

–

4

–

–

15. Sri Lanka

–

2

2

–

1

–

–

–

–

–

16. Malawi

–

26

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

29

29

2

–

–

–

–

–

18. Bangladesh

–

7

–

–

–

–

–

19. South Africa

–

–

–

7

–

–

20. Cambodia

1

–

–

–

–

–

17. Republic of Guinea

or failing him ________________________________________________________________________________________
of __________________________________________________________________________________________________
or failing him, the Chairman of the Meeting, as my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Sixteenth
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at the Grand Nirwana Ballroom, Mutiara Kuala Lumpur Hotel
(formerly known as Hilton Kuala Lumpur Hotel), Jalan Sultan Ismail, 50250 Kuala Lumpur on Tuesday, 15 May
2001 at 10.00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.
My/Our proxy is to vote as indicated below:
Resolutions

For

1. Adoption of Accounts and Reports for the year
ended 31 December 2000

– Ordinary Resolution 1

2. Declaration of a first and final dividend per share
of 10 sen (less 28% Malaysian Income Tax)

– Ordinary Resolution 2

3. Re-election of Directors under Article 98:
(i) YB. Dato’ Ir. Haji Mohd Zin bin Mohamed
(ii) Dato’ Dr. Mohd Munir bin Abdul Majid
(iii) Ir. Prabahar s/o N. K. Singam
(iv) Lim Kheng Guan
(v) Rosli bin Man
(vi) Tan Poh Keat
(vii) Dato’ Dr. Halim bin Shafie
(viii) Dato’ Abdul Majid bin Haji Hussein

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–

4. Re-election of Dato’ Ir. Muhammad Radzi bin
Haji Mansor under Article 103

– Ordinary Resolution 11

–

–

5. Approval of Directors’ fees and remuneration

– Ordinary Resolution 12

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

6. Appointment of Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers as
Auditors of the Company

– Ordinary Resolution 13

–

–

–

–

7. Special Business:
– Section 132D, Companies Act 1965
Issuance of New Shares

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Resolution
Resolution
Resolution
Resolution
Resolution
Resolution
Resolution
Resolution

Against

3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

– Ordinary Resolution 14

(Please indicate with an “X” in the spaces provided how you wish your vote to be cast. If you do not do so, the Proxy
will vote or abstain from voting at his discretion).
Signed this _________ day of ______________ 2001.
No of Shares

CDS Account No.

__________________________________
Signature/Common Seal of Appointer
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Notes:
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the above Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his stead. A Proxy need not be a
member of the Company.
2. The instrument appointing the proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or his attorney duly appointed under a power of attorney or
if such appointee is a corporation, either under its common seal or under the hand of an attorney duly appointed under a power of attorney.
3. The instrument appointing the proxy must be deposited at the office of the Share Registrar, Tenaga Koperat Sdn. Bhd., 20th Floor, Plaza Permata
(formerly known as IGB Plaza), Jalan Kampar off Jalan Tun Razak, 50400 Kuala Lumpur not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding
the Meeting or any adjourment thereof.

1. Fold here

2. Fold here

The Share Registrar
TENAGA KOPERAT SDN. BHD.
20th Floor, Plaza Permata (formerly known as IGB Plaza)
Jalan Kampar off Jalan Tun Razak
50400 Kuala Lumpur

3. Fold here

